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2+ floar, Hillside House

17 Esnpire Road,

Parktown

Johrnneshurg

2193

Tei iinternationaly: +27 (10} 294-0651
Tel {Tollfree): DBOD 222 £97

Emah; irquirics@sastatecapture,org.za
Wobt www, sastatiecapture. 518,28

JUDICIAL COMMISSION OF INQUIRY INTO ALLEGATIONS OF STATE CAPTURE,
CORRUPTION AND FRAUD IN THE PUBLIC SECTOR INCLUDING ORGANS OF STATE

26 November 2019

The Sheriff of Bloemfentein East
Mrs P Roodt

3 Seventh Street

Arboretum

Bloemfontein

South Africa

By email hand,

Dear Sirs

URGENT SAME DAY SERVICE OF SUMMONS WE ACCEPT ALL SAME DAY
SERVICE COSTS INCLUDING CALL OUT COSTS

*TO BE SERVED ON MS NOMALANGA MOROADI SELINA CHOLOTA PERSONALLY, IF
UNAVAILABLE SERVE ON AN OFFICIAL IN HER OFFICE*

COMMISSION OF INQUIRY INTO ALLEGATIONS OF STATE CAPTURE, CORRUPTION AND
FRAUD IN THE PUBLIC SECTOR INCLUDING ORGANS OF STATE

1.  Enclosed herewith is a scanned original Summons in terms of section 3(2) of the
Commissions Act 8 of 1947 {"the Summons") and a copy of the original Summons (marked
“C”, to be served urgently on Thursday 28 November 2019 on Ms Nomalanga Moroadi
Selina Cholota.



NMSC-002

2.  Please print the necessary and serve the Summons on the fellowing address:

Ms Nomalanga Moroadi Selina Cholota
10233 Grassland

Heidedal

Bloemfontein

9300

3. Please contact Lerato Radebe on 010 214 06517060 7491 422 or email

lerator@commissionsc.org.za when service is complete, so that we may arrange for urgent

collection of the return of service and original Notice. Alternatively, should the return of
service be sent via your offices please ensure that such return is sent to the offices of the

Commission of Inquiry info State Capture at:
17 Empire Road, Parktown
Hillside House, 2nd & 374 floor

Johannesburg

Marked for the attention of Adv. Andre Lamprecht and Ms Lerato Radebe

4.  Wetender your costs for urgent service. Please process all costs through the account of the

Department of Justice.

5.  Thank you for your assistance.

Yours faithfully

/ .Zﬂ%f/gﬁ« Lt

MS BRIGITTE SHABALALA

ACTING SECRETARY

JUDICIAL COMMISSION OF INQUIRY INTO STATE CAPTURE, CORRUPTION AND FRAUD IN
THE PUBLIC SECTOR INCLUDING ORGANS OF STATE
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2 fipor, Hillside kouse

17 Errpire Road,

Parktowm

Johannesburg

2193

Tel {international): +27 {13} 21406651
Tel {Tolfree): GBOOC 222 (97

Email Inqulresdsastatecaptiire.org.za
Web: vy sastatecapiure org.za

JUDICIAL COMMISSION OF INQUIRY INTO ALLEGATIONS OF STATE CAPTURE,
CORRUPTION AND FRAUD IN THE PUBLIC SECTOR INCLUDING ORGANS OF STATE

SUMMONS TO:
APPEAR AS A WITNESS

This summons is issued in terms of section 3(2) of the Commissions Act 8 of 1947, read
with:

- Proclamation 3 published in Government Gazette No. 41403 on
25 January 2018

- Government Notice No. 105 published in Government Gazette No. 41436 on
9 February 2018 (as amended)

- Rules of the Judicial Commission of Inquiry into Allegations of State Capture,
Corruption and Fraud in the Public Sector including Organs of State published in
Government Gazette No. 41774 on 16 July 2018

Tracking reference: SPS19/0003/EL
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To the sheriff or his/her deputy of Bloemfontein East
INFORM: MS NOMALANGA MOROADI SELINA CHOLOTA
OF

10233 GRASSLAND
HEIDEDAL
BLOEMFONTEIN
9300

That she is hereby directed to:

a) Appear before the Commission personally at 4th floor, Hill on Empire, 16 Empire Road,
Parktown, Johanneshurg on 4" December 2019 at 09:00 for the purpose of answering
questions under oath or affirmation concerning your employment in the office of the
Premier of the Free State Province during 2015 and 2016:
aa) The questions will relate to, but is not limited to, the emails, pro forma invoice, proof

of payments as well as the list of students that requested financial assistance which
were exchanged between the office of the Premier of the Free State and the persons
reflected in those emails. The said documents are contained in the list marked
Annexure “A” attached to this Summons.

Your fallure to comply with the requirements set out in paragraph a} above without
sufficient cause constitutes an offence under section 6(1) of the Commissions Act 8 of
1947.

DATED at .....thmm ............... on this ......2%..... day of Noverdloef 2019.

"*iz&y/g%ﬂﬁ

Ms Bfigitte Shabalala

ACTING SECRETARY:

Judicial Commission of Inquiry into Allegations of State Capture, Corruption and Fraud
in the Public Sector including Organs of State




NMSC-004.1

ANNEXURE “A”
INDEX TO EMAIL CORRESPONDENCE |
ITEM DESCRIPTION
NO.
1. Email dated 17 July 2015 and 12 August 2015 together with its attachments.
2. Email dated 28 January 2016
3. Email dated 11 April 2015
4, Email dated 10 April 2015
5. Email dated 06 May 2015
6. Email dated 3 February 2015
7. Email dated 18 August 2015
8. Email dated 01 September 2015
9. Email dated 26 July 2016
10. Email dated 27 July 2016
1. Proof of payments from ABSA dated 17 March 2015
12. Proof of payment from FNB dated 01t September 2015
13. Proof of payment from FNB dated 31 August 2015
14, ProForma Invoice from M-TAG Systems
15. List of students who requested Financial assistance
16. Notice ito Rule 3.3 regarding the statement of Mr Mxolisi Dukoana dated 27 June

2019
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Subject PR Lyeo doc 2 3
From Moroad! Cholots < Premier@fspremier.gov. s W 6
To <Igo@diamend-hifl,co.za>, 160 MPAMEAN] <mpembanl@yshos.coms

Date  2015-08-12 13110

Good Day.
Ttumﬂmmmmmmmmm.

Regards:
Moroadi Chelota.

m:mmm[mmmmm
gnuaquzm 11150 AM

I govza
Svlfect: Fudt Lyzy dor 2

Dear Premier
Herewith plasse find the y ol &nts far purp of eetifing my davghters universiy sccount,

Hﬁn&ymtmmm#fm Yable vfter recsiviag the sehol B s i ,ussmslnﬂnuwhrammwnwhﬁumzmsk!mmn
us: .00

Kindly ga o the tink provided i their emall 8nd use the faliswing secess code t6 pey namely:
Useriame: kapiscamatin@omatloom i

Patsword; Kaglso@s,

Plazse seknowiedge raceipt and iet me know If you wil 50 ba paving for her travaling and Iving expenses as well,

! kzke this opportunity ts A¥BRk you from the Battom of gur Pearts for your assistence.  have ao doukt et my duvghter will make goss use of this opporiunity,
Bod bless

Refiles Hokesnz

0814704350

Sent from my iPad
Begin forwarded maesage:
From: Keglso Msiza ckanizay F}gﬁ}%ﬁ;ﬂmh
Bate: 06 July 2018 s: 8:38:52 Fie
Te: Refling Mokoena <refiloe,msizGomall.coms

Subfect! Lyon dos 2
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Tuition, mmboavﬁ,fw.
Approximate balance
In addition, books and s upplies will cost
 around $100 per month, .

Fmva mmms—mﬁrsmmm mm remwed ann

All Lycoming students are seguired to live in- one of eight residence h
purchase the meal plan. One of our residence halls, usually Forrest. |
hﬂﬁﬂays

ﬁ#’imemaﬁom!smﬁsmau requmtaarrivem

-" mma&owﬂd mm@ medical insw

i Colleg mammwm by
B m&ams & is avadlable -2 houtd |
oatpions mﬁem&mﬁmwﬁ &

gt The Collegs pays lis student smployees $7.25 parho
ﬁmmm ywwmayeamupton.sm

!HP GRTANT IJA’!"ES ‘-’*‘g
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8-y
éﬁghn Wislza
Miéver-Siraet ;
Ozkiznde
Joha:msshugg 2182 South Afrina

" You will b_e'reg]starhq Tor-vour Falf 2015 classe when amive for.orientation i Atiguist,
To allow you to ﬁ&?ayﬁﬂr' hﬁahcja_i‘@y.fﬁé-Fall ‘di€ date, the ﬁﬂdﬁﬁgi'ﬂ EBn eStimated biﬁﬁrt‘fge‘.ibm‘estsr.

Piease kéep it mis VOUr Second Sérmester bilf #dft not inelidé the Shuder Hedkth Insuraiics
of New St dent Oriéntation Fae,
-Euft Titrie Regidsag Stutent Costs.
Tuifgn 17.600,00
Student Heglti Insuranee 1.532.00
Activityifee ‘ 85,00
Wew Student Crientation Fee 225.00
Room Rent & 776,00
Boasd 2,666.00
Leundry Feg 40,60
Testinology Fee —_— . 22500
Reésident stisgent togg) tharges . P5.148.00
Less Estimateg Finaneial Ajg:
Inbéimidtional Graps 13,000.00
Totsl Fiancig) Aid 12:000.00
e

Tetal due for resident stugent: 12,148.00

The balance is due en or befors, duly 21, 2018, Cneeyoy have regisiered fop classes, you will iave the opy
of Walling the sty dent healthinsurance providing ysy have-comparable coverage, Belowis e finic

ta waive the heaith insurance:

Lycoming ,Cﬂléya’haﬁ parfnered ‘Jﬂfi-P&Bﬁ’mnst{ ‘;‘-pfpmﬂpn-'ﬁg‘grgvjm; You and your ﬁmﬂyun‘tﬁ & mors

convenient and efficient é’j_pi'ﬁﬁd“éfsenﬁlng intemziional payments to e sehool by going fothe fink bélow,
il ean.be of furtier assistance, please |at me kitow,

&incerely,

Cindy Springman
Bursar
B70-521-4032

Student Healil vaurancs Walver Link
&ﬁp:ﬂﬁz@tswdaﬁt.ﬁomlschoo!'s.lLsfeo'mt:{QCuliege.htm

Wiring Pesment Link
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BETTER COPY OF EMAIL
DATED 12 AUG 2015
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Moroadi Cholo:a

NMSC-012

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Good Day.

Moroadi Cholota <premier@fspremier.gov.za>
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 1:11 PM
igo@diamond-hill.co.za; IGO MPAMBANI

FW: Lyco doc 2

This was the Initial request send to the Premier.

Regards:
Moroadi Cholota.

~<rom: Refiloe Mokoena [mailto:refiloe.msiza@gmail.com]

went: 17 July 2015 11:50 AM
To: premier@fspremier.gov.za
Subject: Fwd: Lyco doc 2

Dear Premier

Herewith please find the necessary documents for purposes of settling my daughter's university account.
Please note that the annual fees payable after receiving the scholarship is approximately US$24298.. The
semester amount payable before 31 July 2015 is however US$12149.00

Kindly go to the link provided in their email and use the following access code to pay namely;

Username: kagisonmsiza@ gmail.com

Password: Kagiso96.

Please acknowledge receipt and let me know if you will also be paying for her travel ling and living expenses as

well,

I take this opportunity to thank youn from the bottom of our hearts for your assistance. I have no doubt that my
daughter will make good use of this opportunity.

God Bless
Refiloe Mokoena
14704340

Sent from my iPad

Begin forwarded message:

From: Kagiso Msiza <kagisonmsiza@ gmail.com>
Date: 08 July 2015 at 9:29:52 PM SAST
To: Refiloe Mokoena <refiloe msiza @ gmail.com>

Subject: Lyco doc 2
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I chruary 18201 4

Kagiso Msiza
B Mcycr w OM
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We are pleased to offer you an Internatior
awarded on the basis of the following:
e Academic pmm:se
* Quality of courses taken
e Grades
* Results of SAT, ACT, TOE

The estimated cost to attend Lycoming Co
Tuition, room, board, fees

Less Scholarship
Approximate balance

oy

In addition, books and supplies will cost u
around $100 per month.

Future Tuition Increases—Your Scholal
time student in good academic standin
increase 3-4% per year. Because the pc¢

ek sazsrad yeMmaam ﬁhhﬂlﬂl‘t&l’llh wrill nnt i miaoerg
4




8-May-15

Kagiso Msiza
8 Meyer Street
Qaklands

Johanneasburg 2192 South Africa

NMSC-016

LYCOMING COLL

You will be registering for your Fall 2015 classes when you arrive fc
To allow you to pay your balance by the Fall due date the followin¢
Please keep in mind your second semester bill will not include the :

or New Student Orientation Fee.

Full Time Resident Student Costs

Tuition

Student Health Insurance
Activity fee

New Student Orientation Fee
Room Rent

Board

Laundry Fee

Technology Fee

Resident student total charges

Less Estimated Financial Aid:

International Grant

17,600.00
1,532.00
85.00
225.00
2,776.00
2,666.00
40.00
225.00

25,149.00

13,000.00
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Moroadi Cholota

From: Moroadi Cholota <premier@fspremier.gov.za>»

Sent: Wednesday, August 12, 2015 1:02 PM

To: 1GO MPAMBANY; igo@diamond-hill.co.za

Cc: refiloe. msiza@gmail.com; moroadicholota @gmail.com
Subject: FW: School steps

Good Day.

Herewith please find instructions for purposes of effecting payment of Kagiso's fees as discussed. Please
forward proof of payment to this email for my records and to enable me to forward to the school. Kind

Step 1- go to this link address hitp://www.peertransfer.com/school/lycoming

— Step 2- go to the login sign at the top right hand corner username: kagisonmsiza @ gmail.com
Password: Kagiso96

Step 3- click on pay now

Step 4- type in institution which Lycoming College

Step 5- type in amount Lycoming college to receive in $ and country you are paying from.

Step 6- a block will appear whereby it says fill in contact information which is the person filling out th
form

Step 7- a block will appear whereby it says fill in payment information which is the payment type.
Step 8 - a block will appear which requires student information: :

*Student ID- 0782168

* first name- Kagiso

last name - Msiza

Student emait address- kagisonmsiza @ gmail.com

*expected year of program completion - 2019

Step 9-fill in payer information and then

Click continue with payment button

Sent from Yahoo Mail on Android

Regards:

Moroadi Cholota
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5/18/2018 Webmall :: Request for Funding

Subject Request for Funding

From Moroadi Cholota <premier@fspremier.gov.zas>
To 'Ignatius Mpambani* <lgo@diamond-hill.co.za>
Date 2016-01-28 13:16

Good

Kindly find the below Details as discussed telephonicaily,

Account Name: Astra Travel

Account Number: 470179252

ABSA Bank

Cheque Account

Amount : R250 000.00 (Two Hundred and fifty thousand Rand)
Please do send the proof of payment to the above E-mail address,

Thanking you in advance,

Thank you in advance.

Warm regards:

Moroadl Cholota
Personal Assistant to Premier: Office of the Premier

Private Bag X20538

BLOEMFONTEIN
9300

e Tel: +27 (0)51 405 5942
Fex: +27 (0)51 403 3987

Fax to E Mail: +27 (0)86 215 8310

| E Mail: Rremier@ispremiergov.za
www.fs. gov.za

hups:w.sbmam.konsoleh.mza!?_ws#mil&_sctionspﬁm&_;ﬂms&_rnboxnlﬂsox

M
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5M15/2018 Webmall :: RE: Invaice

Subject  RE: Inveice

From Moroadi Cholota <premier@fspremier.gov.za>
To Ignatius Mpambani <igo@diamond-hill,co.za>
Date 2016-02-02 09:07

Afternoon.

Kindly note that the proof of payment is well received and apprecisted.
Warm regards:

Moroadi Cholots

Personal Assistant to Premier: Office of the Premier

Private Bag X20538

BLOEMFONTEIN
8388
Tel: +27 (8)51 4B5 5942
Fax: +27 (e)51 483 3987
Fax to E Mail: +27 (B)86 215 8318
E Mail:
¢ >
-----Original Message-~---
From: Ignatiug Mpambani [mailto: i : ]

Sent: 29 January 2016 84:55 PM
To: Moroadi Cholots
Subject: Re: Invoice

Received, will send Pop eccordingly, regards,

Ignatius

wrote:

salzr@Blsansmien.se oz

L W I

I~

hﬂps:!Me.bmaﬂd‘kunsoieh.co.zaf'?_taaksmsif&_acﬁmapﬁnt&_uidnss?a&_mbmwﬂox 12
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BETTER COPY OF EMAIL
DATED 28 JAN 2016
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NMSC-022

Moroadi Cholota

From: Moroadi Cholota <premier@fspremier.gov.za>
Sent: Thursday, January 28, 2016 1:17 PM

To: Ignatius Mpambani'

Subject: Request for Funding

Good Day.

Kindiy find the below Details as discussed telephonically.

Account Name: Astra Travel
Account Number: 470179252
ABSA Bank
Cheque Account
~Amount : R250 000.00 (Two Hundred and fifty thousand Rand)

Please do send the proof of payment to the above E-mail address.
Thanking you in advance.
Thank you in advance.

Warm regards:

Moroadi Cholota
Personal Assistant to Premier: Office of the Premier

*  Private Bag X20538

- BLOEMFONTEIN
ot Ve B 9300
R 5 v A Tel: +27 (0)51 405 5942
w Fax: +27 (0)51 403 3987
Fax to E Mail: +27 (0)86 215 8310
£ Mail: premier@{soremier.aov.za

www.fs . gov.za
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bladrzing

Subject  Re: Test

From moroadicholvta <totoadichalots @gmall.coms
To Tonatius Mpembsam <igo@diamand-hill,co,za>

Date 2015-04-11 09:3¢

Good morning,

I recelvad aff the proof of Payments, Thank you very much an

Thank yvou once more.

Regards:
Marosdl Choloks

Sant from Samsung Motiie

ore= Qtiginal megsage see-- -
From: Ignatiys Mpambani <Igo@diemongd-hil,co.za»
.Dats: 11/04/2015 6;35 oM {GMT+02:00)

To; moroadicholota@grmali,com

Subject: Tast

Sent from my iPhone

Waobmall :: Re: Teet

Mmmm.«msﬂmmm_mmman_mwm&_uamwmm

dmaym&gmw biess u,

NMSC-024
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Sr1pais
Tal:

Faxr
Fax to B May);

E Maii;

MWW agv 7y

<DOCO07.par>

Wabmad| Fual; Acooumt miers
*+27 (0}51 405 5043

+27 (0151 403 3087
+27 {6)86 215 8316

Mmmmmm

hlipewwshmﬂ-iJmnso!ah.cuu;‘?_:esk:maﬁ&_awon-pﬁm&_mem1&_mbmlnﬂox
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2152018 Viebimed :+ Pt Aconynt Aiimiane

Subject  Fyyefs Accouny Rumberg

From Ipeleng Maorske <morake:0233@9man.com>
Ta Ignatiys Mpamban <lgo@diamond-hif, co,za»
Date 2015-04-10 19; 19

----- = Forwarded MELEIGE crummenns

Date: Friday, April 10, 2015 P
Subzect: Anc:wnt ﬂun;bers

To: Mmletnzzm%’ <Moraielp:

Ausl Ine pls fing below ag dlscussad,

CUT STARDARD BANK
Acc no: 2404 544 a5
8Branch no: 0B5-55-3¢

Ace type: business Current aoe
Ref: student aumber or 10 np

UFS/ UCFS ABSA BANK ACC NO: 1570 153 688
BRANCH NO: 830734

REF: 505 THEN 5T UDENT NUMEER
REF: STUDENT NUMBER OR 1D no.

NWU ABSA BaNK

ACC NO: 4070099350
BRANCH NO: 832008
REF: STUDENT NUMBER
NWA! Standard bank
Act no: 330384465

Sranch: 052838
Rel: student number

Regards:

c:fmagemi.jpg>

Morgadi Cholota
Personat Assistant &n Pramier: Office of the Premier

Private Bag X20528
BLOEMFONTETN

$300
hﬂm:f&mbma&kmsmm.w_fnshmai{&_mﬁmwpm_umzzzﬁ&MxﬂﬂBﬂx <2
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NM

&202018 Webmalt:; Regqusste for payment

Subject  Regueste for pPayment
Erom Maoroad! Chojota <pmm:gr@sprm#er.gov.za>
Ta <igo®dlamond—hm,m.za>
Capy <mmkefo233@gmall.oom>
Date 2015-05-06 12:24
___H___w_ﬁ__________~—__h________“_______*—-—-—-_________m
* BOCO07.pdf (~B1 KB)

Good Day,

Following the discussion with Ibeleng Morake + Premier raguested that you pay fulf amount of R 470 000,00 and the
remelning amaunt of R3G $00.00 t6 ohe of the SRC President in Cuba,

ACCHOLDER: s.we hkate

ACC NO: 62412467805
ACCOUNT: D BaNK
AMOUNT + R30 600,00

Hope the abova is I order

Regards;
Ipsleng Maraie

mw&ffr.ibmand.kanscm.w.aaﬂ_tesk:mais&_ammnt&_uw&s11&_mbax=m803<

SC-029

4
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6/3/2018 Webmail :: Re; involces

Subfect Re: Invoices
From 1GO MPAMBAN] <mpambani@yahoo.coms>

To john.tiaks@gmait,com <John.tlaks@gmatt.com>, Iga Mpambani
<iga@diamund-hili.co.za>

Date 2015-02-03 16:41

Good day Mr, Tiaks,

There seems to bs a lie eonfusion,
Inveice 1 was for R&1m but it was paidin 2 parts (R20m in Dec and 831m in Januzary}, Therefors | can't make an invoice for R51m

(40%} and then ainother Tor R31m {part of the same 40%) unless that's what is required for administration Purposes,

As far as we arg awars, we have baen paid 40% inveice of first payments, and now (after submission of Final Report) we need 1o
invoice balance of 50%, S0 Kindly clarify, which imwices arg exactly required.

i hape you undgrstand My explanation and fing ali in order, kind regards.

lgnativs Mpambani

- Sent from Yahoo Mail for iPhane

" 1At 03 Feb 2015, 3:28:47 PM, John Matiakafa wrote:
) Good day, Mr Mpambanj :
Kindly forward vour documents in PRF format and observe the fellowing:
L. invoice 001 for R51 must be dated 02 Dec 2014
2. Invoice 002 for R31 MUust be dated 12 Jan 2018
Piease ensure that YOur invoices #it in gna page please\
I hope vou will find the above In order
Regards
Tiaks

[ ?n Tue, Feb 3, 2015 at 1:p5 PH, 1GQ MPAMBANT mpambani@yahon,com> wrote:
[

h:?ps:fmrebmait?.knnsdeh.co.zaf?_lask=mail&_safe=0&_uid=1M&MW:INEOX&_swwpﬁnt&_emnﬂ 171
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Moroadi Cholota

NMSC-033

=
From: Moroadi Cholota <premier@fspremier.gov.za>
Sent: Tuesday, August 18, 2015 9:59 AM
To: Ignatius Mpambani
Subject: RE: Payment

Good Morning.

Proof of payment received and acknowledged. Thank you very much,
Regards:

Moroadi Cholota
Personal Assistant to Premier: Office of the Premier

~Rrivate Bag 20538

BLOEMFONTEIN

9300
Tel: +27 (0)51 405 5942
Fax: +27 (0)51 403 3987

Faxto E Mail:  +27{0}86 215 8310
E Mail; premier@fspremier.gov.za

www.fs.gov.za <http://www fs.gov.za/>

_o---Original Message-----
“om: Ignatius Mpambani fmailtoigo@diamond-hill.co.zal
Sent: 17 August 2015 07:24 PM
To: Moroadi PA Premier FS
Cc: Moroadi PA Premier FS
Subject: Payment

Good day,
Kindly find the proof of payment for $4000, regards.

Ignatius Mpambani
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Moroadi Cholota

"~ =
From: Moroadi Cholota <premier@fspremier.gov.za>
Sent: Tuesday, September 01, 2015 1:21 PM
To: Ignatius Mpambani
Subject: RE: Payment Notification from *DIAMOND HILL TRADING 71_NGJD2YPC
Good Day,

Please note that the Proof of payment is received.

Regards:

Moroadi Cholota
Parsonal Assistant to Premier: Office of the Premier
- " Private Bag X20538

“ ' BLOEMFONTEIN

E },*:W T,:,{ . 9300

{BY <y Tel: +27 (0)51 405 5942
. N ) Fax: +27 (0)51 403 3987
Fax to E Mail: +27 (0)86 215 8310
€ Mail: premier@fspramier.qov.za
www fs.gov.2a

From: Ignatius Mpambani [mailto:igo@diamond-hilt.co.za]

Sent: 01 September 2015 12:29 PM

To: ipeleng.morake@fspremier.gov.za

Subject: Fwd: Payment Notification from *DIAMOND HILL TRADING 71_NGID2YPC

Sent from my iPhone

<"=gin forwarded message:

From: <Paymentsemail @fnb.co.za>

Date: 01 September 2015 at 12:13:30 SAST

To: <IGO@DIAMOND-HILL.CO.ZA>

Subject: Payment Netification from *DIAMOND HILL TRADING 71_NGJD2YPC
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Moroadi Cholota

From: Moroadi Cholota <premier@fspremier.gov.za>
Sent: Tuesday, July 26, 2016 3:11 PM

To: Kenny Mtwentufa

Subject: RE: Sedrade : Payment

Noted.

Regards:

Ty PR R, Moroadi Cholota
on g Personal Assistant to Premier: Office of the Premier
Private Bag X20538

. BLOEMFONTEIN
! 9300
;. Tel: +27 (0)51 405 5942
Fax: +27 (0)51 403 3987
"¢ FaxtoEMail:  +27 (0)86 215 8310
g E Mail: premier@fspremier.gov.za
e '1 A www.fs.gov.za

From: Kenny Mitwentula [mailto:kenny@robsinvestment.co.za]
Sent: 26 July 2016 02:27 PM

To: "Ashney - Sedtrade

Ce: premier@fspremier.gov.za; moroadicholota@gmail.com
Subject: Sedrade : Payment

Importance: High

Good Day Ashney
Please find attached proof of payment.

~Mind Regards
Kenny Miwentula
Financial Manager
Robs Investment Holdings (Pty) Ltd
Tel: +27 58 713 2187 :
Fax: +27 58 713 2907
F2E: +27 86 403 6005
Cell: +27 60 960 6257
E-mail: kenny @robsinvestiment.co.2a
Website: www.robsinvestment.co.za
Address: Factory 113 Sie 124, Industnal Area 3, Phuthadiyhaba, 9866

Eapiipes

VS TRGMTY HGLOHNES CPTY) LT,

NMSC-037

e —————————

Adobe Acrobat Reader will be nesdad 1o visw Fobs Investment ' slacironically ransmitied doocumenis. Shouid you not have Adobs Acrobat Feader

installed, you can download it free of charge from hitp//www.adobe. com/products/acrobat/readsten?. hitmi

1



NMSC-038

Disctaimer:

This message and any attachment is intended onlyior the use of the Addresssee and may contain information that is PRIVILEGED and CONFIDENTIAL
If you are not the Intended recipiant, you are hereby noiified that any dissemination of this communication is striclly prohibited. If you have received this
communication in error, please erase ali copies of the messags and its attachments and notify us immediately. Any views exprassed in this message are
those of the individual sender, except where the sender specifically states them fo ba the view of the entily transmitting the message. Robs nvesiment
Holdings does not consent to its employees sending nen-soficiied emails which contravane the law. In the event that you fee! this emall is such, please
notify Robs Investment Hoidings in order for the appropriate comective acion to be taken.

The sender of ihis email is expressly required not to make any defamatory statements. Any such communication is contrary to company policy and

From: Ashney - Sedtrade [mailto:ashney@sedtrade.co.za)
Sent: 26 July 2016 09:58

To: kenny@robsinvestment.co.za

Subject: INVOICE

Good morning

Kindly find herewith the attached invoice as requested.

o
Thank you
Should you require any further information, please do not hesttate to contact the under signed
Kind regards
Ashney Makhoba
#& SEDTRAD
il.... PSLSTAINARIT  EXNGIMEFARN DIVIiOBMENTS
Sedtrade (Pty) Ltd
Tel. 010 590 8086 ~
Fax no: 086 530 4002
Email: ashney@sedirade.co.2a
Web: hitp.//www.sedtrade.co.za

This email is considered a business record and is therefore property of Sedtrade (Pty) Lid.
This email. and any files transmitted with it are confidential and are intended solely for the
use of the individual or entity to whom they are addressed. This communication represents

Disclaimer: the ofiginator's personal views and opinions. whic}} do not necessarily reflect those of

’ Sedtrade (Pty) Lid. if you are not the eriginal recipient or the person responsible for

delivering the emall to the intended recipient. be advised that you have this email in error,
and that any use, dissemination, forwarding, printing, or copying of this email is strictly
prohibitad.

From: c364e@sedtrade.co.za {mailto:-c364e@sedtrade.coAza}
Sent: Tuesday, July 26, 2016 10:05 AM
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Moroadi Cholota

From:
Sent:
To:

Ce:
Subject:

Good Day.

Moroadi Cholota < premier@fspremier.gov.za>

Wednesday, July 27, 2016 2:47 PM

" Paseka Mosole (paseka@sacr.fs.gov.za)
mmathaboleeto@gmail.com
Guests to be placed at the President and Premier's Table

NMSC-041

Below are the Premier’s Guests: | will also call them to double check if they were not approached by other Departments.

FULL NAMES CONTACTS
1. Bernard Magabe 082 323 3488
2, Tiale Mokgadi 083 293 4115
3. Shantan Reddy 083 4523123
4. Hantsi Mayeza 083 741 5553
5. Reggy Mutsi 082 495 1062 .
6. Rakgadi Ovuko 082 455 9309
7. Docky Rantshoareng_ 083 468 2835
8. Freddy Kennedy 082 652 2554

9. Ntate Buthelezi

082 674 4879 / 078 678 5250

10. Ntate Mashinini 083 305 1905
11. Max Tshabala 083 330 6329
12. Ricky Mkhonto 082 780 9394
13. Tumi Moletsane 076 688 1688
14. Igo Mpambani 079 161 4943

15. Lesole Mogorosi

082 903 (206 {Confirmed that he is not avaiiable)

16. Patrick Phuthi

072 088 8691

17. Deena Pillay

082 491 1744
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GO ABSA

Absa Online: Notice of Payment 17 March 2015

Dear ROBS INVESTMENT HOLDINGS (PTY)LTD

Subject: Notice Of Payment: Monash University
Please be advised that you made a payment to Monash University as indicated below.

Transaction number: B803263DBFE-1
Payment date: 2015-03-17

Payment made from: ROBS INVESTMENT
Payment made to: Monash University
Beneficiary bank name: FIRSTRAND
Beneficiary account number, 62062732485

Bank branch code: 2549805

For the amount of: 50,000.00

Immediate interbank payment : Y

Reference on beneficiary statement: 26974878 Pule

Additional comments by payer.

Please remember that the following apply to Absa Online payments to non-ABSA bank accounts.

«  Payments made on weekdays before 15:30 will be credited to the receiving bank account by midnight of

the same day.
«  Payments made on weekdays afler 15:30 will be credited by midnight of the following day.
»  Payments made on a Saturday, Sunday or Public holiday will be credited to the account by midnight of the

1st following waekday.

If you need more information or assisiance, please call us on 08600 03600 or +27 11 501 5110
{Interationat calis).
if you have made an incorrect internet banking payment, please send an email to digital@absa.co.za

Yours sincerely
General Manager: Digital Channels

This document is intended for use by the addressee and is privileged and confidential. If the transmission
has been misdirected to you, please contact us immediately. Thank you.

Mernber of / Lid van
& BARCLAYS

Absa Bank LimRed Reg Mo 1988/004784/00 Authotizsed Financiat Services and Registered Credit Provider Reg No NCRCP? Company Information:

wiww.ahsa.co.28
Absa Bank Beperk Reg No 1988/004784/08 Gemagtipde Finansiledignste- en Geregistreerde Kradietverskaffer Reg No NCRCP7 Maatskappy-migting:

wwwi shea 60 79
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NOTIFICATION OF PAYMENT
To Whom It May Corneern:

First National Bank hereby confirms that the following payment instruction has been received

Date Actioned . 2015/09/01
Time Actioned © 11:56:583
Trace ID 1 NGJD2YPC
Payer Details
Payment from : *"DIAMOND HILL TRADING 71
Cur/Amount 1 ZAR100C00.00
Payee Detalls
S acipienttAccount no. :..810787
Name . GRIFFiN EDGE
Bank . STANDARD BANK OF S.A.
Branch Code 1 051001
Reference : 2015/8/A01 41000016
END OF NOTIFICATION

To authenticate this Payment Notification, please visit the First National Bank website at www.fnb.co.za, select Contact Us & Tools at the top right hand
side of the page, followed by the Verify Payment Notification fink and follow the on-screen instructions.

Our customer (the payer) has raquested FirstRand Bank Limited to send this notification of payment to you. Should you have any queries regarding the
contents of this notice, pteése contact the payer. FirstRand Bank Limited dees not guarantee or warrant the accuracy and integrity of the information and
data transmitied electronically and we accept no liabitity whatsocever for any loss, expense, claim or damage, whether direct, indirect or consequential,
arising from the transmission of {he information and data.

Disclaimer;

The information contained in this e-mail is confidential and may confain proprietary information. it is meant solely for the intended recipient. Accass to this
~Sxmait by anyone else is unauthorised. if you are not the intended recipient, any disclosure, copying, distribution or any action taken or omitted in refiance
- this, is prehibited and may be unlawful .No ability or responsibility is accepled if information or data is, far whatever reason corrupled or doss not

reach its intended recipient. No warranty is given that this e-mail is free of viruses. The views expressed in this e- mail are, unless otherwise stated, those

of the author and not those of FirstRand Bank Limited or its management. FirstRand Bank Limited reserves the right to monitar, iniercept and biock e-

rmaits addressed fo its users or take any other action in accordance with its e-mail use policy. Licensed divisions of FirstRand Bank Limited are authorised

financial service providers In terms of the Financial Advisory and intermediary Services Act 37 of 2002,

FirstRand Bank Directors: LL Dippenaar (Chairman), SE Nxasana (CEQ), VW Sartiet, JJH Bester, JP Burger (Deputy CEC), MS Bomela, P Cooper (Alternateg L. Crouse,
JJ Durand, GG Gelink, PM Goss, NN Gwagwa, PK Harris, WR Jarding, HS Kellar, RM Loubser, EG Matenge-Sebesho, AT Nzimande, D Prernnarayen {india), KB Schoaman,
8J van der Ross, JH van Greuning, Company Secretary: C Low

First National Bank, a division of FirstRand Bank Limited. Reg No.1929/001225/06,
An Authorised Financial Services and Cradit Provider (NCRCP20).
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NOTIFICATION OF PAYMENT

To Whom It May Concern;

First National Bank hereby confirms that the following payrnent instruction has been received

Date Actioned . 2015/08/31
Time Actioned . 09:47:24
Trace ID . MSQL2WPC
Payer Details
Payment from . Y605 CONSULTING SOLUTIONS
Cur/Amount . ZARZ00000.00
Payes Details
“cipient/Account ne. - ..810787
Nams : GRIFFIN EDGE (PTY}
Bank : STANDARD BANK OF S.A,
Branch Code : 05HOMH
Reference © 2015/8/A14-000016
END OF NOTIFICATION

To authenticate this Payment Notification, please visit the First National Bank website at www.fnb.co.za, sefect Contact Us & Tools at the top right hand
side of the page, foltowed by the Verify Payment Notification fink and foliow the on-screen instructions.

Our customer (the payer) has requested FirstRand Bank Limited 1o send this notification of payment to you. Should you have any gqueries regarding the
contents of this nolice, please confact the payer. FirstRand Bank Limited does nel guarantee or warrant the accuracy and integrity of the information snd
data transmitted electronically and we accept ne liabilily whatsoever for any loss, expense, claim or damage, whether direct, indirect or consequential,
arising from the fransmission of the information and data,

Discilaimer:
The information contained in this e-mail is confidential and may contain praprietary information. It fs meant solely for the intended recipient. Access to this

~&-maii by anyone else is unauthorised. If you are nof the intended recipient, any disclosure, copying, distribution or any action taken or omitted in reliance
t this, is prohibited and may be unlawful No liability or responsibility is sccepted if information or data is, for whatever reason corrupted or does not
reach its intended recipient. No warranty is given thaf this e-mail is free of viruses. The views expressed in this e- mail are, unless otherwise stated, those
of the author and not those of FirstRand Bank Limited or its management. FirstRand Bank Limited reserves the right to monitor, intereept and block e-
mails addressed to its users or take any other action in accordance with lis e-mail use policy. Licensed divisions of FirstRand Bank Limited are authorised
financial service providers in terms of the Financial Advisory and intermediary Services Act 37 of 2002,

FirstRand Bank Directors: 1L Dihpenaar {Chairman), SE Nxasana (CEQ), VW Barllatt, JJH Baster, JP Burgsr (Deputy CED}, MS Bomela, P Caoper {Alternate), . Crouss,
JJ Durand, GG Gelink, PM Goss, NN Gwagwa, PK Haris, WR Jardine, HS Kellan, RM Loubser, EG Matenge-Sebesho, AT Nzimande, I Pramnarayen (India), KB Schoeman,

BJ van der Ross, JH van Greuning, Company Secretary: € Low

First National Bank, a division of FirstRand Bank Limited. Reg Mo, 1$29/001225/06.
An Authorised Financial Services and Credit Provider (INGRCP20).
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73A Erfdeel Crescent te ms
Pellissier
Bloemfantein Tel: +27 (Q) 81 779 4831
9300
Fax: +27 (0} 86 600 0476
DATE: D4 May 2015
BILL. TO:

= | NAME: Premier’s Depariment (Free State)

ADDRESS: Lebohang Building

Cnr. Markgraaf & St Andrews Sir., BEN

ATT: Miss. Epileng Morake

TEL: +27 {0) 53 405 5496 / 27 {0) 51 403 3430

FAX: +27 (0) 51 405 4803

DSCRIPTION | SPECIFICATIONS

QUANTITY

UNIT PRICE

AMOUNT

ivi-TAG 700

7" display, 1024*600 IP5
intel BayTrail Z3735G
1.83GHz

HDD :32GB

1GB DDR3L

3G,

Camera: Front 0.3/2M, Rear
2I5M

)
|

200pcs

R 2,350.00

R 470,000.00

R470,000.00

| BANK DETAILS: = .
1 N
 ACCOUNT NAME. j  GSMCT SOLUTIONS {PTY) LTD

o T

ACCQUNT T’?PE

ST

= ACCOUNT NUMBER 24080 4945
I BRANCHNAME - b: : BRANDWAG'
: BRANCHED cams tfas:L ﬂl _-‘




NMSC-050




NMSC-051

€0°L9L L69Y - IViOoL
T6'PC9 9 U - 540N
ULp0 91T Y : 1nd

00°S60 9EY-NOLLNLILSNI LNIY3IIHIa

00°560 95y 1101

00'S88 T Y TZLLTTES S¥90T 4960 QYvYaONYLS VSINN | 288££7kZ20 ATvYNOJ IHLIHIOW

0O0TPTTY | 968THTHIZ S00Z£9 | SYET980ES vsav ALISBIAINN TYVYA | 92v09Z65L0 OWOHXYY IIOHNOW

00'008 Z2Y S9¥STT £T9Z8EY €2/5192S QYVANVLS VSOONVW | 0T/62¥pE80 | HL3IGVZI13 ONISNGIT VII10N
HIANAN NOILNLILSNI

INNOWY | 3ION3IY343Y | 300 HONVYY 20V WNVI 30 JNVYN DVINGD SINVN

JONVLSISSY TVIONVNIJ G31S3ND3IF OHM SIN3IANLS



NMSC-051.1

26'vZS €S2 d

Sd¥S DNIONVLISIO NYSEIND SiHd 2o ETABI ¥ CEETE BT ¥ EPBSO0ETL 112
00000 9T & 0000091 E  OberOTZIOY sS4

00’000 0C ¥ 00'000 0T ¥ DOYLBTETOE 54N

Ly TN OT LT 13}

ANNIM HIA AS 03H3443Y D0'SER S 4 DD'SES 9 8-T1T-E6YE VSING
ooPISYV Y 00vIStY Y ALISHIAING HLIM

00orPIIT l ooore It W30 Lno

O3AVd 38 $334 HiTHL LYHL Q3153034 H3IWFEd U3 NI GILTHDIH 007986 Ty ¥

i

STOZ 5334

HIBWNN LNIQNLS W10l

NF A URER B

£0TvBERELO
VIOLBBITLO

RETBLEZELD
STTESTERLO

ALISHANIND SHUVLIA LOVINGD

o4

QivHl
OlvHil
ONYADE
4e
OT13HLHd
VMSITEA

FNVYN

IVLOL

EREEFENN L
INVSLYSL 6
YIORIoW &

INVEYIL £
OHOHYWN 2
3|a3s s
O80EN v
LAy £

FNVNYI



NMSC-052




NMSC-053

2" floor, Hillside House

17 Empire Road,

Parktown

Johannesburg

2193

Tel (International): +27 (10) 214-0651
Tel (Tollfree): 0800 222 097

Email: inquiries@sastatecapture.org.za
Web: www.sastatecapture.org.za

JUDICIAL COMMISSION OF INQUIRY INTO ALLEGATIONS OF STATE CAPTURE,
CORRUPTION AND FRAUD IN THE PUBLIC SECTOR INCLUDING ORGANS OF STATE

NOTICE IN TERMS OF RULE 3.3

TO : MS MOROADI CHOLOTA
CELL : 082 051 4326
EMAIL : moroadicholota@gmail.com

IN TERMS OF RULE 3.3 OF THE RULES OF THE JUDICIAL COMMISSION OF
INQUIRY INTO ALLEGATIONS OF STATE CAPTURE, CORRUPTION AND FRAUD
IN THE PUBLIC SECTOR INCLUDING ORGANS OF STATE (“THE COMMISSION”),
YOU ARE HEREBY GIVEN NOTICE THAT:

1  The Commission’s Legal Team intends to present the evidence of Mr Mxolisi Dukoana
(“Mr Dukoana™) at its hearing held at 4™ Floor, Hill on Empire, 16 Empire Road,
Parktown, Johannesburg. The presentation of Mr Dukoana’s evidence will commence
on 27 and 28 August 2019 at 10h00, or so soon thereafter as his evidence may be heard.
In the event of a change of date, it will be announced on the Commission’s website
(www.sastatecapture.org.za) and in the media. The evidence in question implicates or

may implicate you in unlawful, illegal or improper conduct in the respects set out below.

2  The allegations set out in the evidence of Mr Dukoana implicate or may implicate you
in, inter alia, allegedly participating in various acts of corruption, bribery, fraud and

money laundering.

3 The relevant portions of the statement of Mr Dukoana which implicate or may implicate
you in the above allegations are annexed hereto marked “A”. Your attention is drawn to

paragraphs 37 to 56 of his statement.
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3.1 The relevant extracts of the annexures of Mr Dukoana’s statement which
implicate or may implicate you in the above allegation are annexed hereto
marked “B”. Your attention is drawn to pages 39 to 124 thereof.

Due to the fact that you are implicated or may be implicated by the evidence of Mr
Dukoana, you are entitled to attend the hearing to be scheduled, at which that evidence
IS being presented. You are also entitled to be assisted by a legal representative of your
choice when that evidence is presented. The full statement of Mr Dukoana will be
uploaded on the Commission’s website (Www.Sastatecapture.org.za) as soon as he

concludes his evidence. The transcript will be uploaded daily.
If you wish to:

5.1 give evidence yourself;

5.2 call any witness to give evidence on your behalf; or
5.3 cross-examine the witness

then you must apply, within fourteen (14) calendar days of this notice, in writing to the

Commission for leave to do so.

An application referred to in paragraph 5 above must be submitted to the Secretary of the
Commission. The application must be submitted with a statement from you in which you
respond to the witness’ statement insofar as it implicates you. The statement must
identify what parts of the witness statement are disputed or denied and the grounds on

which they are disputed or denied.

In the event that you believe that you have not been given a reasonable time from the
issuance of this notice to the date on which the witness is to give evidence as set out
above and you are prejudiced thereby, you may apply to the Commission in writing for

such order as will ensure that you are not seriously prejudiced.
Please take note that even if you do not make an application under Rule 3.4:

8.1 in terms of Rule 3.10, the Chairperson may, at any time, direct you to respond
in writing to the allegations against you or to answer (in writing) questions

arising from the statement; and
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8.2 in terms of Regulation 10(6) of the Regulations of the Judicial Commission of
Inquiry into Allegations of State Capture, Corruption and Fraud in the Public
Sector including Organs of State GN 105 of 9 February 2018 published in
Government Gazette 41436, as amended, the Chairperson may direct you to
appear before the Commission to give evidence which has a bearing on a matter

being investigated.

9  The extracts of the witness statement provided to you are confidential. Your attention is
drawn to Regulations 11(3) and 12(2)(c) governing the Commission, which make it a
criminal offence for anyone to disseminate or publish, without the written permission of
the Chairperson, any document (which includes witnesses’ statements) submitted to the

Commission by any person in connection with the Commission’s inquiry.

10 Any response, affidavit or statement in regard to this notice must be sent to Advocate
André Lamprecht and Shannon van Vuuren at secretary@commissionsc.org.za.

DATED AT PARKTOWN ON THIS 1t DAY OF AUGUST 2019

MS K B SHABALALA

Acting Secretary

Judicial Commission of Inquiry into Allegations
of State Capture, Corruption and Fraud

in the Public Sector including Organs of State
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IN THE COMMISSION ON STATE CAPTURE
HELD IN JOHANNESBURG

BEFORE DEPUTY CHIEF JUSTICE RM ZONDO

EVID E OF:
MXOLISI DUKOANA
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A. INTRODUCTION

I, the undersigned,
MXOLISI DUKQANA

do hereby make oath and say:

1. | am a deponent to this statement and reside in Welkom, Free State Province. My
background and my experience in government and the ruling party were set out in

detail in my first affidavit before the Commission.

2. The facts set out in this statement are within my personal knowledge and belief,
unless stated otherwise or the context of what | declare makes the contrary apparent,

and are to the best of my knowledge and belief both true and correct,

3. To the extent that | make submissions of a legal nature in this statement, | do so on
the basis of the counsel obtained in the course of preparation of this statement from
my legal representatives, and which counsel | verily accept to be the correct legal

position.

4. This is my second appearance at the Commission having so appeared on 5 April
2019, detailing the circumstances around my visits to the Gupta Compound, Sahara

and Oakbay offices.

Page 2 | 34
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37.

38.

39.

40.

NM?28

36.8. International scholarship programme; and

36.9. Concilusion.

ASBESTOS ERADICATION AUDIT:

ASBESTOS HEIST

The Free State Department of Human Settlement ("“the FSDHS") obtained an
unsolicited proposal to eradicate asbestos roofs on houses within the province from

Blackhead Consulting and Diamond Hill JV.

The history of asbestos and its health hazards are known apartheid spatial
development legacy. It is therefore apposite that | speak about this project by making
reference or taking the Commission through a 53-paged document that resulted in
the unlawful and corruptly spending of approximately R2565m by the FSDHS. | annex
hereto marked “2DM 5” a copy of the final audit report prepared on behalf of

Blackhead Consulting and Diamond Hill JV by Mr IP Mpambani (Mr Mpambani).

Unfortunately, Mr Mpambani was mercilessly gunned down in Sandton on 22 June

2017. 1 knew him well as a young man educated abroad and a potential talent for the

benefit of the country.

Although he is late, his business partner, one Mr Edwin Sodi (Mr Sodi), is alive and

should be subpoenaed by the Commission to explain the genesis of this project.
Page 12 | 34
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41.

42.

43.

NMS?B

There are legal proceedings instituted against the estate of Mpambani by Sodi at the
High Court, Gauteng Local Division, Johannesburg. | understand that the amount in
issue is the last payment of R77m (part of R255m) that was advanced by FSDHS to
Black Consulting and Diamond Hill JV and unduly appropriated by the late Mr

Mpambani. It would be in the interest of the Commission to obtain from the High Court

papers concerning this litigation.

First of all, there was no compliance with s 217(2) of the Constitution by the FSDHS
in its approval of this project. On 2 December 2014, Mokhesi (HOD of Free State
Human Settlement) addressed a letter Sodi appointing Blackhead Consulting (Pty)
Ltd JV to perform the audit and assessment of asbestos of housing units in the Free
State for R 255m. The period to undertake the audit and assessment of asbestos of
housing units was between 1 December 2014 to 31 March 2015 or earlier. | annex

hereto marked “2DM 6” a copy of the appointment letter and “2DM 7” being a copy

of the service level agreement.

The letter of appointment followed a 5-paged proposal from Sodi dated 28 May 2014
for the “REQUEST FOR APPOINTMENT ON RISK: AUDIT AND ASSESSMENT,
HANDLING OF HAZARDOUS MATERIAL (REMOVAL) AND DISPOSAL OF
ASBESTOS-CONTAMINATED RUBBLE IN THE FREE STATE PROVINCE”. For
ease of reference, | annex hereto marked “2DM 8” a copy of the proposal that

culminated in the Free State government paying R255m for a 5-paged proposal.

This project was a brazen act of corruption executed by state officials in concert with

business persons at the behest of the Premier of Free State, Magashule at the time.

Page 13 | 34
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Mr Mpambani was in constant communication with the personal assistant of Premier
Magashule, one Ms Moroadi Cholota (Ms Cholota). Ms Cholota would communicate
on behalf of Magashule onerous requests or instructions with substantial financial
implications no business entity could sustain in its commercial well-being. For ease
of reference, | annex hereto marked “2DM 97, “2DM 107, “2DM 11", “2DM 12”,
“2DM 13” as copies of the emails between Ms Cholota to Mr Mpambani. It would be
noted that in some of the emails, one Ms Ipeleng Morake (Ms Morake} from the Office

of the Premier features prominently in executing instructions on behalf of Magashule

via Ms Cholota.

It is apparent from the emails between Ms Cholota and Mr Mpambani that payments
were advanced for every onerous request that was made to Mr Mpambani on behalf
of Magashule. As evinced in the said emails, at all material times thereto, the official
emails of Ms Cholota and Ms Morake were used to communicate requests and

acknowledge payments of monies and executing instructions at the behest of

Magashule.

An inference could be drawn that each time payment was advanced to Blackhead
Consulting JV by the FSDHS, Ms Cholota or Ms Morake were informed, undoubtedly
both would inform Magashule, followed by an onerous request or instruction to Mr

Mpambani, resulting in the latter making payments as requested or instructed by

Magashule.
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47. Magashule was simply a “blesser” to many, due to payments advanced by Mr
Mpambani from monies corruptly and fraudulently sourced from the state coffers
through the asbestos project. At the behest of Magashule, Mr Mpambani paid sums

of monies for some students studying through various universities here and abroad.

48. A notable request is that of one Ms Refiloe Mokoena, who at some point was an
Acting Judge at the High Court, Free State Division, Bloemfontein. Her financial
request was for her daughter who was studying abroad. At the behest of Magashule,

Ms Cholota communicates to Mr Mpambani and Ms Mokoena’s request was

honoured in dollars.

48. Ms Mokoena is a suspended Head of Legal Department at SARS and | am advised

her suspension is allegedly connected to advancing the interests of the Gupta owned

entities.

50. Evinced from the emails between Ms Cholota and Mr Mpambani, all the requests or
instructions originated from Magashule. An inference could be drawn that the
asbestos audit was but an asbestos audit heist sponsored by the Premier of the Free
State government (Magashule). The asbestos audit heist was executed through the
Premier’s office by Magashule’s personal assistant employed by government at the
behest of Magashule. This was not only a biatant abuse of power by Magashule but
a brazen commission of fraud, money laundering and day light robbery of the public

purse.
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51.

52.

NMS%

Mr Sodi, as business partner of Mr Mpambani, owes this Commission and the people
of Free State a detailed account of how he financially benefited from this asbestos
audit heist. Mr Sodi as a business pariner to Mr Mpambani ought to have known
some of the intricacies involving this cash heist committed at the constructive

knowledge of Magashule as Premier of the Free State at the time.
To demonstrate that Mr Sodi knows about this asbestos heist the following is noted

52.1. On or around 24 March 2015, Mr Sodi and Mr Mpambani exchanged emails

regarding persons who have been paid form this asbestos heist and they

termed the payments as “costs of business”.

52.2. |annex hereto marked “2DM 14" a copy of the spreadsheet as an attachment

to emails exchanged by Mr Mpambani and Mr Sodi.

52.3. From the spreadsheet the following persons were paid according to emails

between Mr Mpambani and Mr Sodi:

52.3.1. TZ is believed to be Mr Thabane Zulu who at the time was the

Director-General of National Department of Human Settlement;

52.3.2. TM is believed to be Mr Thabo Mokhesi who is the Head of

Department of Human Settlement in the Free State;
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52.3.3.

52.34.

52.3.5.

52.3.6.

52.3.7.

52.3.8.

52.3.9.

52.3.10.

52.3.11.

52.3.12.

NMSC])?

AM is believed to be Ace Magashule who was Premier of Free State

at the time;

OM is believed to be Olly Mlamleli who was the MEC for Corporative

Governance and Human Settlement in the Free State;

Mastertrade is believed to be a company domiciled in Gauteng (the

Commission’s investigators can make further investigations about its

details);
Others are unknown persons;
Martin is unknown;
Steve is unknown;
Ranta is unknown;
JT is unknown but is believed to be Jimmy Tau;
Diedricks is unknown; and

Blackhead and Diamond Hill (have already been described).
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53.

54.

55.

56.

57.

58.

NMSC}(gl

| submit that the involvement of Magashule in this asbestos audit heist makes him
unfit to hold public office or the office of the Secretary-General of the ANC,
Magashule’s suitable place of abode in public is a jail cell, If our law enforcement

agencies were well-oiled, Magashule and all those aided and abetted this asbestos

audit heist should be doing time in jail.

To date, no eradication of asbestos roofs has been carried out in any township in the
Free State to asbestos roofed houses and yet R255m has been advanced to
Blackhead Consulting JV and R77m of the state funds is a subject of a litigation in

our courts and our law enforcement agencies are doing nothing.

| invite the Commission to investigate and subpoena the Head of the Department of
FSDHS, Mr Thabo Mokhesi, the Chief Finance Officer of FSDHS at the time, the

head of supply chain at FSDHS and the MEC of Human Settlement at the time.

Magashule, as Premier at the time, Ms Cholota and Ms Morake should be no
exceptions. The MEC of Finance in the Free State at the time and Head of Treasury

at the time have some explanation to do.

Ms Mokoena should come to the Commission to explain the circumstances that led

her to request funding from Magashule for her daughter's education abroad.

The office of the Auditor-General in the Free State would be a great resource to the
Commission. The Commission and the people of South Africa, in particular the Free

State deserve to know the truth about this asbestos audit heist.
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119. | have spoken to a number of government officials in the Free State province and

they are eager to provide information or render assistance to the Commission. Their

only fear is that there is no independent vehicle through which they could be of

assistance to the Commission.

MXOLISI DUKOANA

| hereby certify that the deponent knows and understands the contents of
this statement and thatit is to the best of the deponent’'s knowledge both true

and correct.

\

LR~

COMMISSIONER OF OATHS

TAKALANI MADIMA (S.c)
Practising Advocate .
{QFSA JHB Chambers
(‘:;or_nmlssioner of Daths Ex Officio.
rindrod Tower, 84 Protea Place
Sandown 2193 |

Tel: 011 320-0600
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Acronyms and definitions will have the meanings as specified herein for the purpose of
understanding the context and contents of this document only.

1.1. Acronym

PRT BLACKHEAD CONSULTING JV (Professional Resource Team)
PM  Project Management

PBS Product Breakdown Structure

PP  Project Plan

PI Professional Indemnity

TBD To Be Determined

WBS Work Breakdown Structure

WP  Work Package

FSPG Free State Provincial Government
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Project Background

Blackhead Consulting and Diamond Hill formed a Joint Venture and were appointed
by the Free State Department of Human Settlement as Blackhead Consulting JV to
assess and quantify the entire stock of low density residential housing accommodation
roofed with asbestos in the Free State Province with the ultimate aim of eradicating

these asbestos roofs.

The assessment results will enable the Department to formulate a plan to replace the
affected roofs with environmentally friendly roof covering to guarantee the citizens of
Free State a healthier livelihoods and an improved quality of life.

Methodology

Blackhead Consulting JV was elected to use a Global Positioning System of geo-
referencing of stands that is web-based. This system is premised on mobile devices
(tablet PCs), GIS software packages, GPS system and ArcGIS Server Mobile SDK,
riding on wireless communication and a spatial database. .

Field workers within the area of works were trained and employed to take the images
of asbestos houses using mobile devices, which in turn synchronises with the
Mastartrade232 server to store the images, which are then processed and quality
controlled via a Structural Assessment template. The whole system then later
generates individual reports for each house, which is then analysed and interpreted for
results. A hard copy of the houses containing asbestos will be made available to the
Department, however, the information submitted on hard copy will also be available

electronically.
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Field findings

Out of a total of all the Free State townships assessed via site visits, The following

were discovered.

The actual number of residential units that contains asbestos could only be quantified
after the physical audit has been done, however the audited and counted number of
residential units containing asbestos is 38 303 Stands and the stands waiked and

physically and assessed is +300 000.

Options to cater for repairs will be developed in detail on phase two of the works,
however recommendations highlighting the advantages and drawbacks of each option

is indicated as follows.

A preliminary cost for each option will also be developed. Typical house-plans
(generic) which have been used mostly in the areas will captured per District

Municipality and used to develop the preliminary cost estimate for each option.

The purpose of this report is to make information available to the Free State Provincial
Government regarding number of houses that contains asbestos and to give an
indication on the structural status of the units per stand within the allocated scope of
300 000 residential stands as follows:

+ The number of Residential Units per stand that contains Asbestos Roof.
o The type of existing roof.

» Existing house typologies.

e Defects documented.

* Repairs for remedial work.

» Estimated value of the remedial works

¢ Recommendations
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2. INTRODUCTION

The bill of rights in the supreme legislation of South Africa, the Constitution of the
Republic of South Africa, 1996 (Act 108 of 1996), Sections 26 entrenches the right of
South African citizens to have access to adequate housing.

The Constitution makes it incumbent upon the State to take reascnable legislative and
other measures within its available resources to achieve the progressive realization of

this right.

The Free State Provincial Government has tasked the Free State Department of
Human Settlements to embark on a project to eradicate asbestos roofs from all

housing accommodation in Free State.

Health implications associated with exposure to airborne asbestos fibres were first
highlighted in the 1930’s and specific links to certain cancers were made in South
Africa in the early 1960s, however products containing asbestos continued to be used
in housing for non- white South Africans during the Apartheid era.

Old township houses that were buiit by the previous era have subsequently been
transferred into the ownership of the inhabitants. This property transfer also meant the
transfer of risks and liabilities that come with home ownership.

The health risk of living in asbestos roofed houses was thus also transferred to the
beneficiaries of these properties. A very large number of such houses were transferred
to indigent people who rely solely on Government Pensions, Grants and a number of
other forms of Government assistance. They thus hardly have money for home
insurance or money for maintenance and repairs to their properties let alone money to
replace the entire roof structures to protect themselves and their families from

diseases caused by exposure to asbesfos fibre.
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3. BACKGROUND

In 2008 the Government of South Africa banned the use of ashestos sand asbestos
fibre in any product. This ban was a refiection of the commitment of the Government to

creating better lives for the people of South Africa.

As a component of this commitment the Free State Provincial Government (FSPG)
acknowledges that a large number of township houses, hostels and flats delivered by
the government of the past were roofed with asbestos roof sheets.

Regulations for the prohibition of the use, manufacturing, import and export of
ashestos and asbestos containing materials formed part of the Environment

Conservation Act of 1989.

FSPG has looked at its financial position and has tasked the Department of Human
Settlements to conduct an audit on housing stock roofed with asbestos / products
containing asbestos fibre per residential stand. The audit will allow us to quantify the
entire stock in the Province which will enable us to devise a plan and cost to replace
the affected roofs with environmentally friendly roof covering to guarantee the citizens
of the Free State Province a healthier livelihoods and an improved quality of life.

The terms of reference for assessment of asbestos roofed houses/ stand will provide
guidance on efforts aimed at appropriate planning, process management and
replacement of affected roofs in the province. The strategy will further assist in building
and strengthening strategic relationships with municipalities in Free State




Access to quality, sustainable housing is entrenched in our Constitution and Breaking New
Ground Strategy and thus is an important aspect of redressing (deliberate) deficiencies of the

past in our country.

The Department is aware that the roll out for the asbestos eradication project has the
possibility to open us up to opportunistic litigation based on possible health conditions. These
cases can be highly sensitive and the issues can be factually and legaily immensely

complicated.

In anticipation of this the Department will use existing legal structures to assist when such
cases arise. The services of a reputable legal firm preferably with experience in this area of
asbestos related litigation should be sought.

It is beyond reasonable doubt that the Free State Government is being pro-active in
addressing this matter, of which the assessment of residential units per stand containing
asbestosis is the first step to stop the prolonged damage caused by asbestos and potential
damaged that can be caused by asbestos if not removed and disposed correctiy.

5.1  Scope of Works

The scope of works is the assessment audit of residential units per residential stand
containing asbestos, including outside toilets roofed with asbestos and to submitting a
report on all houses in the Province that are roofed with asbestos complete with Geo
referencing, remedial works needed and to give an indication of the estimated value of the

replacement cost.
6.2 The scope of the assessments will be as follows:

e The identification and quantification of affected houses.
» Assessment of structural defects on load bearing walls in each houses.

e Submission of existing House Typologies in the area (for new

roof designs)




5.2.1) The assessment has encompass all housing products roofed with asbestos
roofs with focus on the following housing products as indicated on the below

figure.

+ Old township houses (including former indian & Coloured townships)
* Extended Houses

* Suburban houses
* Outside toilets or other structures containing asbestos within the residential stands

Suburban
Houses

Extended
Houses

Hostels

5.2.2) The assessment has encompass the entire Province of Free State in all cities and towns,

§.3  Implementation planning phase - Once the extent of the problem is known the
implementation planning can begin. Planning & construction which is to come later and
not part of the current scope will be on affected houses oniy.
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5.4  The Scope of the construction phase has encompassed all areas in 5.2.1 & 5.2 2 above
and shall be detailed after the compietion of the assessment and planhing stages. It will
include a typical cost breakdown and the actual {(construction) replacement of asbestos

roofs.

6.1 Work took place in the following District Municipalities,

1 Fezile Dabi 3329 130 287 9,16%
2 Thabo Mofutsanyane 11 869 164 092 32,66%
3 Lejweleputswa 6 450 155789 17,75% +302 000
4 Motheo 11423 141 157 231,43% STANDS
5 Xhariep 3273 257638 9,01%

Total 36344 617093 + 302 000




See figure 1 for the area of works.
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Figure 1.

The PRT will be responsible for delivering a project report in all phases, to be

submitted to the client (the Department) per District Municipality or Local Municipality
which includes the following:

i.  an overall summary report for the entire District or Local Municipality
ii. atable of findings per township / town in the Municipality
ii.  overall quantification of the extent of problem in Municipality

iv.  a structural integrity report , defects of each house
v.  details of the existing roof supports {(member material, depth of beam filling)

vi.  an accurate dimensioned skefch of a typical houses exterior walls




vii.  a photograph of each house

viii. ~ The report is to be in hard copy and electronic copy format (Asbestos)
ix. Drawings for new work
x. A Bill of Quantities for the new work

xi.  Construction monitoring and report

xii.  Project completed and handed over to the client within the specified time

The Department

i. The Department jointly with the PRT are responsibie to providing information on
areas that must be prioritised relevant to the project inter alia the names and
location of all affected Municipalities, towns and townships.

ii. The Client was further responsible for the monitoring and evaluating the PRT’s
performance and submitted information.

iif. The Client will be responsible to remunerate the PRT in line with the signed
contract.
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9.1The Work Force

This was a muiti-disciplinary project, the project jurisdiction is covering the whole of
the Free State Province within the maximum allocated scope of 300 000,00 residential
units/ stands with asbestos which constitutes the scope of this work.

The team consisted of the following;

Project Directors, Assistant Project Directors, Project Managers, Social Facilitators,
Trainers, IT Specialist, Architects and Engineers, Team Leaders and Field Workers
with the Project Director Leading the whole project.
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Actual Production.
1 | Assessed number of Houses 302 000,00
2 | Average number of Houses per person per project 1500
3 | Actual number of days Worked 35
4 | Delays Caused by delayed correspondence from Local leadership 3 to 30 (days)

A team of 155 field workers (contract workers) was drawn from the community through
a consultative process involving Councillors and MECs and were each be equipped
with a Tablet or a device with which to take pictures of each and every house in the
area found to have ashestos as prescribed in the training manual in the Appendix.

These collected data was used by engineers and architects, to ensure the quality of
work in the field and assist with any technical glitches. An interactive user interface
would ensure that the correct type of data is captured in the field, and then prompt the
camera person to go to the next stage until they click COMPLETE, then the field

worker could move to the next property.

Once the data is accumulated on the Mastartrade Server, the Architects and
Engineers would then collect the data and process it with the drop down menu,
commenting on specific fields as outlined in the Terms of Reference {structural

integrity, type of roof, etc).

The technical staff will then make an engineering judgement concerning each and

every one of the units.

Anocther layer of Quality Assurance also involved the random sampling of the
processed data of each and every team to ensure that the project has been completed

to specifications and where necessary to take corrective action.
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a) The Technology
The [T Solution utilized can be described as a three-phased approach:
Desktop

. Preparation
Phase

*Geo-
Referencing

Development i Jle: !

Qn S'te 'HOUSE tO
House House
Assesments Assessments

Each of the phased are briefly explained below:
1. DESKTOP PREPARATION PHASE

The desktop preparation phase is the crucial foundation of all project activities.

dractio

GEO-REFERENCEING OF STANDS

The electronic shape file of the stands was obtained for the demarcated areas to
create an electronic shape file. The electronic shape file is loaded as a back drop on
the mobile device for the fieldworker data collection phase. Refer to the below

illustration.
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GPS LOCATION / GIS MAPPING

The pre-created stand boundaries (geo-referenced stands) served as the work orders

for the fieldworker
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2. SOFTWARE DEVELOPING
What is GIS and Mobile GIS?

Geographical Information System (GIS) is a computerised system, capable of
displaying places on the earth’s surface and Mobile GIS is an expansion of GIS, from
the office to the field and integrates:

v" Global Positioning System (GPS)
v" Mobile Device (Paimtop PC)

v ArcGIS Server Mobile SDK

v" Other GIS software packages

Geographical Information System (GIS) has the added advantage of:

v wireless communication and
v' a spatial database.

Why GIS / Mobile GIS?
Real Time positioning

Mobile GIS is a real time positioning system, which has the benefit of determining and
displaying the exact position (x:y co-ordinate) of each household / research point.

Electronic spatial database
The GPS position of the houses can be mapped, and has the added advantage that

each of the above, can later be revisited (GPS Navigation). The resuits of the survey
(attribute data) can be linked to the spatial data and various maps can he generated.

Wireless Technology

Information can be transferred over a distance without the use of electrical wires.

Different wireless networks can be utilised.




Advanced Reporting Tool

GIS is an excellent application for visual and progress reporting. Spatial analysis
(mapping by X,y coordinates) distinguishes GIS from other types of information

systems.
Data may be output in digital form for transfer to another software package to allow

statistical analysis, desktop publishing or further analysis, however most GIS output is
in the form of maps to illusirate trends via the web or on desktop.

Advanced Management Tool
The solution provides advanced management reports e.g. the number of captures per
fieldworker per hour / day / week, etc. and the web-based technology will allow role-
players to monitor progress on a daily basis via the internet. Role players have web
based access to follow progress on a daily bases.

Remote Control

The technology has the added advantage to provide technical support to the
fieldworkers via remote control technology by virtually taking over the handheld
device.

Leading Technology

GIS and mobile solutions are growing world-wide at an exponential rate and it is the

future trend in information technology.
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Mobile GIS Architecture

The deployed GIS architecture is described below:
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%E} Real time GPS Receiver 3-5m accuracy

GPS is a Radio-based navigation system capable of providing a 3-5m accuracy three

dimensional position (x.y,2) to:

a. Provide the exact position of the site:
b. Ensure data is captured at the site.

{2\}’ Handheld device

We utilized tablets / handheld devices. These devices are tried and tested.

Mobile GIS Application

SN N N 8 ko <

View map, displaying all GIS data for specific soiution opened

Zoom In / out, Pan (move) Zoom extent

Search by attribute

Query by specific or muitiple parameters

ldentify objects (features) and display detailed information (dropdown menu’s)
New captures

Edit existing captures

Synchronisation

Send data to server (New and edited captures

Receive data from server (Get the latest updates from the server)

éé} Wireless Technology

We utilized wireless networks (GPRS / EDGE / 3G / HSDPA) that ailows information
to be sent and received across a mobile telephone network to transfer information toa

server (wireless).

[ﬁ; Reporting Services

Reports were served directly from the consolidated database, in the data centre.
Reporting services is a web base reporting tool and can be accessed from any remote

computer with an internet connection.
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3.

Web Based Mapping/Shape Files

It reflects the data captured via GIS application real-time.
Functions and abilities of mapping are:

View map, displaying all GIS data for specific solution opened
Zoom In/ out, Pan {move) Zoom extent

Search by attribute

Query by specific or multiple parameters

Identify objects (features) and display detailed information
Categorise sites according to class and type

ONSITE HOUSE ASSESSMENTS

3.1) The mobile GIS IT solution comprises of 3 components namely:

a)
b)

c)

The mobile device / tablet

A software package on the mobile device to capture the data of the occupants and roof
structure information and condition

A web base central database (Oracle)

Photos embedded in the database linked to stand and structure

3.2) The following highlights a few of the functions of the application:

a)

GIS capabilities — Navigates the fieldworker to the stands to collect the data on the correct
stand.

Bullt-in validation rules to ensure the quality of the data collected by the fieldworker.
Compulsory data fieids to ensure only completed captures.

Fieldworkers are prom pted to ask the relevant questions,

Save the collected data on the ultra lite database.

Synchronisation function to send / receive data via GPRS to Professional Mobile Mapping’s

central server

3.3) The assessment entailed the collection of the following attribute data in the field for each
stand:
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a) Details — Stand Number, Suburb, Town
b) GPS Coordinates
¢) Roof structure details ~ Confirm type of roof (Asbestos), Condition of roof, Comment on

other structures on site with Asbestos roofs (example outside toitet)
d) Photos — Photo of the roof

3.4) Advantages of the solution in the field:

a) The fieldworkers captured the required data for each house ang the GPS provides the correct
co-ordinate of each house.

factor etc,
¢} Quality of the data is vaiued.

not within 10 meter from the stand
d) Clean Sweep - The mapping reports served as g management tool to ensure that each area

is completed.




The research findings attached formulates the areas of Coverage of the 300 000 stands in the
area which constitutes the scope of this work.

An initial field exercise revealed that out of the +300 000,00 stands, 36 344 that contains
asbestos in the area which constitutes the scope of this area.

An example of the District Municipality and Local Municipalities, Tows, SP's and Eif is
illustrated below. These Maps are attached as Annexure for your easy reference.

FEZILE DABI DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY

Figure 3




Figure 4
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a. Current Status

11 Collection of Shape files 100%
1.2 Validate and prepare Shape files as complete 100%
1.3 ldentification of area of works (Asbestos Houses) 100%
1.4 Site Visit 100%
15 Compilation of Housing Typologies 100%
2.1 Develop an application 100%
2.2 Provide a server as complete 100%
2.3 Operate and Maintain Server 100%
24 Supply and deliver Gadgets to be programed 100%
3.1 | Consultation with Political Heads and Tradition Leaders in Area of 100%
Works
3.2 Communication with the Community and other stakeholders 100%
4.1 Appointment of team leaders and training 100%
4.2 Recruitment of Foot Soldiers 100%
4.3 Appointment of Quality Assurers 1009%
Transportation and Accommodation of Team Leaders and Project
5.1 100%
Managers
5.2 Training of Field Workers 100%
6.1 Capturing of Data on Site 100%
6.2 Quality Assurance on captured Data 100%
6.3 Certification of Woks by Engineer and Architect 100%
7.1 Printing of Reports 100%
7.2 Compile, Incorporate, present and submit Final Report 100%
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/ b. Program and Progress

* The field work tommenced on the 17" of November 2014 (Training and Preparations)
and the actual site audit tommenced on the 24" of November 2014 and the site audit
was completed on the 6" of February 2015 and the final report to be submitted to the
employer on the 13t of February 2015,

* The consultation with communities started on the 20% of November 2014 until the 16"

of January 2015,

Cross-referencing the deliverables:-

As outlined in the various deliverabies is listed below.

Description

an overall summary report for the entire
Municipality

a table of findings per township / town in the
Municipality

overall quantification of the extent of problem in
Municipality

Drafting of the existing housing typologies within the
area of works.

@ colour or black and white photograph of each

Value Addition

a) Developing Roofing Options
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These are:-
Option 1: Concrete roof tiles
Option 2: Concrete tiles (Harvey)
Option 3: Sheet metal (IBR)
Option 4: Composite roof panel.
Remedial Work

A more detailed report outiining the comparative evaluation of each option can will be
made available in the next phase of works, however figure 7 illustrates some of the
typical detailing on the remedial work to be done on the roof.
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Figure 7
b) Existing Typologies in the Free State

Attached as Annexure are some of the roof Typologies found in the Free State for your easy

reference,
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THE FOLLOWING EXISTING TYPOLOGIES WERE DISCOVERED
b.1) Single Story Residential Unit

Flat Roof (60m? to 56m?)
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Pitch Roof (56m?)
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Single Story: Semidetached Residential Unit.

Semidetached House 102 m?
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¢.3) Double Story Semidetached Residential Unit

- 3 g == e 2 o e —— T =i
i .
| i
L o
. #
@ -
i
o o
7 b
&
i

i

s

s b B

c.4) Other

100% Asbestos (Walls and Roof)




100% Asbestos (Walls and Roof)

Less than (56m?)

¢) A durable web-based tool for future use.

Blackhead will add value for the Client by using a durable web-based platform that can be
handed over to the Municipality or Government for decision making, going forward.

This tool can be used to query and generate reports on the houses with and with no
asbestos, whether by ward, by 8P or whatever metric the Client may choose. Instruction and
or fraining on how to use the web interface can be provided on request.

The web interface can be provided to the employer at no additional cost starting on the 13" of
February 2015 until the 12" of February 2018 and 5 users will be allowed to have access to
the interface.

See existing typologies as attached as Annexure for your easy reference.




The tool at the Department’s disposal can be used to achieve the following:
Check the Concentration of Asbestos per Province, per District, per Town, Per Ward, Per Stand

Per Province {Free State)
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The labour employed on this project is as attached as Annexure,

155 Field workers were employed on the project and where all sourced from the loca

community.

15.1
TOTAL
NO. OF
0S
THABO M | Dihlabeng | Bethlehem | 5214 Bohlokong 18826
Beken Park
Fouriesbur
g 223 Mashaeng | 3495
Kgubetswa
Clarens 246 na 1957
Fateng Tse
PaulRoux | 214 Ntsho 1780
Rosendal 53 Mautse 1237
Total

1914

7.07%
0,64%

0.51%

1,91%

0,00%
0




[ Intabazwe- 42 Hill- |

7937 Wilgepark 7937
Tshiame 4251
Tiholong 2154

65441

Phuthadijthab

a A
B
H 17529
J
L

Other Places

in Boiketlo 1665

Qwagwa Bolata 4359
Botjhabelo 531
Dinkweng 178
Dithotaneng 2861
Ha-Rankopane 718
Ha-Sethunya 1977
Ha-Taudi 247
Jwala Boholo 135
Kgibiditing 114
Kudumane 779
Lejwaneng 438
Letshalemaduke 2530
Mabolela a8
Mafikeng 615
Makeneng 991
Makgemeng 423
Makhalaneng 1552
Makwane 5577
Mangaung 2747
Mantsubise 768

_Marabeng 130

Marakong 1080
Masaleng 929
Masianokeng 85
Matshaneng 591
Matshidiso 126
Matsieng 512
Matsikeng 1639
Matsopaneng 286
Mmakong 574
Moeding 214
Mokabatane 55
Monontsha 1550
Mphatlalatsane 819
Naledi 1401
Namahadi 927
Ntshehele 556
Paballong 2065

14,18%
0.50%
1.79%
22,72%
0,18%




| Excelsio | Mahlatswets |

Mantsopa r 194 a 1623
Hobhous
€ 105 Dipelaneng | 1168
Ladybra
nad 1345 Manyatseng | 6434
Tweespr
uit 348 Borwa 1411

Total 675

Nketoana Arlington Leratswana
Reitz 1130 Petsana 5105
Lindley | 354 Ntha 3010
Petrus Mamafubed
Steyn 231 u 3138

Total 43

Phumelela Zamani
Vrede 689 Thembalile | 4166
Warden | 641 Zenzeleni 2567
Total 367

[ Clocola | ] Hiohlolwa,

Setsoto n e 4896
Ficksbu
rg 1718 Meghelen 10814
Senekal | 1252 Matwabeng | 6486
Marqua Moemanen
rd 431 g 4028

Total 575




wa

TOTAL NO.

6450

Majwemas

Masilonyana | Brandfort weu 2621 308 8.80%
Theuniss
en 519 Masilo 6438 289 4,15%
Verkeerd
evlei 45 Tshepong | 589 0 0,00%

Makeicket!
| Winburg | 423 e 3589 97 2,42%
Total 695

Bothaville

wa Matjhabeng | Allanridge | 848 Nyakallong
Welkom | 19000 Hani Park | 3396
Thabong 39710
Riebeeckst
ad 3772
Odendaal
$rus 3099 Kutloanong | 15621
Hennenm
an 1281 Phomolong | 5944
Virginia 6708 Meloding 13683
Ventersb Mmamahab
urg 368 ane 2311
Tswelangp
ele 727
Total 3794

Kgotsong

Wesselbr
on

Monyakeng

6624

Total

1176
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4,30%

10,93%

wa Tokologo | Boshof 992 Seretse 1332
Dealesvill ' Tshwarakg
€ 320 anang 1309
Hertzogvil
[ le )347 Malebogo | 2205

0,59%

e

| Tsloel 1

Total

293

4980

|
8.05%

15,3

Motheo

| 0,65%

Metro

492

I 405 Tikwana ] 3459
Total
TOTAL NO. OF 4
ASBESTOS 1342

(Mangaung | Bloemfo |

ntein

81286 Mangaung

3,19%

Mangau
n

Thabanchu

0,08%

Motlala

0,58%

Rooifontein

0,00%

botshabelo a

64.72%

botshabelo b

botshabeio ¢

botshabelo d

botshabelo e

botshabelo f

botshabeio g

botshabelo |

hotshabeio k

72,48%

botshabelo |

4,98%

botshabelo m

1,98%

botshabelo n

13,83%

botshabelo r

0,00%

botshabelo s

15,28%

botshabelo sp

0.00%

botshabelo t

15,39%

botshabelo u

17.84%

botshabelo v

0,16%

botshabelo w

13,34%




15.4

TOTAL NO. OF
ASBESTOS

1026

Letsemeng

Jacobsdal

Ratanang

Bethulie 676 Lephoi

Fauresmit

h 232 popeng 744

Edenburg | 427 Ha-Rasebei | 1554

Jagersfont

&in 590 ltumeleng | 1346
Poding-Tse-

Philippolis | 298 Rolo 849

‘Reddersb

urg 205 Matoporong | 1269

Springfont

in 370 Maphodi 810
Williamsville

Trompsbu

Lrg 523 Madikgetla 1092

Total

24.49%
10,35%

11.51%

1807

Koffiefont

ein 499 Ditthake 2359
Rooibult/
Diamanthoog
te 345
Luckhoff 243 Relebohile 311
Teisesville 453
Oppermans | 230
Petrusbur
g 302 | Bolokanang | 2337

Total

498




| Dewetsdor |

Roleleathu
Mohokare Rouxville 382 nya
Uitkoms
Mofulatshe
Smithfield | 435 pe 1200
Zastron 748 Matlakeng | 3901
Total 565

"FEZILE

| Ntswanatsa

P Naledi P 330 morojaneng |
Wepener | 447 Qibing 2678
Vanstaden
Srus 267 Thapelang | 305
Total 403
TOTAL NO.
OF 3329
| ASBESTOS

"FEZILE

DAEI Mafube Cormelia | 389 tsi
Frankfort | 1753 Namahadi | 5975
Tweeling | 192 Mafahleng | 1395
Villiers 483 Qalabotja 4348

Deneysvil |

1 ATION

Refengkgot '

Metsimahol
DABI 2] le S0
Oranjevill Metsimahol
e 149 0 1405
Sasolbur
| g 10508 Zamdela 25067




DABI Moghaka d Maokeng
Matlwangtiw
Steynsrus | 227 ang
Viljoenskr
oon 697 Rammulotsi

Parys

Tumahole

Schonkenvil
le

| 0.49%

Vredefort | 561 Mokwallo 3664
Koppies 326 Kwakwatsi | 3635
Edenville | 174 Ngwathe 1641
Heilbron 1667 Phiritona
Sanderville

0,00%

The new roof design is in accordance with the National Building Regulation, NHBRC Home Building

Manual and SANS 10400XA to replace the existing asbestos roof sheets. The Ioading design is
designed to SANS10160

16.1 Roof Options

The options offered for the roof design include the following;

a) Congcrete Roof Tiles on the timber rafters with ceiling,
b} IBR roof Sheets coated with Chromadeck on timber rafters with Ceiling
¢} Concrete roof tiles on steel section beams with aluminum foil for insulation

2,86%

d) IBR Roof Sheets as gaivernised on steel section beams with aluminum foil and insulation.

See typical drawings as attached as Annexure for your easy reference,

All existing roof pitch of less than 17,5° will have to be adjusted to 17,5° (Minimum slope)




16.2. Re-Roofing Methodology
The process to remove old roofs and install new roofs involves the following:

a) Temporary relocation of household furniture and home owners

b} Specialist Sub-Contractor to remove the asbestos roof sheets and dump in an approved
landfill area,

c) Repairing of gable walls to fit new roof rafters

d) Installation of rafters

e) Installation of new roof cover (concrete tiles or IBR Sheets)

The Cost of replacing the Asbestos roof is calculated as follows;

Option 1 { Concrete Tile Roof )

COST OF REPLACING THE EXISTING ASBESTOS ROOFED HOUSE WITH A
CONCRETE TILE

Demolish existing building

1 and dispose rubble each 5445 R 11 000,00 R 59 895 000,00
Construct a New House as

2 complete each 5445 R 126 000,00 R 686 070 000,00
Handle Asbestos, Strip and

3 Dispose each 36303 | R39312,00 R 1427 143 536,00
Uninstall and Install Geyser

4 complete with electrical each 10 000 R 4 600,00 R 40 000 000,00
Repair and Renovate

5 Existing House each 30858 | R46169,00 R 1424 683 002,00

Sub total R3637791533,00 exclvat

5% Contingencies R 181 889 576,90

8% escalation
{per annual) R 30557 448,92
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Option 2 ( IBR Sheet Roof)

COST OF REPLACING THE EXISTING ASBESTOS
ROOFED HOUSE WITH IBR

Demolish existing building

1 and dispose rubble each 5445 R 11 000,00 R 59 895 000,00
Construct a New House as

2 complete each 5445 R 126 000,00 R 686 070 000,00
Handle Asbestos, Strip and

3 Dispose each | 36303 R39312,00 | R1427 143 536,00
Uninstall and Install Geyser

4 complete with electrical each | 10000 R 4 000,00 R 40 000 000,00
Repair and Renovate Existing

5 House each | 30858 R43650,93 | R1346980397,94

Sub total R3 560088 933,94 exclvat

5% Contingencies R 178 004 446,70

8% escalation
{per year) R 29 904 747,05

Description Value of The Works (excl vat and
VALUE OF THE WORKS AND BUDGET SPLIT PER Exc) proffessioanl Feos)
DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY. Tile Roof R 3 850 235 563,82

IBR Sheet R3 767 998 127,68

u Fezile Dabi )
® Thabo Mofutsany{ i
slejweleputswas | —

®Motheo<

= Xhariep
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The following are the challenges that were encountered on the project:

» Delayed correspondence from 50% of the Political leadership regarding the submission of
Field workers following a formal request. The knock on effect resulted in 50% of the Field
workers and area of works being ailocate in mid January 2015.

» Fieldworker that did not meet the minimum requirements. The knock on effect resulted in
delayed production.

» Field workers delaying to pitch up for training and prolonged absence from work without valid

reasons.

We recommend the following.

1. We were unable to find any registered landfill licenced to dispose rubble containing Asbesto
within the Free State Province. The nearest land fill site in Gauteng (Rooderpoort). The
employer can explore other options of having a new landfill site licensed to dispose Asbestos

in the following areas;

» Bethlehem to Service Thabo Mofutsanyane District Municipality
» Welkom to Service Lejweleputswa District Municipality

» Zastron to Service Xhariep District Municipality

» Botshabelo to Service Mangaung Metropolitan Municipality

» Hielbron to Service Fezile Dabi District Municipality

Given the circumstances, it will be ideal to start implementation in Fezile Dabi District which is nearer

to Gauteng.

2. The implementation can be rolled out over a period of four financial years subject to the
availability of funding from the Department.

3. Government to ensure that the handling of Asbestos be done in line with the Municipal by laws
and Environmental laws governing the disposal there of. The following are some of the
professional services that will be required during implementation of which the cost there of,
has been excluded from the calculated and estimated budget indicated above.




+ Project Manager

e Environmental Specialist

» Electrical Engineer

» Civil Engineer

» Health and Safety Specialist
s Architect

s Structural Engineer

o Contractors

* Social Facilitator.

4. We advice the Department to fast track implementation process, as some of the home owners
have started to remove the asbestos on their own without proper knowledge of the harmful
effects and the risk that comes with the nature of the work.

5. The project has been welcome with open hands by members of the community and they are

eager to know when will implementation be rolled out.




ERADICATION OF ASBESTOS ROOFS IN
HOUSES IN FREE STATE PROVINCE




FREE STATE PROVINCE

FREE STATE DEPARTMENT OF
HUMAN SETTLEMENT

MUNICIPALITY:

ASBESTOS ROOF ASSESSMENT FORM
ae ey L T ASSESOMENT FORM

TOWNSHIP:

WARD:

1 | Erf No:

STRUCTURAL ASSESSMENT (Mobile device Questionnaire)

2 | Town/district

3 | Roof:

a)Asbestos
Take photo for
both options

(Y/N)

Yes
No

b) Type

Pitch




o .
v As.:

FH Al

Roof rafters

3 Photos to be taken:

Front view of house

Side view of house




blackhese , s

*  Under the over hang

5 | Ceiling

Yes

No

No access

6 | External walls

Brick | Take photo

Block




Plaster

7 | Cracks Yes | If YES Take a couple of photos for each crack
Note 1. No | type observes

9 | Qutside Toilet YES
/ other NO
structures

with Asbestos

roofs




el 67

10 | Main House YES
Extended NO

If yes, take a photo

Note 1:

The engineer will make the final decision of the bearing of the walls. The only other
factor, other than all the above photos is the cracks on the outer walls which is

covered in point 7

Synchronisation is divided into 2 primary actions:
= Sending your captures (post)
< Downloading updates / work orders (receiving latest updates)

Both actions must be performed frequently.
The benefits of synchronising your captures on a regular basis (frequently) are as follows:

< The more frequent you synchronise, the less time it takes
= It will prevent duplications, as the system is continually being updated

=+ Enable better project management, as the data is always updated.

The Team Leader must ensure that the whole team synchronises in the morning in their ward at the
start point as well as at the end of the day before leaving the ward to go home,




. e NMS’#

Ve g o S\ FREaE AL g

Enquiries: J Matlakala

Director Supply Chain

Human Settlements Free State

Tel; 051 405 5391

Your Ref: IPW - 001

Our Ref: PRT-IPW 001- 004/F8
john@fshs.ggu.zaf john tlaks@gmail.com

The Chief Executive Officer
Blackhead Consuiting (Pty) Ltd JV
P.0 Box 1740

Ruimsig

1732

Attention: Mr Edwin Sodi

RE: Instruction to Perform Work (IPW - 001) Phase 1 - Audit and Assessment of Ashestos of

Housing Units

This IPW — 001 serves to instruct you to audit all Pre-1994 Government lssued Housing Units as

follows:

1. Audit, Assess and GPS all pre-1994 government housing units in the Province at a rate of
R 850-00 vat exclusive per unit up to a maximum of 300 000 units (R255 000 000-00 vat
exclusive, hereinafter to be referred to as the total project cost) will be payabile for all audited
units and it should be noted that all asbestos units are expected to be audited in the Province.

2 The commencement period for the appointment will be effective from 01 December 2014

to 31 March 2015 or earlier.

3. You are expected to submit a completion report within 2 weeks from the date of completion of

the project.

4. 40% of the 50% of the total project cost (R51 000 000-00 vat exclusive).is payable on

commencement (01 December 2014} subject to submission of a valid tax invoice and valid tax

clearance certificate.

5. 60% of the 50% of the tota! project cost (R76 500 000-00 vat exclusive) cost wil be payable as
progress certificate no.2 on or before the 01 March 2015.

wm

4

P.0 Box 211, Bloemfontein, 9300 .
Lebohang Building, 7th Floor, car $t Andrew and Markgraaff Streets, Bloemfontein, 9301
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6 40% of the 50% of the total projée st
progress certificate no.3 on or bt\a\}'b(?’e the 01 May 2015

7. 80% of the 50% of the total project cost (R76 500 000-00 vat exclusive) will be payable as
progress certificate no.4 subject to submission of the final project report on or hefore the 01

June 2015.

8. A minimum liability insurance of R1 000 000-0Q is required.

| hope you will find the above in order of your respective purposes.

Regards

S e~
N Mokhesi

Head of Depariment

Date: 9«(3)9’/’%’

“ M

p.O Box 211, Bloemfontein, 9300 )
Lebohang Building, 7th Fioor, car st Andrew and Markgraaff Streets, ploemfontein, 9301




SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT

entered into between:

DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SETTLEMENTS

herein represented by NTHIMOTSE MOKHESI in his
f capacity as Head of Department

(“the DEPARTMENT”)
And

BLACKHEAD CONSULTING (PTY) LTD
JOINT-VENTURE

herein represented by EDWIN SODI in his capacity as the
Chief Executive Officer

(“the SERVICE PROVIDER”)

INITIAL ONLY;
DEPARTMENT: «+ Wimness: {1} .- 2) ...

SERVICE PROVIDER: Q‘; .« Wittvess: (‘l} {@ vevrensonye WHIESE (2] ooiiiiainnrmnrssosinrnas




NOW THEREFORE THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

1.

1.1

1.2

1.3

Definitions and Interpretation

The following terms, unless the context indicates otherwise, shall have the
meanings assigned 1o thern hereunder and similar expressions shall have

corresponding meanings, namely:

“Agreement” — the agreement signed by the Parties of which the Annexures
referred to herein forms part;

“DEPARTMENT” means the Department HUMAN SETTLEMENTS FREE
STATE;

«gERVICE PROVIDER™ means BLACKHEAD CONSULTING (Pty) Ltd and
DIAMOND HILL TRADING 71 (Pty) LidJ oint- Venture;

«Parties” means the DEPARTMENT and SERVICE PROVIDER,;

“Payment of services” means payment of services in terms of the attached costs
breakdown; and

“Project” means appointment of the SERVICE PROVIDER to assess/audit

houses roofed using asbestos material, handling and disposal of asbestos sheets 10
an approved, designated disposal site.

The headings in this document are used for ease of reference only and will have
no bearing onthe interpretation of the terms of this Agreement.

The words importing -
(a) any one gender includes the other two genders;
(by the singular include the plural and vice versa; and

(c) natural persons include created entities (corporate or non-incorporate) and
vice versa.

‘Working relationship

The DEPARTMENT appoints the SERVICE PROVIDER to assess/audit houses
roofed using asbestos material, handling and disposal of asbestos sheets to an

77



4.1

4.2

4.3

approved, designated disposal site.

Puration

The Agreement commences on the last party signing and terminates on 31 August
2017.

Responsibilities of Parties

The SERVICE PROVIDER shall —

4.1.1 execute the project in line with this Agreement, the approved Instruction
to Perform Work and the applicable legislations and regulations.

412 on becoming aware of any matter which shall materially change or has
changed the scope, cost or timing of the services or the works, the
SERVICE PROVIDER shall give notice to the DEPARTMENT.

4.1.3 not undertake any work without the necessary Ipstruction to Perform Work
signed by the Head of Department of the delegated official.

4.1.4 provide the DEPARTMENT with the costs breakdown of the services
connected with the project.

The SERVICE PROVIDER undertakes that:

42.1 they have the capacity 0 and are able to enter into this Agreement;

422 they have all the necessary experience skill and capability to render the
service in accordance with the requirements and expectations of the
DEPARTMENT; and

423 they are not restricted or prohibited by any other agreement, arrangements
or understandings whether written or oral, with any third party from
entering into this Agreement with the DEPARTMENT.

The DEPARTMENT shall —

43.1 pay for the services of the SERVICE PROVIDER in accordance with the
costs breakdown a8 agreed and the approved Insteuction to Perform Waork;

and/or upon signing of the appointment letier.
INITIAL ONLY:

TR - V=10 4 IR P ey Witness: (2) coveremsrrmrorerrororsas

b = [
SERVICE PROVIDER: %*N Wimess: (1) - .:-"‘.;.‘ WHERCE: (2} crervnrnrsncrorrenionsss

DEPARTMENT: (oTy-erenrtee

NMS?]?



437 tensfer payment to the SERVICE PROVIDER in terms of the prescripts
of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No.l of 1999), as
amended and be effected in the South African Rand.

43.3 transfer payment to the SERVICE PROVIDER within 30 (thirty) days of
receipt of the certified invoice from the SERVICE PR OVIDER.

434 the SERVICE PROVIDER’s invoices submitted throughout the term of
this Agreement shall not exceed the amount indicated in the contracted

and budgeted costs.

435 all invoices for the SERVICE PROVIDER's services may be submitted to
the Department by the SERVICE PROVIDER upon approval by the
Department of the completion of each Instruction to Perform Work.

43.6 the SERVICE PROVIDER’s invoice shall be submitted together with 2
report by the SERVICE PROVIDER, clearly evidencing the service
rendered as per the approved Instruction to Perform Work, which invoice
and report shall be to the satisfaction of the Department.

437 the Department shall be entitled to verify the amount claimed in the
invoice or appoint an independent expert to verify the amount.

438 if the Department disputes, in good faith, any amounts, or the calculation,
composition or suppotting information evidencing any amount set out in
an invoice or if the Department disputes in good faith the specific service
rendered, the Department shall be entitled to withhold payment of the

amount so disputed.

439 the parties shail liaise and use reasonable endeavors 10 agreé on the
disputed amount. Where the disputed amount is not agreed within ten (10)
business days either party may refer the matter for resolution in terms of

paragraph 7 hereunder.

43.10 all amount payable in terms of this Agreement shall be inclusive of VAT
(Value Added Tax).

43.11 the Department shall at a1l reasonable times and with prior written notice
have access 10 (including the right to reproduce) all records and
documentation required by the SERVICE PROVIDER to be kept in
relation to the services for the purpose of auditing, quality control and
monitoring of the services by the Department.

DEPARTMENT: ,,.}/'?.. Wittress: (L} -ccereers

4

S f i\ o ;
SERVICE PROVIDER: [ i sinserre . iS55 (D LY e Wiknsss @) covrrrineinneen
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51

52

5.3

54

43.12 the Department may carry out such monitoring and/or audit of the quality
of services as it may from time to time require, which monitoring may
include the conducting of audits, spot checks, quality assessments, third
party monitoring and independent reviewing and auditing of the
SERVICE PROVIDER provision of the services as well as periodic
performance meetings with the SERVICE PROVIDER to discuss, review
and assess performance and identify trends, problem areas and remedying
actions to be taken by the SERVICE PROVIDER.

Default and termination

The Parties shall be deemed to have committed an act of default in terms of this
Agreement if any Party -

(@) failsoris likely to fail in the due performance of its obligations in terms of
this Agreement; and/or

(b)  is placed under judicial management, liquidation, sequestration (whether
provisional or final); and/or

(c) fails to comply with any other provision of this Agreement.

In the event of either Party being deemed to have committed an act of default, the

other Party may give written notice, calling upon the defaulting party within 2
period of 5 (five days) after the date of such notice, to rectify the deemed act of

default.

Fatlure to comply with the terms of the notice referred to in clause 5.2 shall entitle
the Party to terminate the Agreement forthwith without prejudice to any other
right or remedy it may have in law.

Should funds no longer be available to pay for the execution of the
responsibilities of the DEPARTMENT, the DEPARTMENT may terminate this
Agreement in its own discretion or temporarily suspend all or part of the services
by notice to SERVICE PROVIDER who shall immediately make arrangements t0
stop the performance of the services within reasonable time and minimize further
expenditure: Provided that SERVICE PROVIDER shall thereupon be entitled to
payment in full for the services delivered, up to the date of cancellation.

Indemnification

SERVICE PROVIDER accepts full responsibility for the project and indemnifies
the DEPARTMENT against any claim from any person, whether as a result of
loss or injury which occurred as a result of or in connection with the project.

DEPARTMENT: ..M P - A WPtneRs: {2) coereavrarmnurnsrsneses
e {
i o .
e

SERVICE PROVIDER: ..l 0 cvcvinsrnsenc WitaoSE: M i TTUI88: (Z) vreecremrrsirinermsnsas
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10.1
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11.

111

11.2

Disputes

If any dispute or difference of any kind whatsoever arises between the Parties in
connection with or arising out of the Agreement, any Party may approach the
Court to seftle such dispute Of difference.

Jurisdiction
This Agreement shall be construed according to the laws of the Republic of

Qouth Africa. The Free State High Court shall be the competent court with regards
to this Agreement.

Cession/assignment

The Parties may not cede or assign this Agreement or any of the rights it has in
terms of this Agreement to any other person without prior approval of the other

Party.

Confidential and Disclosure

The SERVICE PROVIDER acknowledges that all information imparted to it by
the DEPARTMETN is of 2 confidential nature and is made known to the
SERVICE PROVIDER only for purposes of providing services to the
DEPARTMENT.

The SERVICE PROVIDER undertakes t0 maintain the confidentiality of all
information (including the. provisions of this Agreement) imparted to it by the
DEPARTMENT and not 0 disclose any such information to any third party for
whatever reason without the prior written consent of the DEPARTMENT.

Intellectual Property rights

The ownership of the intellectual property rights in this Agreement shail be
owned by the DEPARTMENT on payment of the SERVICE PROVIDER’s fees,

due, owing and payable for such service or product.

All pre-existing intellectual property rights, including materials provided by the
parties, shall continue to be owned by the party to whom title to such property
originally vested priof t0 this Agreement.

DEPARTMENT: ,"{)V) s eeeeenes WEiTNESR! (B} coeen h ............ Witness: (Z) corvactnvanmeamsariasees

L3 ._'\:‘_" é
SERVICE PROVIDER: UL R Witnesst {1} ......Lé@............Witme; 1) WOTUT

N l\f:ézi
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12.1

12.2

12.3

The SERVICE PROVIDER may not use the intellectual property rights in
paragraph 8.1 above without the consent of the DEPARTMENT, which consent

may not be unreasonably withheld.

Domicilia and notices

The Parties choose as their domicilium citandi et executandi as set out hereunder:

DEPARTMENT:
Room 749, 7" floor
c/o Markgraaff & St. Andrew Streets
BLOEMFONTEIN

9301

Tel. No: (031) 405 4727
Fax. No: (051) 403 3699
Email; hodhs@fshs.gov.za

SERVICE PROVIDER :

el ¥ S A e =

Unit 9, Willowbrook Office Park,
Van Der Kloof Street
Ruimsig, 1732

Tel. No: (011) 958 2248

Fax No: 011 958 0065

Email: igo@diamond-hill.co.za
edwinsodi@blackhead.co.za

Parties undertake to notify each other, in writing, of any change of its domicilium
or any other address.

Any notice and any communication or payment made by one party to the other
(“the addressee™) shall be deemed to have been properly given, in the absence of

proof to the contrary -

(a) i delivered by hand, on the date of delivery;
(») if sent by prepaid registered post, 7 (seven) days after the date on
which the notice is posted;
INITIAL ONLY:
DEPARTMENT: M-....W’imes& (1} cooermennnrrneennanen, WikDRSS: () S PHRPERPIRN
"
S

b 3
SERVICE PROVIDER: .L“"‘;.. Wimess: (1) .. WHness: {(2F cocraseeararrresisrrane
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13.1

13.2
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13.4

{c) if sent to the addressee at its telefax number, on the date of
transmmission where it is transmiftted during normal business hours of
the receiving instrument, and on the next business day where it is

transmitted outside those business hours, in either gvent provided that
it has been confirmed by registered letter posted no later than the
business day immediately following the date of transmission.

Entire agreement and variations

This Agreement constitutes the whole Agreement between the Parties and
supersedes all prior verbal or written agreements Of understandings or
representations by or between the Parties regarding the subject matter of this
Agreement, and the Partjes will not be entitled to rely, in any dispute regarding
this Agreement, of any terms, conditions OF representations not expressly

contained in this Agreement.

No variation of or addition to this Agreement will be of any force or effect uniess
reduced to writing and signed by or on behalf of the Parties.

t

Neither party to this Agreement has given any warranty or made any
representation to the other party, other thas any warranty or representation which

may be expressly set out in this Agreement.

No relaxation or indulgence which either Party may grant 10 the other Party shall
constitute a waiver of rights of such Party and shall not preciude such Party from
exercising any of its rights which might have arisen in the past or which might
arige in the future.

SIGNED at..cveceaerrrecanees e s e eI L O EHES covcenrmirosrarenonsnnsensares

in the presg

1ce of the undersigned witnesses

.................................

(Sighature of DEPARTMENT)

....................................

(Signatures of w itnesses)

DEPARTMENT: O/}" Wimees: {£) co-corraparemreremseoens Wimess: (2) ocoanroormsransninsasos
. .. Witness: (1) .TQ wesres

SERVICE PROVIDEK: IS
f

NI\/I/S%O



SIGNED at....... eesesansrmenseeen TP O HHES Lonorenmersernensonasanneenees

in thepresence of the un_ﬂ’eﬁ{" igned witnesses
J«ASM&,_%;C“{. .....

(Signature of SERVICE PROVIDER)

B e T,
(Signatures of witnesses)

a
P A Xy
SERVICE PROVIDER: .0 foscineearens: Witness: (1) {1{.:; Witeieses (2) «ovserssersarersnenssres
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FREE STATE PROVINGE

Enquiries: § Mallakala

Director Supply Chain

Hurnan Seitlements Free State
Tel: D51 405 5381

Your Ref: VA 49/4301
Our Ref: PRT 003/FS

The Chief Executive Officer

Biackhead Consulting (Pty) Ltd JV
P.O Box 1740

Ruimsig

1732

Attention: Mr Edwin Sodi

RE: Appointment as & Professional Resource Team (PRT) for Eradication_of Asbestos in the Free State
Province

After due consultation with the Deparnment of Human Settlements - Gauteng Province and concurrent
approval by Free State Provincial Treasury it is with great pleasure 10 announce that you have been duly
appointed to as @ Professional Resource Team to assist the Free State Department of Human Settlements in

Eradicating Asbestos in the Free State Province.

The Department wishes to advise that your company has been exclusively appointed for the audit and

assessment of asbestos, handiing of hazardous material, removal and disposal of asbestos-contaminated

rubble and replacement with SABS approved materials in the Free State Province.
You will be expected to sign a Service Level Agreement (SLA) with the Head of Department or his duly

designated official. The contract will stipilate among others, the duration of the contract, payment arrangement
and other general conditions. You will be issued with an instruction to perform wark (IPW) based on an

approved project milestones for each phase to be completed.

| hope you will find the above in order of your respective purposes.

Regards

N Mokhesi
Head of Depariment

Date: }//D/!'{’ 4’\
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ATTENTION: Mr. Mokhesi
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CONSULTING

Office 09 Block B Willowbrook Office Park
1732 Tel: 011 053 6442 / 958 2248, Fax: 011 958 0065

van Der Kloof Street Ruimsig,
Contact Person: Mr. Jgnatius Mpambani
Cell: 079 161 4943
E-mail: igo@diamond—hill.co.za-
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28 MAY 2014

Department of Human Seitlements — Free State
7th Floor, Lebohang Building,
Corner Markgraaff & St. Andrew Street, Bloemfontein,

9300

Dear Sir / Madam

REQUEST FOR APPOINTMENT ON RISK: AUDIT AND ASSESMENT, HANDLING OF HAZARDOUS
MATERIAL (REMOVAL) AND DISPOSAL OF ASBESTOS-CONTAMENATED RUBBLE IN THE

FREE STATE PROVINCE

We have a pleasure in submitting our request to be appointed on risk basis for the following:

« Assessment/Audit of houses roofed using Asbestos material,
e Handling and disposal of Asbestos Sheets to an approved, designated disposal-site.

The scope of the work entails the physical door to door counting, safe removal and disposal of
Asbestos- Contaminated Building Rubble and asbhestos sheets from various townships across the Free

State Province.
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GONSULTING

QORNBLTG ERSINEERS AND SaOECT MANAGERS

INTRODUCTION

The right of South African citizens to access to adequate housing is entrenched in the bill of rights in the
supreme legisiation of South Africa, the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 (Act 108 of
1596}, Sections 26. The Constitution makes it incumbent upon the State to take reasonable legisiative

and other measures within its available resources to achieve the progressive realization of this right.

The Free State Provincial Govgmment will task the Free State Department of Human Settlements to

embark on a project to eradicate asbestos roofs from all housing units in the province. .

Health implications associated with exposure to airborne asbestos fibres were first hiéhlighted in the
1930's and specific links to certain cancers were made in South Africa in the early 1960s.

Despite these undisputable facts on health risks, products containing asbestos continued to be used in

housing for non-white South Africans during the Apartheid era.

Old township houses that were built by the previous Apartheid Government have subsequently been
transferred into the ownership of the inhabitants. This property transfer also meant the transfer of risks
and fiabilities that come with home ownership. The health risk of living in asbestos roofed houses was

thus also transferred to the beneficiaries of these properties.

A very large number of such houses were transferred to indigent people who rely solely on Government
Pensions, Grants and a number of ather forms of Government assistance. They thus hardly have
money for home insurance or money for maintenance and repairs to their properties et alone money to
replace the entire roof structures to protect themselves and their families from diseases caused by

a4

exposure to asbestos fibre.



CONSULTING ZHNINEERS AND PROJECT BAANAGERS

BACKGROUND

In 2008 the Government of South Africa banned the use of asbestos and asbestos fibre in any product.
This ban was a reflection of the commitment of the Government to creating better iives for the people of
South Africa. As a component of this commitment the Free State Provincial Government acknowledges
that a large number of township houses, hostels and fiats delivered by the government of the past were

roofed with asbestos roof sheets.

Many parts of the country have recently experienced effects of global warming climate change which
has come with extreme' weather patterns. Recent flash-flood-rains and hailstorms have left paths of
destruction to residential properties mainly to the roofs and windows of such properties. Even though
not onty houses roofed with asbestos sheets were damaged, the exercise of verification, assessment
and remedial works planning for repairs has hightighted the need to address the eradication of asbestos

roofs as many such roofs were damaged in the storms.

An informal study in the Free State Province has indicated that the asbestos sheets in a large number
of the old township houses have deteriorated to great extents with cracks and breakages that most
likely release dust particles into the air which is the very cause of asbestos associated diseases.
Regulations for the prohibition of the use, manufacturing, import and export of asbestos and ashestos
containing materials formed part of the Environment Conservation Act of 1989.

Access to quality, sustainable housing is entrenched in our Constitution and Breaking New Ground
Strategy and thus is an important aspect of redressing (deliberate) deficiencies of the past in our

country.

M

i go@giamonwhiﬂ .c0.z3
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GONSULT'.NG

CONSHLTING BHOINEERS AND PROIEST MANAGER
OBJECTIVE

The objective of the project is two-fold:

. Quantify the number of houses roofed with asbestos sheets, and

. Remove and dispose asbestos 10 an approved and accredited.disposal site.

RATE PER HOUSE
Our rates are as foltows:

Door to door assessment = R1350 per house Excl VAT.
Removal and disposal to an approved designated site = R32 760 Excluding VAT.

Kindly note that as the project is undertaken on 3 Risk basis, Diamond Hill / Blackhead
Consulting will identify and secure funds on behalf of the Free State Provincial Govern ment for

the above costs.

igo@diamond-hil!.co.ga
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CONSULTING

CONSULTING ENGINEERS AND PROJECT MANAGERS
SCOPE OF WORK

All Asbestos wilt be removed and disposed of as laid out in the Occupational Health and Safety Act
and Regulations 85 of 1993

The above unit rate includes the following:

e Submitting a Works Plan to an Approved Inspection Authority of Approval.

o Notifying the Department of Labour in writing of our intention t6 remove and dispose
contaminated rubbie Asbestos. ‘

o Contract the services of an Approved Inspection Authority for the purpose of air monitoring.

e Supply experienced, medically fit staff and supervision for the purpose of removal.

« The supply of all safety equipment and relevant P.P.E.

« Cordon-off the area to be stripped and place relevant signage.

o Transport of the Asbestos to a registered disposal site.

« Disposal cost of the Asbestos.

¢ All relevant paper work pertaining to Health and Safety Legisiation

TERMS

» All rates exclude VAT

Yours faithfully,

45 ok
EDWIN SODI /V)

CEO - Blackhead Consulting
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Enquiries
080000 7277
Approved Date
2014-01-28
Expiry Date
2015-01-28

= South African Révenue Service

|- ‘TaxClearance Ceftificate Number
0084/1/2014/0005642817

Tax Clearance Certificate - Tender

N

Company Registration Number 2011/011664/07

Income Tax A 9209770156 - BLACKHEAD CONSULTING
VATIDiesel Regisiration 4460223243 - BLACKHEAD CONSULTING ccC
PAYE Registration {%onz?os « BLACKHEAD CONSULTING (PTY)
UIF Registration 3%0782709 - BLACKHEAD CONSULTING (PTY)
SDL Registration tgg0782709 - BLACKHEAD CONSULTING (PTY)
Tender Number k

it is hereby confirmed that, on the basis of the information at my disposal, the above-mentioned taxpayer has
not contravened the provisions of Income Tax Act {1962), Value Added Tax Act (1991), Employees Tax
{PAYE as contained within the IncomeTax Act 1962), Skills Development Levies Act (1999) or Unemployment
Insurance Contributions Act (2002}, ag of date of this ceificate.

This Cerlificate is Valid for a period of 1 {One} Year from the dale of approval,
Verification of this centificate can be done at any SARS Revenue office nationwide.

Photo copies of this cerificate are not valid.

SARS reserves the right to wilhdraw this cerificate at any time should any taxes, levies or dulies become due
and outstanding by the above taxpayer during the one year period for which the certificate is valid,

This certificate is issued free of charge by SARS.



Subyect  FW: Lyco doc 2

fram Morpad| Cholota =pramier@fepremiar.goyv.2a>

To <igo@diamand-hill.co.zaz, (GO MPAMBANI <mpambanl@yahoo.com>
Data 2015-08-12 13:10

W 140
nZM )Oo

Good Day.

This was the Initlal request send to the Premier.

Ragards:

Moroadi Chalota,

From: Refiloe Mokoena [mailto:refiloe.msiza @gmait.com)]
Sent: 17 July 2015 11:50 AM

To: premier@fispramigr.gov.za

Subject: Fwd: Lyco doc 2

Daar Pramier

Herewlth please find the nacessary documents for purposes of seitling my daughtar's university account.

Please note that the annual fees payable after receiving the scholarship s approximately U54$24298,, The semester amount payahle before 31 July 2015 15 however

US$12149.00

Kindly go to the link provided in their email and use the following access code to pay namely:

Username: kaglsonmsiza ®amail. com
Password: KaglsoSs,

Please acknowledge recaipt and let me know if you will also be paying for her travelling and living expenses ag well,

I take this oppovtunity to thank you from the bottom of our hearts for your assistance. 1 have no doubt that my daughter will make good usa of this oppartunity,

God Blass
Refiloe Mokoena
0314704340

Sent from my iPad

Begin forwarded message:

From: Kagiso Msiza <kaglsgnmsiza@gmail.com=
Date: 03 July 2015 at 9:29:52 PM SAST

To: Refiloe Mokoana < refiloe, msiza@gmail,com >
Subject: Lyco doe 2
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TPRESIBENT OF THE COLLEGE

February 18, 2015

Foagiso Moz
8 Moever Street Oaklands
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‘o Restits o SAT, AGTIOEFL
The estimated cost to attend’ Lycctfmng C@H&g@ 3%1' 2%1%»&&@3

: % BT e
Tuition, room, board, fees, insurance S&? 000

Less Scholarship 26,000
Approximate balance $21,000

in addition, books and supplies will cost up to $1,200 per year. Perst
around $100 per month.

Future Tuition Increases—Your Scholarship will be renewed ann
time student in good academic standing. Please note--Tuition, rc
increase 3-4% per year. Because the pool of money available for
amount, your scholarship will not increase while you are a stude

Al Lycoming students are required to live in one of eight residence h
purchase the meal plan. One of our residence hallg, usually Forrest. |

* holidays.

' Alinternational Studénts are required to arrive on campus Aug!
Studem Qrientaﬁon w%ﬂ be held from August 17°20. Orientation
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LYCOMNG COLLEGE
8-May-15

Kagiso Msiza

8 Meyer Street .

Qaklands

Johannesburg 2192 South Africa

Yau will be registering for your Fall 2015 classes when you arrive for orientation in August,

To allow yeu to pay your balance by the Fall due date, the following is an estimated bill for the semaster,
Please keep in mind your second semester bili will not include the-Student Haalth Insurancé

of New Student Orientation Fee,

Fult Time Resident Student Costs

Tuitien 17,600.00
Student Health. Insurance 1.532.00
Activity fee 85.00
New Student. Crientation Fee 225.00
Room Rent 2,776.00
Board. 2,666.00
Laundry Fee 40.00
Technology Fee 225.00
Resident student total charges 25,149.00

Less Estimated Financial Aid:

Intermational Grant 13,000.00
Total Financial Aid 13,000.00
Total due for resident student: [ 12,149.00 |

The balange is due on or before July 31, 2015, Once you have registered for classes, you will have the opti
of waiving the student health insurance providing you have comparable coverage. Belowis the link
to waive the health insurance.

Lycoming College has parthered with peerTi ransfer Corporation to provide you and your family with a more
convenient and efficient method of sending intemational payments to the school by going to the link below.
If | can be of further assistance, please let me know.

Sincerely,

Cindy Springman
Bursar

sprin oming.edu

570-321-4032

Student Health Insurance Walver Link
http-#firststudent. com/schoolsiLycomingCollege. htm

Wiring Payment Link
hitps /iwww Deerranster com/schoollveomings



Subject RE: Payment

From Moroadi Cholota <premier@fspremier.gov.za>
To Ignatius Mpambani <igo@diamond-hill.co.za>
Date 2015-08-18 09:57

Good Morning.

Proof of payment received and acknowledged. Thank you very much.

Regards:
Moroadi Cholota
Personal Assistant to Premier: Office of the Premier

Private Bag X20538

BLOEMFONTEIN

9308

Tel: +27 (8)51 485 5942

Fax: +27 (B)51 483 3987

Fax to E Mail: +27 (8)86 215 8318

E Mail: premier@fspremier. gov.za

wn. Fs.pov,za <bttp://www.fs.gov.za/>

----- Original Message-----

Fraom: Ignatius Mpambani [mailto:igo@diamond-hill.co.za]
Sent: 17 August 2015 87:24 PM

To: Moroadi PA Premier FS

Cc: Moroadi PA Premier FS

Subject: Payment

Good day,
Kindly find the proof of payment for $4@e8, regards.

Ignatius Mpambani
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subject  Requeste for payment

N 1\1 46
5/20/2018 Webmail :: Requeste for payment [1L] m '

From Moroadi Cholota <premier@fspremier.gov.za>
To <igo@diamond-hill.co.za>
Copy <morakeio233@gmail.com>

Date 2015-05-06 12:34

+ DOCO007.pdf (~81 KB)

Good Day.

Following the discussion with Ipeleng Morake , Premier requested that you pay full amount of R 470 000.00 and the
remaining amount of R30 000,00 to one of the SRC President in Cuba.

ACC HOLDER:  S.W.C Nkate

ACC NO: 62412467806
ACCOUNT: FNB BANK
AMOUNT : R30 000.00

Hope the above is in order.

Regards:

Ipeleng Morake

hitps:/Awebmaild. konsoleh.co.za/?_task=mail&_action=print&_uid=2611 &_mboxsINBOX 1M



5/18/2018 Webmail :: Request for Funding

subject Request for Funding

From Moroadi Cholota <premier@fspremier.gov.za>
To 'Ignatius Mpambani' <igo@diamend-hiil.co.za>
Date 2016-01-28 13:16

Good Davy.

Kindly find the below Details as discussed telephonically.

Account Name: Astra Travel
Account Number: 470179252

ABSA Bank
Cheque Account

Amount : R250 000.00 (Two Hundred and fifty thousand Rand}
Please do send the proof of payment to the above E-mail address.
Thanking you in advance.

Thank you in advance.

Warm regards:

Moroadi Cholota
Personal Assistant to Premier: Office of the Premier

", Private Bag X20538

: BLOEMFONTEIN

9300

Tel: +27 (0)51 405 5942

Fax: +27 (0)51 403 3987

Fax to E Mail: +27 (0)86 215 8310

E Mail: premier@fspremier.gov.za
www.fs,gov.za

hittps:#iwebmaild.konsoleh.co.za/?_task=mail& _action=print8_uid=6266&_mbox=INBOX

NM @?
"2004/3"
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51912018 Webmail :: RE: Invoice

Subject RE: Invoice

From Moroadi Cholota <premler@fspremier.gov.za>
To Ignatius Mpambani <igo@diamond-hill.co.za>
Date 2016-02-02 09:07

Afternoon.

Kindly note that the proof of payment is well received and appreciated.

Warm regards:
Moroadi Cholota
Personal Assistant to Premier: Office of the Premier

Private Bag X20538

BLOEMFONTEIN

9300

Tel: +27 (@)51 405 5942

Fax: +27 (8)51 403 3987

Fax to E Mail: +27 (©)86 215 83180

E Mail: premienr@fspremier.gov.za

www, fs.gov.za <http://wew.fs.pov.za/l>

----- Original Message-----

From: Ignatius Mpambani [mailto:igo@diamond-hill.co.za]
Sent: 29 January 2016 84:55 PM

To: Moroadi chelota

Subject: Re: Invoice

Received, will send pop accordingly, regards.

Ignatius
I On 29 Jan 2016, at 16:35, Moroadi Cholota <premier@fspremier.gov.za> I
wrote:

Good Afterncon.

Kindly find the attached Invoice as discussed.
Hope you will find it in order.

Regards:

Moroadi Cholota

Personal Assistant to Premier: Office of the Premier

Private Bag X20538

BLOEMFONTEIN

5360

Tel: +27 (8)51 405 5942

Fax: +27 (@)51 483 3987

Fax to E Mail: +27 (B)8B6 215 8316

E Mail: premier@fspremier.gov. za

www. s, gov.za <htip://waw.fs.gov.zal>

https:/webmail4 konsoleh.co.zal?_task=mail&_action=print&_uid=63784&_mbox=INBOX 172
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52112018 Webmail :: Fwd: Account numbers W 2 M ,2 L]

subject Fwd: Account numbers

From Ipeleng Morake <morakeio233@gmail.com>
To Ignatius Mpambani <lgo@diamond-hill,.co.za>
Date 2015-04-10 19:19

See below bank details. T just don't have details for Unisa. Will forward as soon as I get them

---------- Forwarded message --=-------

From: Moroadi <moroadicholota@gmail.com>

Date: Friday, April 10, 2015

Subject: Account numbers

To: "Morakeio233@gmail.com" <Morakeio233@gmail.com>

Ausi Ipe pls find below as discussed.

CUT STANDARD BANK
Acc no: 2404 544 05
Branch no: 05-55-34

Acc type: business current acc
Ref: student number or ID no

UFS/ UOFS ABSA BANK ACC NO: 1570 151 688
BRANCH NO: 630734

REF: 605 THEN STUDENT NUMBER

- REF: STUDENT NUMBER OR ID NO.

NWU ABSA BANK

ACC NO: 4070099350
BRANCH NO: 632005
REF: STUDENT NUMBER
NWU Standard bank
Acc no: 330384465

Branch: 052838
Ref: student humber

Regards:

<image001.jpg>

Morgadi Cholota
Personal Assistant to Premier: Office of the Premier

Private Bag X20538
BLOEMFONTEIN

9300

htips:/iwebmails.konsoleh co.za/?_task=mail3_action=print&_vid=22418_mbox=INBOX 1/2



5/21/2018

Tel:

Fax:
Fax to E Mail;

E Mail;

www.fs gov.za

<DOCO07.pdf>
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ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: You refer also to Ms Cholota. Who is

she and where was she working?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Ms Moroadi Cholota was working in the
Office of the Premier as the Premier’s PA.

CHAIRPERSON: Ms Cholota is Ms Moroadi is that the correct ...?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Moroadi.

CHAIRPERSON: Is that the correct pronunciation? | got it wrong.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Moroadi.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes, okay. Yes and Ms Moroadi is Ms Ipeleng ...

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Morake.

CHAIRPERSON: Morake. Okay. They both worked in the Office of the

Premier?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes sir.

CHAIRPERSON: Okay.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Now you preface that transactions with

paragraph 44 on page 14 of your statement. Could you please read
that paragraph and we will then turn to deal with the specific annexures
to that?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Paragraph 44:

“Mr Mpambani was in constant communication with
the Personal Assistant of Premier Magashule that is
one Ms Moroadi Cholota referred hereto as
Ms Cholota. Ms Cholota would communicate on
behalf of Mr Magashule all his request or

instructions with substantial financial implications
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and no business entity could sustain in its
commercial wellbeing and for ease of reference |
annexed all these annexures marked 2DM9, 10, 11
and 12 and 13 as copies of the emails between
Ms Cholota to Mr Mpambani. It will be noted that in
some of the emails one Ms Ipeleng Morake shall be
referred to as Ms Morake from the Office of the
Premier features prominently in  executing
instructions on behalf of Mr Magashule via
Ms Cholota.”

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Yes. You being annexing those

documents from page 113. If you may please refer to that document.
Could you please ID that document for us?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: This is the email the subject there is

(indistinct) document 2. Is it from Moroadi Cholota in the Premier’s

Office and the - the email address is premier@fspremier.gov.za to

igo@diamondhill.co.za. lgo Mpambani and mpambani@yahoo.com.

The date is the 25th - 2015/08/12 and the time is 10 past one.

CHAIRPERSON:

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: So this email is sent from the office of

the Premier to the service provider that you have mentioned
Mr Mpambani ...

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: The one who you say - who you said was

involved in the asbestos ...
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MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes. Yes sir.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Skip?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes sir.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Now there is also an email at the bottom

and | think that is what we have to start with in order to go to the one
on top. Take us through the one on - on the bottom. It is from who to
who?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: This one is from Refiloe Mokoena and it - it

is from the address - email address

maeto@refiloe.maseza@gmail.com (?) sent on 17 July 2015 to

premier@fspremier.gov.za and the subject there is (indistinct)

document 2 and ...

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: (Intervenes) - sorry. Yes. You want to

say something.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: And it reads thus:

‘Dear Premier, herewith please find the document
for purposes of setting my daughter’s university
account ...”

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Settling.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: “..of settling ...”

Yes.
“...my daughter’s university account. Please know
that the annual fees payable after receiving the
scholarship is approximately US$2 400 ...”

CHAIRPERSON: 24 000.
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ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: 24.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: “..24 298.”

That is US Dollars.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Yes.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: “The semester amount payable

before 31 July 2015 is however US$12 149. Kindly
go to the link provided in their email and use the
following access code to pay namely user name is
given there and the password is given. Please
acknowledge receipt and let me know if you will
also be paying for her travelling and living
expenses as well. | take this opportunity to thank
you from the bottom of our heart for your
assistance. | have no doubt that my daughter will
make good use of this opportunity. God Bless,
Refiloe Mokoena.”

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Now before | pose questions could you

explain the contents of this letter. What was happening?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: The - the person referred here is

Ms Mokoena - Refiloe Mokoena. At some stage she had a distinct act -
opportunity acting also as - as a Judge in the Free State and
sometimes in Gauteng and ended up at SARS. Currently she is under
suspension at - at the - | think at SARS.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Now | - | am - | am much more - you

know concerned with the contents of the email. What was being
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conveyed and what was supposed to happen?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: It is clear that this was directed to the

Premier and one would assume that they might have met to discuss this
and she was following up on the matter because of the way this is
written and even thanking the Premier in advance and this was asking
for payment of schooling or annual fees of the - of
Ms Refiloe Mokoena’s child.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Do you know why such a request would

be made by Ms Mokoena to the Premier?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: | have no idea because | - | think that as we

will be dealing at a later stage with these scholarships or bursaries one
would think that any - any deserving student but also a clear criteria
should be set up for any person to do this. It will go through the
normal processes.

The question | do not understand is you will see Chairperson
this one when it is directed to the Premier and taking into consideration
the - the Free State prides itself in making sure that there is - there are
- there is a lot of kids who are studying abroad and - and here at home
and there is a bursary - there is a program and we will deal with that.

One would understand that it will be common purpose that
there whole thing would go through the normal process and deal with
this in that particular way. Send it over to the people who are dealing
with the - with the - with all these things. In this case it will be as we
will see later it will be the Office of the - the DG but Ms Morake is

actually in the Office of the Premier but is working more in - with regard
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to the international scholars - bursary holders.

She is a - but in this case we still working - dealing with the
letter that - the email that was sent to the Office of the Premier for this
request.

CHAIRPERSON: So are you saying that the Provincial Government had

a special scholarship or bursary fund that it used to assist or sponsor
over - students from the Free State Province who would be studying
outside of the country?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: When | was still - | do not know if this has

changed Chairperson. When | was still in Government as - as MECs for
instance | would have a - a - you know an opportunity to give bursaries
to at least 10 kids and in that it was stipulated that my children - my
relatives or any person close to me should not be considered. It was
that condition.

So you will be allocated 10 kids to - to allocate bursaries to
and - and that was a condition. It should not be any person related to
me in anyway and then the - the - then there was this scholarship
program that was given to - to children in the - in the Free State and as
we will deal with this we will demonstrate that how the whole process
went about but the - the issue is the - | found it strange that the person
would go straight to the Premier.

Unless the person knows the Premier or the former Premier
and you know will direct that but under - under normal circumstances
you would direct your request to the Office of the Director-General in

this case.
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CHAIRPERSON: Yes but my question is - was whether to your

knowledge the Provincial Government had a special bursary fund or
scholarship that was for students who were studying outside of the
country?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes it has - it has that program.

CHAIRPERSON: It had that program?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes. It has the program.

CHAIRPERSON: Was that separate from what you have just told me

about namely that an MEC would be allocated like 10

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: It - it ...

CHAIRPERSON: Students or was that part of the whole program?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Your 10 students become part of the whole
funding thing.

CHAIRPERSON: Oh.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes.

CHAIRPERSON: And it was for both inside the - studying inside and

outside or only outside?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: In our case - say in my case | never funded

any student going abroad.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: | would give the - the - these to students who

are studying at home.

CHAIRPERSON: Inside the country?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Inside the country.

CHAIRPERSON: But was there a limitation to say you can only use
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this allocation for students who are studying in the country or you - you
can - it is up to you whether you also assist somebody who is studying
outside the country? Was there any limitation on that as far as you
remember?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes there was - there was Chair. You - we -

the - that was determined at the Office of the Premier of the students
who would go abroad. It started as only those who were going to Cuba
at the time for medicine. Then it included many others but for all other
kids we will then be allocated 10 but also you have got the top 100 kids
and - and all these other things that were offered.

CHAIRPERSON: Okay.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Now you have explained the ...

CHAIRPERSON: Mr Mokoena maybe we should take the ...

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Oh, yes.

CHAIRPERSON: Tea - tea break. It is quarter past. We will take the

short adjournment and resume at half past 11. We adjourn.
REGISTRAR: All rise.

INQUIRY ADJOURNS

INQUIRY RESUMES

CHAIRPERSON: Yes let's proceed.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Thank you Chair. Mr Dukwana just

before the tea adjournment we were still dealing with the document on
page 113.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: We have now explained the bottom part
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of the email, now what | want to understand from you that there is an
email on top, do you know why would this request be dispatched to Mr
Mbabane who is a service provider?

CHAIRPERSON: [I'm sorry Mr Mokoena you said there is an email on

top at 113.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: At 113 yes, if you look there’s a line

Chair dividing the two emails.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes, has he read that email, do you want him to read

it first or not.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Read the email to contextualise.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: This email is from Morali Cholota to Ego,

that is Mr Mbabane, it was dated the 12t" August 2015 and it goes on to
say,

‘Good day this was the initial request sent to the Premier
regards, Morali Cholota”.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Yes.

CHAIRPERSON: And it was sent at 10 minutes past one, 13h10.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Yes.

CHAIRPERSON: | seem to think that the other one you read was also

sent more or less the same time.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Itwas 11h50 AM.

CHAIRPERSON: Oh okay, alright thank you.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: On a different date Chair meaning that

the one on - at the bottom seems to have preceded the one on top.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes oh ja and they are on different dates and
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different months.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Yes Chair.

CHAIRPERSON: Okay.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Now my question Mr Dukwana, why

would that request that was made to the Premier as per the bottom
email now being sent to the service provider?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: One can only conclude, Chairperson, before

that, that — before concluding, the Free State as we said has a bursary
programme and it’s meant for kids who are — who cannot afford but who
are — who qualify to get the bursary and one would understand the
logical thing to do, once you get this kind of a bursary if it comes after
the deadline you have closed issuing the bursary you would - as a
responsible person you would indicate like that, that you would not be
able to help avoiding a situation where there’s a service provider doing
this and you then ask favours from the service provider.

CHAIRPERSON: I'm not sure whether that’s an answer to Mr

Mokoena’s question. | understood the question to be whether you are
able to say why Ms Cholota would send this request to Mr Mbabane?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: | thought | gave a context Chair, to say you

have a bursary scheme and | don’t understand why this one specifically
would go to Ego.

CHAIRPERSON: Oh so your answer is, you don’t understand why it

was sent or would have been sent to Mr Mbabane, that’'s the answer?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes.

CHAIRPERSON: Okay well Mr Mokoena | was looking at the subject,
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the email from Ms Mokoena has a subject, [indistinct], the one from Ms
Cholota to Mr Mbabane doesn’t seem to have a subject, am | right? It
doesn’t seem to identify the subject.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: It has.

CHAIRPERSON: Is that because it was attaching the one from Ms

Mokoena?

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: It’s referring to the one below Chair.

CHAIRPERSON: It's referring to the one below okay.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: One trail of email.

CHAIRPERSON: Okay.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Yes but we can also deal with other

documents Chair to give you that, if you may turn to page 117 so that
we can understand the subject matter, what is that document?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: It's the [indistinct] college 8 May 2015 it’s

written to the person Masiza who stays at this address in
Johannesburg.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Yes and it's from that [indistinct] college

am | correct?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes you are correct.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: And the amount - what is the total

amount?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: The total amount here is 12 149.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Okay if you turn to page 113 would that

amount accord to what you see in the bottom email, the second

paragraph?
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MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes this one in the email Refiloe Mokoena

stipulates, even clarifying here the amount is 12 149 it does not show
whether it’s dollars or rands but here it specifies the dollars US Dollars
12 149.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Now having regard to that sequence of

documents may | refer to another, on page 118 if you could please
identify the document and please read the contents into the record.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: The subject is Payment from Moroadi

Choloto, the Premier’'s office to Ignus Mbabane and it's dated the 18th
of August 2015,
“Good morning, proof of payment received and acknowledged,
thank you very much, regards Moroadi Choloto, Personal
Assistant to Premier office of the Premier and dating
everything that is there”.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Yes there appears to be another email

at the bottom if you can also read it.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: This one came before that one it was - it's

written from - it comes from Mr Ignus Mbabane sent on the 17th of
August 2015 to Moroadi, PA Premier Free State, CC Moroadi, PA
Premier Free State, subject payment.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: So from that trail we’ll see that there

was initial request it goes to the office of the Premier and it's sent to
the service provider and the said provided does pay amount.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes the service provider here in this email

says — confirms he says,
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“Good day kindly find the proof of payment for 4000 Dollars,
regards Ilgnus Mbabane”.

CHAIRPERSON: So the request from Miss Refiloe Mokoena at page

113 which was addressed to the Premier is dated 17July 2015, and the
email from Miss Moroadi Choloto an assistant in the Premiers office,
her email to Mr Mbabane is dated 12 August 2015 and it says this was
the initial request sent to the Premier and we are to understand that
the request is the one of Miss Refiloe Mokoena and then you made
reference at page 117...[intervenes].

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: It’s an attachment of what was required to

be paid.

CHAIRPERSON: The attachment dated 8 May - oh that was from the
college, 8 May giving the amount then we have then the email from Mr
Mbabane on the 17th of August 2015 addressed to Miss Moroadi
Choloto, that’s the PA to the Premier which says,

“Kindly find the proof of payment for 4 000 Dollars”,

And then thereafter on the 18th of August, the following day
2015 there’s an email from Miss Choloto to Mr Mbabane acknowledging
receipt of proof of payment and thanking him.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: That's the sequence Chair.

CHAIRPERSON: Okay thank you.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: That's exactly the evidence of this

witness.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes, so this gives the impression, you know the

picture that Miss Refiloe requested the Premier to settle her daughter’s
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fees and one of the PA’s to the Premier sent that request to Mr
Mbabane and Mr Mbabane made payment of 4 000 Dollars and sent
proof of payment to Miss Choloto in the Premier’s office and Miss
Choloto acknowledged receipt of payment?

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Yes Chair.

CHAIRPERSON: Okay.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: That's the sequence, does it capture it

neatly Mr Dukwana?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Aright let’'s proceed you in line with

what I've said in your paragraph you then refer to further payments if
you may turn to page 119 and take us through as to how do you link it
with your arguments in paragraph 43. Identify the document for us and
tell us what are the instructions and what has transpired.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: This one is also - the subject is request for

payment from Moroadi Choloto...[intervenes].

CHAIRPERSON: [I'm sorry what page are we?

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: 119 Chair.

CHAIRPERSON: Okay thank you.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: It's from Moroadi Choloto from the Premier’s

office to Eqo@diamondhill.co.za and a copy to Morakeio233@gmial.com

dated the 6!" of - | think it's May 2015,
“‘Good day, following the discussion with Ipile Morake Premier
requested that we pay full amount 470 000 and the remaining

amount of R30 000 to one of the SRC president in Cuba, the
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account holder is SWC Inkata, account number is given and
it's FNB, amount R30 000. | hope the above is in order
regards Ipile Morake”.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Yes please more detail to this email who

are — who dispatches it and who is the recipient of that email?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: |Ipile Morake is in the office of the Premier

dealing with IGR or Government Relations in the office of the Premier
and this was from Moroadi Choloto going to Ego but this was addressed
to Ego, this amount.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Remind us as to who is Ego?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Ego Mbabane is the — a partner to the joint

venture that got this asbestos project.

CHAIRPERSON: That’s the one that reference has been made to when

we were talking about the payment of the school fees for Miss
Mokoena’s daughter?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: The same person.

CHAIRPERSON: The same person?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: The same person.

CHAIRPERSON: Okay.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: So here the request is made for Ego to

pay for Mr Mbabane and Ego to pay R470 000 and remaining R30 000
to be paid to the SRC president in Cuba am | correct?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: You're correct.

CHAIRPERSON: | don’t know whether you might be able to say to

indicate what your understanding is here. I'm not sure whether the
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understanding - the instruction is that the two amounts must be paid to
the SRC president in Cuba or whether it’'s only the R30 000 that has to
be paid to the SRC and maybe the first amount of R470 000 is to be
paid somewhere else and the recipient is supposed to know where it is
to be paid, you might not be able to assist.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: It’s clear that the only amount, if you check

the details of the account holder and that the amount is specified that it
should be R30 000 and that would mean the person was supposed to
pay R500 000 in total. The R470 000 is paid - should be paid but the
remaining R30 000 should actually go to this account.

CHAIRPERSON: So your understanding is that the two amounts are

not to be paid to the SRC president it’s only the R30 000.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: The R30 000.

CHAIRPERSON: Okay, alright.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: If you may refer to page 120 and also

take us through that document but firstly by identifying it and thereafter
please comment its contents.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: This one also has the office stamp of the

Premier of the Free State and it’'s from Moroadi Choloto, Personal
Assistant to the Free State Office of the Premier, the subject is,
request for funding to Ignatius Mbabane and is dated the 28!" of
January 2016 and it says,
“‘Good day, kindly find the below details as discussed
telephonically, account name is given, account number is a

travel agency and it's an amount of R250 000 written also in
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words, two hundred and fifty thousand. Please send the proof
of payment to the above email address, thank you in advance,
warm regards”.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: So this is a further request made to Mr

Mbabane?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes sir.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: To also pay this amount?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes sir.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: |If | may refer you to the next document

on page 121...[intervenes].

CHAIRPERSON: So this time the amount is R250 000?

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Yes.

CHAIRPERSON: Okay alright.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Yes.

CHAIRPERSON: And on the face of this email, it's not clear what the

amount was for, is that right?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: One can deduce it was for travelling

because they paid to a travel agency.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes okay.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Yes the next document is on page 121.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: The subject is the invoice from Moroadi

Choloto at the Premier’s office...[intervenes].

CHAIRPERSON: |Is that a different amount, a different transaction or

are we still connected with this one of R250 000.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: | think it's still connected Chair.
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CHAIRPERSON: Maybe let me ask the question | wanted to ask. With

regard to the R250 000 which was to be paid to Astra Travel, Mr
Dukwana are you — having been in Government for the long time that
you were in Government are you able to throw any light as to why the
office of the Premier would instruct somebody in private business to
make a payment to a travel agent, of this kind of amount...[intervenes].

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: This is, like | said, under normal

circumstances leaders would avoid such transactions happening, you
would not get one person who would go to a service provider,
especially if it is an official trip or whatever that you ask somebody to
pay for your cost — to bear your cost of travelling or any other person
for that matter. So it's something very strange.

CHAIRPERSON: It's something you are not able to throw light on

other — but you say you don’t understand it to be normal for such a
thing to happen, if it relates to your official?

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: If you remember Chairperson, | told you

yesterday, | told the Commission that in the Free State a system that
undermined a system of good governance emerged in the Free State
and as such abnormal things would happen. Something that is not
supposed to happen would happen and these things would happen with
impunity because people were becoming a law unto themselves. Under
normal circumstances this should not happen and I'm saying this is the
person who gets it and we are talking about an unsolicited bid and all
these other things that are raised and immediately after this there is so

much request coming you pay this, you must pay this. Any business
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person, if you want to help a business and you affect the cash flow of
such a business you are killing it. In this case here’s a person who
gets this business and is working, you now have demands coming from
the office of the Premier, pay this amount, pay this amount, | mean
R470 000, R500 000 in total, R200 000 and something again, this is
ridiculous Chairperson.

CHAIRPERSON: The R470 000 plus R30 000 which make R500 000

was in August | think 2015 and the R250 000 is in January 2016, so
that means if Mr Mbabane or his company paid these two amounts that
means by end of January 2016, it means more or less within six
months, he would have paid more than - around R750 000 at the
request of the office of the Premier.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: You have excluded the 4 000 US Dollars.

CHAIRPERSON: Oh ja so it would be more than R700 0007

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: It would be more than that.

CHAIRPERSON: Well it couldn’t — the payment to the travel agents

couldn’t be for the Premier’s official trips because those would be paid
for by Government, there will be no reason for some business person to
pay for those. So the question would be whether that amount could
have been for the Premier’'s personal trips and if it was for the
Premier’s personal trips that could raise questions as well. You have
alluded to one question, if it was for somebody else’s trip then there
would be question of why the Premier would get involved in trying to
organise payment for trips for somebody else and why those people

wouldn’t go directly to Mr Mbabane or whoever if they needed any
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assistance with travelling.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: The question that must be asked all the time

is why people would feel comfortable in approaching the office of the
Premier and getting this thing. The - as you say, | don’t think this was
for the travelling of the Premier | think he was facilitating for somebody
else or some people and the question would also be relevant what you
raised, why then the office of the Premier should get itself involved in
facilitating such especially with a person who was doing business with
Government.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes because the amount of R500 000 was in August

2015, the letter of appointment said the appointment for Mr Mbabane’s
company was from 1 December 2014 to end of March 2015 but there
were payments envisaged beyond that even in May 2015, so this is -
this request for July, the payment was in August 2015 and we know that
later in 2017 there is that service level agreement that we dealt with
earlier, okay thank you.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Mr Dukwana on page 121 it appears

that there is an acknowledgement of payment, please take us through
that it might be linked with the one on 120 unless you testify differently.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: This comes from Moroadi and it says,

“Afternoon to Ignatius Mbabane, kindly note that the proof of
payment is well received and appreciated. Warm regards
Moroadi Choloto Personal Assistant to Premier office of the
Premier”.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Yes so clearly when those requests
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were made to Mr Mbabane he did comply with same and effect those
payments as we have already demonstrated with different Annexures to
your statement.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes this one also, if you check and read,

this was also a response to the one that was sent earlier by Mr
Mbabane confirming the payment.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Yes, now if | may refer you back to page

14 because you make concluding remarks on these payments that you
have dealt with and you deal with them on paragraph 44 and 46, Chair
on page 14, if you can read those paragraphs into the record.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: From page 14, 44 and 46.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Yes.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: “Mr Mbabane was in constant communication

with the personal assistant of Premier Magashule, one Miss
Moroadi Choloto, Miss Choloto would communicate on behalf
of Mr Magashule on his request or instruction with substantial
financial implications. No business entity could sustain in his
commercial well-being and | attach Annexures thereof as
copies of the emails between Miss Choloto to Mbabane to Mr
Mbabane it will be noted that in some of the emails, one Miss
Ipile Morake from the office of the Premier features
prominently in executing instructions on behalf of Magashule
via Miss Choloto. 45. It is apparent from the emails between
Miss Choloto and Mr Mbabane that payments were advanced

for every [indistinct] request that was made to Mr Mbabane on
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behalf of Mr Magashule as [indistinct] in the said emails at all
material times thereto. The official emails of Miss Choloto and
Miss Morake were wused to communicate request and
acknowledge payments of monies and executing instructions at
the behest of Mr Magashule.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: And paragraph 46 you draw certain

inferences.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: “An inference could be drawn that each time

payment was advanced to Blackhead Consulting JV by the

10 Free State Department of Housing, Miss Choloto or Miss
Morake were informed undoubtedly both would inform Mr
Magashule followed by a honorous request or instruction to Mr
Mbabane resulting in the latter making payments as requested
or instructed by Mr Magashule”.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Yes, now let’s move on to page 15 of

your statement in paragraph 47 you are referring to a concept which I'm
sure that it's foreign to me and the Chair, please if you can read and
explain what you're conveying.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: “47. Mr Magashule was simply a blessing to

20 many due to payments advanced by Mr Mbabane from monies
corruptly and fraudulently sourced from the State coffers
through the asbestos project at the behest of Mr Magashule,
Mr Mbabane paid sums of monies for some students studying
through various Universities here and abroad...[intervenes].

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Yes. Mr Chair speaking for myself | am
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not sure what is a blesser but | think you were still proceeding to deal
with the concepts.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: It is - it is a [indistinct] old ages you would

use Father Christmas but now you you know it is a blesser in the sense
that you — you agree to request that personally you not able to do but
you facilitate this on behalf of other people. And - and worse it comes
from the - the service provider that is working with the - with your
government. So you know it is taking this — you giving and taking it
and giving there so that you will be seen to be this person who would
do everything to demonstrate that you care but at the expense of the
public resources that are acquired fraudulent.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Yes.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: So as | said you know for the — just to avoid

being seen as old and coming to the new generation the blesser would
fit well as opposed to the Father Christmas.

CHAIRPERSON: And | see you referred to a blesser would that be a

blessee?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: The one who [intervention].

CHAIRPERSON: And if so who would be the blessee in this context?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: In one context the blessee will be Mr — Ms

Mokoena. That will be a blessee for the fact that the blesser upon
receiving your request went to the provider who would do that on behalf
of the blesser and get to the blessee Ms Mokoene in this case.

CHAIRPERSON: Would Mr Mpambani not be also be — be a blessee in

terms of any government work if there was government work that he
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was being given or that would not — the term would not fit in there?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: We can use it even to him in this case where

you get money and then you use it whenever there is a request.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes okay. Alright.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: But what is very interesting Chairperson is

why would the request come from the highest office in the province?
And - and go to this person and everything happens this way. That is
why we - you know you say once you respect the laws and every — the
act you protect the office from all these kinds of things and once you
are in an office you need to demonstrate that and make sure that you
protect that office. But drawing that office to issues like this is actually
undermining the office and also abusing your authority in this regard
because if the request was made and Mr Mpambani did not respond
positively this would have also put him in the difficult situation.

CHAIRPERSON: Hm. | thought your counsel wanted to say something

at some stage maybe it has fallen away.

ADV SMANGA SETHENE: Chairperson | was intrigued by your smile

when the concept of blesser is being discussed. It appears the
Chairperson is well versed with the concept of blesser and blessee.

CHAIRPERSON: Well the Chairperson reads newspapers and - and

watches - is touch with what happens in South Africa. Thank you.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: As indicated Chair you can exclude me |

am not sure about the concept. You in paragraph 48 and 49 the issues
that you canvass there you have already testified on those issues so it

is not necessary for us to repeat that evidence but | want to draw your
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attention to paragraph 50 of your witness statement where you link
different payments with that asbestos scheme. Please read for us
paragraph 50 and explain?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA:

‘Events from the emails between Ms Cholota and Mr
Mpambani all the requests or instructions originated
from Mr Magashula. And inference could be drawn
that the asbestos audit was but an asbestos audit
heist sponsored by the Premier of the Free State
Government. The Asbestos Audit Heist was executed
through the Premier’'s office by Mr Magashule’s
personal assistant employed by government at the
behest of Mr Magashule. This was not only a blatant
abuse of power by Mr Magashule but a brazen
commission of fraud, money laundering and daylight
robbery of the public purse.”

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Yes. Now you also proceed to attach a

spreadsheet to your statement and you attach it as Annexure 2DM14.
Mr Chair that spreadsheet is to be found on page 124.

CHAIRPERSON: | have found it.

ADV _PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Now that spreadsheet Mr Dukwana

reflects further payments and beneficiaries which might have been paid
the amounts which are reflected in that spreadsheet, am | correct?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: You are correct.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Could you take the Chair through that
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spreadsheet?

CHAIRPERSON: Well may — before he does that can | know where the

spreadsheet comes from?

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Yes Chair definitely.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Mr Dukwana could you also explain to

the Chair the source if you can of this spreadsheet?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: From Mr Mpambani’s emails.

CHAIRPERSON: It - from Mr Mpambani’s emails?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes.

CHAIRPERSON: One of the emails?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: One of the emails.

CHAIRPERSON: It was attached there?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: It is an email coming from.

CHAIRPERSON: It was in an email? Okay.

ADV SMANGA SETHENE: May | assist Chair?

CHAIRPERSON: Yes, yes.

ADV SMANGA SETHENE: It is part of the supplementary statement.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

ADV SMANGA SETHENE: That email is attached in the supplementary

statement.

CHAIRPERSON: Okay.

ADV SMANGA SETHENE: Perhaps it would be fitting if Mr Mokoena

can start with that email to give a context to the spreadsheet.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes because it is important before we go into the
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content of the spreadsheet to see.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Chair you will find the supplementary

from page 222.

CHAIRPERSON: 2227 | do not seem to have 222 | seem to have up to

221.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: | am reliably informed Mr Chair that it

was placed in your file instead - maybe it is part of those documents
that went to read separately before making the -the ruling of the
observation that the Chair made subsequent to different parties have
made submissions to the Chair. So it might be that it is somewhere - it
is lying somewhere.

CHAIRPERSON: Ja.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: But if we may.

CHAIRPERSON: Ja | think any documents that are handed up just -

somebody must make sure that they are put in and it should be
somebody from the legal team because he might not know exactly
where to put it.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Where to putitin - Yes Chair.

CHAIRPERSON: Okay | have — | can make use of that.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: But for the purpose of facility -

facilitating this debate we may hand you a further copy.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes. Thank you.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: While the Chair is still putting that

document in its file Mr Dukwana you can also quickly go mark the

paragraphs that links those different emails and the email in question.
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MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: You say the supplementary statement.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Yes supplementary statement.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Can you repeat the instruction again?

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Go to page 222.

CHAIRPERSON: Oh this is the supplementary statement that | was told

about;

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Yes.

CHAIRPERSON: Yesterday.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Yesterday. Yesterday Chair.

CHAIRPERSON: But you say it was handed up?

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Yes Chair.

CHAIRPERSON: Oh okay.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: You read — you also had an opportunity

to go and read it in chambers.

CHAIRPERSON: Oh thatis the one that | read.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Yes for you to come and make a ruling.

CHAIRPERSON: Well when | read it it was in the other bundle which is

not here. | do not know if it is supposed to be here. That was the
bundle that had correspondence?

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: It could have been misplaced there

inadvertently.

CHAIRPERSON: Ja.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: But it is fine.

CHAIRPERSON: Or maybe they might not have appreciated that that

particular bundle which has correspondence was required today.
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ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Yes.

CHAIRPERSON: | think that is what might have happened. | probably

also did not think it was required.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Required.

CHAIRPERSON: Because it was [intervention].

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: But be that as it may Chair we will make

sure that it is placed and in the proper place.

CHAIRPERSON: Correspondence. Ja. Maybe what you - what you

can — what you can clarify because | understood it to be handed up
simply for convenience in regard to the argument that was to be

presented and that is why we did not admit as an Exhibit.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: And maybe it might be also - be
appropriate for us to mark it accordingly.

CHAIRPERSON: If ...

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: So that we do not lose it.

CHAIRPERSON: |If the intention is to have it as an Exhibit then we will

have to do that.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Definitely as an exhibit Chair.

CHAIRPERSON: Ja. But | do not know whether we need to do that

insofar as it refers to correspondence.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Because it is some - it is simply

supplementing what is already existing.

CHAIRPERSON: Ja.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Which is Exhibit X5.

CHAIRPERSON: Ja it may be that you need to check what it is that is
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there that really needs to be part of the evidence as such. Obviously
the supplementary statement is important. But the supplementary
statement might well belong here.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Yes Chair.

CHAIRPERSON: Rather than in that other file.

ADV _PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: No it does not definitely you know

belong in the correspondence file.

CHAIRPERSON: In the other file. Yes,yes.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Remember that the correspondence file.

CHAIRPERSON: Ja.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Was merely to place different items that

were received at the last moment.

CHAIRPERSON: Hm. Yes.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: And that included also you know the

supplementary statement.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: But I think it should belong in the main

file.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes, ja.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: And maybe to be identified as you know

Exhibit.

CHAIRPERSON: Ja okay thank you.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: X6 Chair.

CHAIRPERSON: Thank you.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Or Exhibit XX7 Chair.
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CHAIRPERSON: You refer to X7.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Yes because...

CHAIRPERSON: You talk about that bundle. When you say X7 what

are you talking about?

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: No | am saying that maybe this

supplementary should be referred to.

CHAIRPERSON: As X7.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: As Exhibit X7.

CHAIRPERSON: Exhibit X7.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Yes.

CHAIRPERSON: In which case should it not be on a separate - would

there be a problem if it is simply added here as part of this Exhibit and
not as a separate exhibit?

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: We are — we are easy.

CHAIRPERSON: | think that is — because this is where it belong.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: That is where it belongs Chair.

CHAIRPERSON: All the other supplementary.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Definitely.

CHAIRPERSON: Are here. Okay so let us not mark it separately. So

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: It can be referred to as a supplementary.

CHAIRPERSON: It will simply be added at the end of Exhibit X. Ja.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: At the end of Exhibit X5 Chair.

CHAIRPERSON: Ja. Ja. Thank you.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Yes.
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CHAIRPERSON: | have got it. The spreadsheet — | think somebody

said it is part — was attached to the - to the supplementary statement,
is that right? The spreadsheet that you were talking about?

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: The spreadsheet Chair it is part and

parcel of the main.

CHAIRPERSON: Of the main.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Of the main statement.

CHAIRPERSON: Not the supplementary.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: The main statement ja. Which is X5.

CHAIRPERSON: Ja.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: And that is where we have located in the

spreadsheet.

CHAIRPERSON: Okay.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Yes.

CHAIRPERSON: Okay. Okay let us continue then.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Yes. If you go to the document that you

are referring to Mr Dukwana and in line with the question posed to you
by the Chair you did provide a supplementary statement, am | correct?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: You are correct.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: And in that statement you also deal with

some of the documents which were initially not annexed to your
statement, am | correct?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: You are correct.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: If you turn to page 225.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes.
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ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Take us through paragraph 11 and 12

and tell us as to how should we link that to this spreadsheet?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: This — see email correspondence between Mr
Mpambani and Sodi. Paragraph 11 | refer to paragraph 52.1 | made
reference to the email exchanges between Mr Mpambani and Sodi
relating to payments effected for asbestos heist. It appears | only
annexed the spreadsheet and not the copy of the said email. | annex
hereto marked 2DMS2 being a copy of the email exchange in issue.
The email from Mpambani to Sodi reads:

‘Sure Eddie | have affected the payment in two

batches. Kindly find attached the updated schedule

with the following minor adjustments. JT from R1

million to R500 000.00. | hope the issue

supplemented above are in order.”

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Now for completeness turn to page 231.

Is that the email that you are referring to?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes, yes Chair.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: And you are linking that to the

spreadsheet?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Exactly that is what | am doing.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: So then your answer to the Chair is that

the spreadsheet that you are just about to deal with was as a result of
the correspondence that passed hands between Mr Mpambani and Mr
Sodi?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Correct Sir.
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CHAIRPERSON: That email at 231 comes from Edwin Sodi Chief

Executive Officer and it is addressed to Sure Eddie. | have affected
the payments in two batches kindly find attached the updated schedule
with the following minor adjustments. JT from R1 million to
R500 000.00 on 24 March 2015 at 3:23 pm and then that is the email
address. Yes so that is part of - that went with the spreadsheet, is
that right?

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Mr Dukwana.

CHAIRPERSON: Mr Dukwana did that go with the spreadsheet?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: But it is from — not from Edwin it is from Igo

to Edwin.

CHAIRPERSON: Oh right at the top.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Right at the top.

CHAIRPERSON: Not to Edwin.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: To Edwin yes.

CHAIRPERSON: Okay alright thank you.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Chair just to correct also to make sure

that we align you with the times. Sure it is not the name of the person
| am sure it is a greeting when it says sure Eddie. So it is not
addressed to Sure Eddie.

CHAIRPERSON: Well | - | had a suspicion that it was about greeting

but | was not sure. One does not see these things written down.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Yes Chair.

CHAIRPERSON: One hears them being said only.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: So...
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CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Having clarified the issue of the spread

[intervention]

CHAIRPERSON: But at 231 it is an email from Edwin Sodi addressed

to Eddie but Mr Mpambani is sending something or - to Eddie, is that
right?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: You are right.

CHAIRPERSON: Hm.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: He is sending the spreadsheet but he was

demonstrating how they have dealt with that but correcting all the - the
amount.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: For duty from R1 million to R500 000.00.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes. Okay. Itis a little confusing.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: It does Chair.

CHAIRPERSON: Ja.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: But what - what appears to be the

relevant portion in terms of linking it is it not the first line that says that
| have affected the payments in two benches but most importantly
kindly attached the updated schedule with reference to the following
adjustment. Should one read the adjusted schedule to - adjusted
schedule to be the one that you will be dealing with?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Exactly it is the one Chairperson that we will

be dealing with the spreadsheet.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Now if we may refer to page 124. If you
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can take us through the different columns - but maybe before you do
that Mr Dukwana because | have just adjusted certain things in my
notes. If you can go back to page 16 of your statement. If you look at
the spreadsheet comparing the spreadsheet with what you are saying
there. In the spreadsheet you will agree with me that it only gives the
initials or the abbreviated names like those that are appearing there,
am | correct?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: You are correct.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: However in your statement you then put

the full names of what you believe those people to be, am | correct?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Okay. Bear in mind the 52.3.1 as we
proceed through that — that will be Mr X for the references throughout
this spreadsheet, am | correct?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Correct.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Yes. Now [intervention].

CHAIRPERSON: What page did you say the spreadsheet is again?

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Itis page 124.

CHAIRPERSON: Oh | gotit. Yes okay.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Now let us go back to the — page 124

and take us through the different columns and the payments that could
have been effected?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: The spreadsheet is headed or referred to as

The Free State Asbestos Eradication Project. And it has a number of

units. It has rate per unit. It has a project value and it has the year.
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And then the extreme right you would see that there is a first payment,
the second payment and the third payment to be effected.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: And please tell us what - | mean

according to your knowledge would each column signify that would be
quite important so that we do not lose your evidence.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Can | suggest that we go through this and

then explain.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Yes.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: So that...

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Yes.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: If you check Chairperson the — the number of

units that you will see there is 300 000.

CHAIRPERSON: That is now on the extreme left column.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes.

CHAIRPERSON: Of the bigger column. There is...

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Bigger — the extreme left.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: The left one.

CHAIRPERSON: There is 300 000 units.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes.

CHAIRPERSON: It says number of units and then the number 300 000

appears.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: And then it then says the rate per unit.

CHAIRPERSON: The next column is the...

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: And in this case it is R850.00
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CHAIRPERSON: The next column it says rate per unit and it says

R850.00.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: And then when you multiply that it gives you

R255 million.

CHAIRPERSON: Okay hang on let us not speak at the same time Mr

Dukwana.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Okay.

CHAIRPERSON: So - so you were saying that the next column has got

rate per unit and it has got R850.00, is that right?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: That is right Chairperson.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes then you move to the next column.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: The project value. That is the total amount
of the project. The Free State Asbestos Eradication Project.

CHAIRPERSON: Well you have to read it as it is. The total project

value reflected on the third column is R255 million.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Exactly.

CHAIRPERSON: And then you want to make an observation about that

amount.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: The R255 million is the same amount that was

referred to in the — in the letter — the instruction from the HOD.

CHAIRPERSON: So you - so you say if we go back to the letter of

instruction from the Head of the HOD which was at page 94 if | recall
correctly the total value of the Asbestos Project was R255 million.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: That is correct Chair.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes. And | see 300 000 where it says number of
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units. That letter also indicated that the housing units which were to be
the subject of that project was 300 000, is that correct?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Correct.

CHAIRPERSON: And there was — was there not also something about

the amount per unit?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: It was there.

CHAIRPERSON: Is it the same as R850.00 that is written here?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Itis R850.00 Chairperson yes.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Correct.

CHAIRPERSON: So from this you conclude?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: This is the project that we referred to as the
Heist that was the - what comes from the office of the - in the
Department of Human Settlement in the Province and then let us — that
pointed out that the total value of the project is R255 million and that
each house would be the cost for that would be R850.00 and then they
will do the audit for 300 000 houses. So that tells you that it is not
separated, it links very well with what we are explaining here now.

CHAIRPERSON: So the suggesting you make is that the payments that

you are about to read in the spreadsheet are connected to the project
of the Eradication of Asbestos, that is what you are saying?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Correct Sir.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes okay. Mr Mokoena.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: | had indicated that having discussions with

the late Igo Mpambani explaining to me in detail it was a long
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discussion that we had and it did not happen once it happened several
times. He - he used certain names and that were involved in the
project and he — he referred to them when | was asking — are you not
going to be disappointed the way you were with the — in the other
project that you wanted to undertake in the Free State? And then he
said we are sorted out. We have dealt with everything this time that we
have brought everybody who matters, who would facilitate the process
so there is no problem or there is nothing that one should be afraid of.
And but of course as he would mention people that they are working
with this one, this one he was using these and | would ask who is this
one and he would tell me the name.

CHAIRPERSON: Was he using initials?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: He was using initials.

CHAIRPERSON: Was he using a nickname?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: He was using initials.

CHAIRPERSON: Initials.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: And then he would say the — and | would ask

specifically who is this one?

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes.

CHAIRPERSON: Okay.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: And at the time | was not asking because |

wanted to prepare or there was any commission | was asking because |
just wanted to know who are these people that you talking about.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.
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MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes and then he would give this to me and

then that is it. But he only gave me names of people that he thought
were more relevant to be mentioned to me. Others did not
[intervention].

CHAIRPERSON: You did not ask?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Ja.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes. Okay.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: And others he did not give. As he was

speaking he would tell me this person and then he would tell me this
person.

CHAIRPERSON: Oh.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: So he did not tell me all the other people.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: That are here in the spreadsheet.

CHAIRPERSON: But did you ask him to tell you who certain people

were and not all of them or did you ask all of them but he gave you
some and not gave you others or ...?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Let me make an example. When he said the

- the project in fact is funded - he said the project was funded from
national. The province is not paying you know. The transfer would be
made from national to the province and he indicated that we have so
and so Mr X who is facilitating this for us and then he then said in the
province and then he was jokingly saying you know you cannot do
anything without the big man and then - then he would refer to the big

man as in initials and would ask why do you say this.
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He say hey you do not talk about this name anyway. So it
was his way of hiding who - whenever he speaks he would speak in - in
that and then | became interested in finding out why he is using that.
That is why he explained and then he would even give the reasons why
they - they brought all these people together but he did not say to me
that they were paying them or doing that.

We were discussing and he was just simply saying he has
managed to bring them to understand and accept and help facilitate the
project.

CHAIRPERSON: Okay. So at this stage in your discussion he was not

saying that he was going to be paying them. He was simply saying they
support the project. They are on board.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes. He just said we - we made sure this

time that we tie everybody that matters to this for ease of - of our
project going through.

CHAIRPERSON: Okay.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: So he did not mention that they were going

to pay them.

CHAIRPERSON: Hm.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: He gave me that impression that they

working quite well. They managed to engage ...

CHAIRPERSON: Hm.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: These people and these people were on their

side and they understood exactly where they were going ...

CHAIRPERSON: Okay.
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MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: And he gave me the impression that because

it was money not coming from the province but because you needed the
province to accept and do this and appoint you. You had - he had to
make sure that he - he gets these people to - to accept and work with
him and once he had that he was excited ...

CHAIRPERSON: Hm.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Telling me that really this time we are

moving and then Mochana (?) if you can - he would refer to me as
Mochana.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: |If you can facilitate the - the other provinces

specifically he mentioned the Eastern Cape ...

CHAIRPERSON: Hm, hm.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: And | think because my parents originate

from the Eastern Cape ...

CHAIRPERSON: Hm.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: And we - we will talk Xhosa you know ...

CHAIRPERSON: Hm, hm.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: To which other every time you know ...

CHAIRPERSON: Hm.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Were not speaking any other language other

than that.

CHAIRPERSON: Hm, hm. Okay, thank you.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Can you now proceed with reference to

page 121 as | have requested you to do before and tell us what does
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each column represent and what is reflected in those columns?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: If you check Chairperson it says there “The

Cost of Business” and it is in one column ...

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: And when it says the cost of business which

is stipulated there and the total cost of business being R82 608 567.
That was the total value of what he referred to as the total cost of
business.

CHAIRPERSON: Oh. So the - the various payments or items are part

of the - of what he regards as cost of business?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes.

CHAIRPERSON: And then the total is the one you have just
mentioned?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes.

CHAIRPERSON: Okay.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Then ...

CHAIRPERSON: So it is likely it was the cost to his business - to their

business?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: To ...

CHAIRPERSON: In regard to this project.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: It is - this - this is with regard to the

asbestos project.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes.

CHAIRPERSON: Okay.
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MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: And then ...

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: We - we do not need to speculate

Mr Dukwana. Look right on top of that document. What - what is
written there? What is the heading?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Free State Asbestos Eradication Project.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Yes. So ..

CHAIRPERSON: Well that is helpful Mr Mokoena. | also did not pick

that up.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: So clearly he is specifically referring to

the issues that you have canvassed with the Chair pertaining to this
project. Am | correct?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: You are correct.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: So when he talks about the cost of

business it is with reference to what we see as the heading on top.
Would | be correct?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: You will be correct.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Then proceed then.

CHAIRPERSON: Effectively it was - it is - it is what the business has

had to pay in regard to or his company has had to pay in regard to this
business that they got from the Department of Human Settlements in
regard to the asbestos eradication.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes.

CHAIRPERSON: That is what ultimately it means.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: It means ...

CHAIRPERSON: Yes, okay.
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MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes. Greasing if you like.

CHAIRPERSON: Hm.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: You are saying what?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Greasing.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Greasing?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: What is that?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: (African language).

CHAIRPERSON: Oh greasing your hand.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: (African language).

CHAIRPERSON: Greasing your hand.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: (African language). You pay bribery if you

like. You pay - you bribe somebody ...

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Or you pay them for them to facilitate this for

you.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: so this cost of business ...

CHAIRPERSON: Ja.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Good English ...

CHAIRPERSON: Ja.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Hiding ...

CHAIRPERSON: Bribery.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Bribery.

CHAIRPERSON: Itis - itis a bribe.
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MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: It is a bribe.

CHAIRPERSON: Ja.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes.

CHAIRPERSON: Well in isiZulu we have got the word (isiZulu

language) to refer to that as well.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Sotho word (Sotho language).

CHAIRPERSON: Okay, alright. Continue.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: You may proceed then.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Mr X - in the cost of business Mr X was

scheduled to get 10 million and then TM five million. | will come to the
other names. AM 10 million. OM one million. MEC 2.5 million.
MasterTrade 44 208 567,909 and others two million and then you have
other names Martin 1.5, Steve 1.2, Randwa (?) 1.2 million, JT three
million, Deidricks one million and then it gives you that total that is
there. That is the cost ...

CHAIRPERSON: Just repeat the total. You said it earlier but just

repeat for convenience.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: The total cost of business is 82 608 567,90.

Oh wait. You are talking about (intervenes).

CHAIRPERSON: Ja. 82 608 567,90.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes, 90 cents.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: May | ...?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: And then you have also the project value

cost of business ...
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ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Hm.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: That will be 172 391 ...

CHAIRPERSON: 172 million. Is it not?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: 172 million.

CHAIRPERSON: That - that looks like 172 million.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Yes itis Chair.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: It is Chair.

CHAIRPERSON: | think you said 172 000.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: | said R172 ...

CHAIRPERSON: Okay.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: 391 432,10.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Yes.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: If you check the - the project value cost of

business divided between the two Blackhead and Diamond in equal
portion will be R86 195 716,05 and you will see that it is written
2013/2014 financial year that will be 127 500 000 and then 2014/2015
financial year 127 500 000.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: So thisis how ...

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: The different amounts were expanded?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Exactly. This is how these amount were -

were expanded and then the - the - Mr X was - the name was given
because it was in a way of telling me who is facilitating this at the head
or at the head office and - and this amount will go to 10 million for

Mr X.
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CHAIRPERSON: And the initial that is given here which you are not

mentioning. The initials that are given here are the initials that he told
you.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: He was using them. Every time he referred

to the person. He would use

CHAIRPERSON: Ja.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Use that.

CHAIRPERSON: Okay.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Twice in our meeting he used that.

CHAIRPERSON: Ja, okay.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: And - and then there is also TM in this case.

The many people ...

CHAIRPERSON: | am - | am sorry Mr Dukwana. Mr Mokoena | am - |

am not sure | understand what these other amounts relate to. Are - are
they part - the ones that he is starting to read now. Are they part of
example in regard to Mr X are they - are they part of the 10 million? Is
five million part of the 10 million or is it an additional five million?

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Mr Dukwana if you look at that column ...

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: It ...

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: You will see that there are different

columns.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Ja. You see the left one Chair it explains the

total amount to be paid ...

CHAIRPERSON: Given to a particular individual?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes. That will be the total amount ...
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CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: To be paid ...

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: And then it will be in terms of the year. |If

you check in terms of the financial year as he indicated there at the
bottom. This half of it, itis 127 500 000.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes and then the second half 2014/2015

financial year he says 127 500 000. He - he broke it in - in half but it
is the total amount of 255 million ...

CHAIRPERSON: Okay.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: And then if you check the - the - if you go to
your right he then breaks it down in years. That for this financial year
they will pay this amount of money and then it will then be broken down
in that fashion.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes; and - and the amounts that - that appear

between the two columns that there is two - R2 million in relation to - in
relation to Mr X and there is R3 million. What do they represent those
that appear between the two columns which seem to be hanging? |If
you know what | mean.

ADV SMANGA SITHINI: Chair - Chair before ...

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

ADV SMANGA SITHINI: Before Mr Dukwana answers that question.

CHAIRPERSON: Hm.

ADV SMANGA SITHINI: May | plead that ...
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CHAIRPERSON: Hm.

ADV SMANGA SITHINI: Perhaps it will be prudent not to go to the

nitty-gritties of the - of the spreadsheet.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

ADV SMANGA SITHINI: The reason is the witness is not schooled in

accounting.

CHAIRPERSON: Huh-uh.

ADV SMANGA SITHINI: So he may not explain certain things with the -

the requisite knowledge that it may be expected out of a person who
will analyse the spreadsheet.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes. No, nol ..

ADV SMANGA SITHINI: And the Chairperson would note that if you

look at page 94 the first amount there payable is 51 million ...

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

ADV SMANGA SITHINI: And then it is reflected there.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

ADV SMANGA SITHINI: Other amounts particularly the ones that are

not inside the columns ...

CHAIRPERSON: Hm, hm.

ADV SMANGA SITHINI: | doubt Mr Dukwana is in a position of

explaining with precision what those amounts are about.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes. No, no | understand that completely. | think he

- he should just be able to say this is what | am able to explain.
Otherwise other things | am not able explain. After all it is not his

document. So it was just to try and understand that we are - we
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understand the - the document in the same way he does.

So Mr Dukwana where you - what you cannot explain just say
| - 1 do not know what this represents. As | say it is not your document
in any effect.

ADV SMANGA SITHINI: Thank you Chair.

CHAIRPERSON: Ja.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes. | will do. The - if you check this - this

first portion that is big was for the total amount of money.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: That they have earmarked and how they

would Chair share it ...

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: But if you go to the extreme right ...

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: It was with the payments that were made as

they were coming.

CHAIRPERSON: Ja.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: As you would - as you would see that there

was a payment that was made in December. There were two payments
that were made. The one was 20 million followed by the 31 million in
December and this would be your 51 million.

CHAIRPERSON: Hm.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: That was there. So one assumes that every

time there was payment ...

CHAIRPERSON: Hm.
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MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: The cost to business would then be paid.

CHAIRPERSON: Oh. Okay, okay.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: And they would be paid these amounts that

are - are shown there but as you pay ...

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: It was going to go to the total that each

person ...

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Would at the end ...

CHAIRPERSON: Okay.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Would have received ...

CHAIRPERSON: Okay.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: But in this case it - it is not like 10 million

and then you getting the 10 million just like that.

CHAIRPERSON: In one payment.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: The first payment is - is 20 million that we

get.

CHAIRPERSON: Hm.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Then we give you the amount that ...

CHAIRPERSON: Ja.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: And then we will give you one million give

you this and it was meant for that. So the second payment is made ...

CHAIRPERSON: Hm.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: And the people who - who would have

received would be - would be shown that this person got this amount of
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money.

CHAIRPERSON: Okay. No thatis fine.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Any other thing that you wish to explain

to the Chair in relation to the spreadsheet on page 12 - 1247

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: On - | just want to say Chairperson the

names here as | explained why | am - | am confident that they refer to
these people that are here including Mr X is what | explained to you.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: That it was a discussion that we had ...

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: And | still met with one person who was a

partner at some stage Tata Mogwera (?) ...

CHAIRPERSON: Hm.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: In - in the province and then unfortunately

Mr Mpambani passed on.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: So we - we had these kinds of engagements.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: So this would be much clearer in terms of

the names ...

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: But if you check there and that email that -

that was the supplementary evidence.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: That was said everything is sorted out with
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the adjustment from one million for JT to 500.

CHAIRPERSON: Hm.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Meaning that everything that was paid for

that duration ...

CHAIRPERSON: Hm.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: But - and if you check that was for with that

information it was the third payment that was made. In this case it was
500 000 instead of what was - was done - was paid.

CHAIRPERSON: Okay. Huh-uh.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: |If you turn to page 16 of your witness

statement and in line with what you reference to paragraph 52.3. From
52.3.1 onwards you give the specific names which you say that those
abbreviated names actually represents. Am | correct?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: You are correct.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: And you say that this you are able to

state with certainty flowing from your own discussions with the source
of the information.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes. He - when - because | - | knew certain

people by their surnames.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: So when he said TM to me | wanted to know

but who is this TM.

CHAIRPERSON: Huh-uh.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Why are you referring to this person as TM
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CHAIRPERSON: Huh-uh.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: And he then said it is Thabo Mokhesi.

CHAIRPERSON: Huh-uh.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: And | wanted to know who is Thabo Mokhesi

because | - | know Mr Mokhesi. The HOD of the Department of Human
Settlement in the Free State and he said that is what they know him to
be as TM and he says why - and | wanted to know what is T. He says |
found him. They call him Thabo etcetera. He says it is Thabo Mokhesi.

The HOD in the - in the Free State - the Human Settlement in
the Free State referred to as Thabo - Thabo Mokhesi. He is referred to

as TM in this case. That is what he said and then AM ...

CHAIRPERSON: Well before you go | think so that one can understand
it correctly. Now that you are mentioning who is who then | think you
must just repeat in terms of the spreadsheet what it shows was paid to
who.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Maybe what would assist is if you can

open page 124.

CHAIRPERSON: Ja, page - in other words as you explained who

certain initials refer to. You go to 124 and just mention that ...

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: How much was he paid.

CHAIRPERSON: That amount is what that person got.

ADV SMANGA SITHINI: Chair can it be ...

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

ADV SMANGA SITHINI: Can it be - he can mention that minus Mr X?

CHAIRPERSON: Yes of course. Of course.
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ADV SMANGA SITHINI: Right.

CHAIRPERSON: No, no he - | took it that we all know that ...

ADV SMANGA SITHINI: Yes.

CHAIRPERSON: Mr X remains Mr X.

ADV SMANGA SITHINI: Yes correct.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes. Ja. No, no.

ADV SMANGA SITHINI: But he can state how much Mr X have - was

paid.

CHAIRPERSON: Ja. He - he - | think he has stated - he can say how

much Mr X got

ADV SMANGA SITHINI: Chair the other thing may Mr Dukwana not

mention the details pertaining to Mr X in the statement.

CHAIRPERSON: That would - that would give a clue?

ADV SMANGA SITHINI: Correct.

CHAIRPERSON: Ja.

ADV SMANGA SITHINI: It will give a clue. So what ...

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

ADV SMANGA SITHINI:  With in line with the inclination of the

Chairperson ...

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

ADV SMANGA SITHINI: Yesterday.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

ADV SMANGA SITHINI: He should not even make reference to where

Mr X could possibly ...

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.
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ADV SMANGA SITHINI: Be located.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

ADV SMANGA SITHINI: Thank you.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes. No, no | think - | think that was the

understanding yesterday.

ADV SMANGA SITHINI: Yes. Since Chair he has already mentioned

how much Mr X allegedly received ...

CHAIRPERSON: Hm, hm.

ADV SMANGA SITHINI: According to the spreadsheet.

CHAIRPERSON: Hm.

ADV SMANGA SITHINI: Which is the email exchanges between two

persons.

CHAIRPERSON: Hm.

ADV SMANGA SITHINI: Who are - who were directors of these two

companies.

CHAIRPERSON: Hm.

ADV SMANGA SITHINI: Blackhead and Diamond Hill. Then we move

to TM.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes. Let us - let us leave out ...

ADV SMANGA SITHINI: There he can explain.

CHAIRPERSON: Mr X, ja. That is fine.

ADV SMANGA SITHINI: Thank you Chair.

CHAIRPERSON: Ja.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Can | quickly point out Chairperson that the -

the amounts that you see there are the amounts earmarked - the cost
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for total business but as you pay - as he got paid he will pay a certain
amount of money. So the - the 10 million was not paid like that.

CHAIRPERSON: In-in ...

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: In term of the spreadsheet.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes.

CHAIRPERSON: It - it - there were several - there would have been

several payments ...

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes.

CHAIRPERSON: Which totalled 10 million.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: So every time he received payment ...

CHAIRPERSON: Ja.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: He would effect this payment.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: At the end of it all ...

CHAIRPERSON: Ja.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: One believes that after everything was done

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: These people would have received this

amount.

CHAIRPERSON: The total amounts given.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes.

CHAIRPERSON: Ja. No that is fine.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: So you may proceed then from TM.
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MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: TM was - was (intervenes).

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: You are still explaining how - how you

knew (intervenes).

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: | explained that as - as the head of the

department in the Free State of Human Settlement was earmarked to
receive five million and after the first payment that was received the
person got one million and the second one he got one million and the
third one he got 500 000. So in total according to the spreadsheet -
the spreadsheet he got 2.5 million. In three batches.

CHAIRPERSON: | am sorry. Are you still with TM or are you dealing

with somebody else now?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: | am dealing with TM.

CHAIRPERSON: Ja. In total he got five million you say?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: In total he is supposed to get five million.

CHAIRPERSON: Oh that was - are those amounts - amounts that he

was - they were supposed to get and then you break them down in the
other columns?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: That is correct.

CHAIRPERSON: Okay. Just continue.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: If you check you - you will see that for

instance the - the - Mr X was supposed to get 10 million ...

CHAIRPERSON: Oh.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Chair.

CHAIRPERSON: Okay, okay.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: And then if you check in the column there
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how much was paid ...

CHAIRPERSON: Okay.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: And it will add this side. It is three million.

CHAIRPERSON: Okay. No, no now | ...

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: If you check that.

CHAIRPERSON: Now | ...

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: | - | hope you understand now.

CHAIRPERSON: No now | think | understand. | think you - you - maybe

based on the email that went with this spreadsheet | may have
confused. | - | thought that it - the spreadsheet represented amounts
that had already been paid and that where it says 10 million it would
just show the total and what is shown in other columns would be how
that 10 million was made up of - but in respect of amounts that had
already been paid but what you are saying is the 10 million or five
million would be what the person was supposed to get at the end of the
whole project.

| guess and then the other columns reflected what had been
paid as at the time when this spreadsheet was prepared?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes.

CHAIRPERSON: And in regard to TM ...

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: In regard to TM ...

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: The total amount received in this case if you

check the first payment was supposed to be that and it is clear that as

you look at that that he did not get the total amount as it was alluded to

Page 129 of 278



10

20

NMSC-215

28 AUGUST 2019 — DAY 151

but so far from this spreadsheet and from the column that is there this
is the amount that he received here.

CHAIRPERSON: 2.5 million?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: 2.5 million.

CHAIRPERSON: Out of the 10 million.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Out of five - 500 ...

CHAIRPERSON: Out of the five million he was supposed to get?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Out of the five million.

CHAIRPERSON: Okay. So he got about - he had received about - he

had receive half of what he was supposed to receive at the end?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes sir.

CHAIRPERSON: Okay. Yes.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Mr Dukwana ...

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: | -1 am not sure. | see that 2.5 but next

to 2.5 there is an amount on the right hand side that says one million.
What does that represent?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: This if you check there ...

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: (Intervenes).

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: There was also a payment of 51 million.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Yes.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: You see that?

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Yes.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: There was a payment meaning they got the

two and this total is five million - it is 51 million. If you check that
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spreadsheet you have this first payment and the second payment and
then it goes there as 51 million.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Yes, but ...

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: In relation to TM ...

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: (Intervenes).

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: What | am trying to show you is that is the

one million paid ...

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Yes.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: And then there is 1.5 million paid.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: 2.5.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: There is 1.5 and then if you - you break it

down it is one million, one million, one million, 500 000.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Oh | see.

CHAIRPERSON: Oh.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: [|-1lam ...

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Ja.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: | am not sure if | understand.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Am | losing you?

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: | thought ...

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: No, no.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: | thought you said to the Chair that

column that says 2.5 on the - on the right hand side. You see on top it

says year one. Can you see?
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MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: It says year one.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: And then but what confuses me | see - |

see 2.5 but there is a - an amount of one million which | am not - | am
not sure what does it represent.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: | indicated if you - if you check that - if you

check the spreadsheet Mr Mpambani was very meticulous in working
these things. He would get all the details and | hope you will not be
confused by this. The first payment, the second payment and the third
payment.

CHAIRPERSON: | am sorry Mr Dukwana. Maybe because Mr Mokoena

and | seem to have a similar problem. Maybe if | explain it - the ...

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Oh.

CHAIRPERSON: | check with you whether ...

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Okay.

CHAIRPERSON: | understand it correctly. It might help. Is - is the

position the following that - | hope | will not going - | am going to cause
more confusion. Is the position that the big column on the left which
has got R300 000,00 - 300 000 units and 250 - 255 million that when
you look at that big column which has got its own columns the amounts
of 10 million, five million, 10 million and so on and so on that is what
each person mentioned there was supposed to get when the whole
project was finished. Am | correct so far?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: You are correct Chair.

CHAIRPERSON: Okay. Then you go to the next column. It says 255

million. That is the value of the whole project. Then the column on the
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right hand side of that column which has got five million at the top. 2.5
million below that and so on and then it has got two million next to five
million.  That was an allocation for each person. The amounts
appearing under those columns reflect allocations of what each person
was supposed to get in the first year?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes sir.

CHAIRPERSON: Is that - am | correct so far?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: You are correct so far.

CHAIRPERSON: Okay, but those amounts the five million and the two

million and the first year they are amounts that are part of the 10
million in the case of Mr X for example?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes sir.

CHAIRPERSON: That is correct?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: That is correct sir.

CHAIRPERSON: Okay. Then you go outside of that column and then

you have got at the top 51 million. Alright?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes sir.

CHAIRPERSON: And then below R51million you have got a kind of two

columns without lines, the one relating to Mr X there is two million and
then you've got three million next to it, and then you've got other
amounts which are - which relate to the other people. Would | be
correct to say that those amounts which are under that 51million are
amounts that they were supposed to get not out of the 255million but
out of the 51million, in other words was the 51million part of the

255million or was it additional?

Page 133 of 278



10

20

NMSC-219

28 AUGUST 2019 — DAY 151

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: If you check the project value, it's

255million.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: And if you check the financial year he

believed that they would have got 127 500 000 and then that would be
the second year they will get this, so in terms of the payment they
would be in batches but the first year they would pay the 500, the
Smillion or half of it.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: |If you are to get 10million they will pay you

half of it the first year.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes, yes.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: So if you take the first year in that column

what it means in relation to the first financial year this person would
get R5million, the other one R2.5million, and if you check the cost of
business for TM is R5million but the first year if that amount is paid the
person would have received this amount of money, R2.5million.

CHAIRPERSON: Mmm.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: You understand, in the first year, and then

the payment, the actual payments that were made are appearing there,
the first payment, the second payment and then the third payment.

CHAIRPERSON: Well it may be that we will not understand everything

but it ought to be possible maybe to find somebody who might be able
to explain it much more clearer in due course. Mr Mokoena, it ought to

be ...(intervention)
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ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Yes Chair, with only question to Mr

Dukwana that | want to know from this spreadsheet what are the actual
amounts that are paid, let’s leave everything else. Let’s just simplify it,
we can see that, let’s talk to the person and what is the actual amount
received, then we can deal with others later.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Can | put it this way Chairperson that the

person and what was earmarked for the person as to how much he
received it is something that you will work it out there.

CHAIRPERSON: |If you are not able to say how much was actually paid

according to the spreadsheet to that person that's fine, but if you are
able to say that (indistinct) how much was actually paid according to
the spreadsheet you say both, it just depends what you are able to say.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Chairperson to avoid the confusion that |

see coming in | think it would be better as you suggested that we just
give the figures, the amount, the payments would then come in, the
person that would be attached to that, that would be better that way.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes, that's fine.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: So that we move from there.

CHAIRPERSON: So let’'s do that, just the total amount that was, that

the person was supposed to get.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Was supposed to get when the total amount

was paid.

CHAIRPERSON: Ja, okay let’s do that.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Chair do we do this exercise that has

consumed us now before lunch or after lunch?
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CHAIRPERSON: Well if he is going to just say these initials represent

so and so, this is what he was supposed to get we can do that because
it should be quick and then we can adjourn.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Mr Dukwana let’s try.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Chairperson just to make the number of

units here will be 300 000, 300million, there would be 300 000 units
and the rate per unit is 850 and the project value, the cost of business
in this case with the units with the initials Mr X earmarked to get
10million, TM as | explained, Thado Magesi as the head of the
department R5million, AM in this case is Ace Magashule, R10million as
the Premier of the Free State then, OM is Olum Lamlele that’s
R1million, he was the head of the department, MEC of the department
at the time and then the MEC in this case although he explained to me
what this MEC means he called a number of other people as MEC and |
will rather not mention this one.

CHAIRPERSON: Okay, you are not sure.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Because he mentioned another of other

people, we will say MEC this and then when | ask him he will give me
another name and | say MEC (indistinct) he talks of another MEC and
then he will give another name so | will not be (indistinct) in this case
mention this one

CHAIRPERSON: Yes okay.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: And then these are the people that he

mentioned, and if you check the argument here is all these people were

key in securing this project, Thadu Magesi was the one who made it
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possible appointing and all those things and Me Olum Lamlele is the
MEC then of the Department will be given that and then you have also
Ace Magashule as the Premier of the Province who get that amount as
stipulated there.

CHAIRPERSON: Okay, thank you. So the other names that are

mentioned are people that you don’t know?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: No he never spoke about these.

CHAIRPERSON: He never spoke about them, okay.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Do you know who is Martins Steve and

Rantwa you don’t know them?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: No | don’t know them.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Do you know who is JT, Diedericks, you

know them?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: No | don’t know them.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Yes.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: But all | know about the JT when we spoke

at the time he was going to Kimberley and he was to meet JT and when
he said JT to me he said Jimmy Tawu and he was going to meet Jimmy
Tawu and he said he is JT, so that’s why | have the name as JT there.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: And the Diedericks do you know?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: No.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Yes.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: | don't know Diedericks.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Chair would we adjourn at this moment?

CHAIRPERSON: Yes we will take the lunch adjournment and we will
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resume at five past two.
We adjourn.
REGISTRAR: All rise.

INQUIRY ADJOURNS

INQUIRY RESUMES

CHAIRPERSON: Are you ready Mr Mokoena?

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: We are ready Chair.

CHAIRPERSON: Before you proceed Mr Dukwana just to maybe wrap

up what you may have to say about the spreadsheet is it correct to
understand the spreadsheet to have been part of a conversation
between two partners in the same joint venture or co-directors or
keeping the same project, Mr Bambani to Mr Sode?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes it will be correct.

CHAIRPERSON: So the one was writing to the other?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Making aware the other aware of how the

money was spent.

CHAIRPERSON: Of how the money was either meant to be divided and

how part of it may have been already paid, ja okay.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Mr Dukwana we have exhausted that

topic, can we move on to page 18, page 18 Chair in those paragraphs
apparent from that page you seem to be making very strong statements,
do you wish to summarise for the Chair what you are conveying in
those paragraphs and take us please through paragraph 53 to 58.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Chairperson with the information that we

have presented today and many others, one | submit that the
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involvement of Mr Magashule in this asbestos audit heist makes him
unfit to hold public office of the Office of the Secretary General of the
ANC. Mr Magashule’s suitable place of abode in public in a jail cell. If
our law enforcement agencies were well oiled Mr Magashula and all
those who aided and abetted this asbestos audit should be doing time
in jail.

To date no eradication of asbhestos roofs has been carried out
in any township in the Free State to asbestos roof (indistinct) yet,
255million has been advanced to Blackhead Consulting Joint Venture
and the 77million of the State fund is a subject of a litigation in our
courts, and our law enforcement agencies are doing nothing. | invite
the Commission to investigate and subpoena the Provincial Head of the
Department of Housing, Mr Thabo or Mr Nthimotse Mokhesi. The Chief
Finance Officer at the time, the Head of Supply Chain in the
Department and the then MEC of Human Settlement.

Mr Magashule was the Premier at the time, Ms Cholota and Ms
Moroaki should be no exceptions. The MEC of Finance in the Free
State at the time and Head of Treasury at the time have some
explanation to do also. Ma’am Mokoena should come to the
Commission to explain the circumstances that led her to request
funding from Mr Magashula for her daughter’s education abroad.

The office of the Auditor General in the Free State would be a
great resource to the Commission. The Commission and the people of
South Africa, in particular the Free State, deserve to know the truth

about this asbestos audit heist. The Commission would also do well to
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subpoena government officials who were at the helm at the time of this
process, and in this case | mention a number of people in the
Department, but | must say that | am not suggesting that the persons at
the National Department of Human Settlements cited above were
involved in the asbestos audit heist. Me thinks the asbestos audit heist
would not have occurred without their knowledge.

What begs the question is why this project was undertaken
only n the Free State. Asbestos roofed houses are found in all
provinces, even the Free State alone R255million was spent for a
purported asbestos audit. How much of the amount was from the public

payers — | beg yours?

CHAIRPERSON: The National Public Payers.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: From the National Public Payers via the

National Department of Human Settlement. | have a reasonable belief
that the Free State Government under Mr Magashule was the only
fertile ground in the country for this asbestos audit heist to be staged
and executed.

The Commission should also commission an audit to be
conducted on any payments made from Blackhead Consulting Joint
Venture to any persons or private entities. Further the Commission
ought to investigate if ever there were municipalities and other Organs
of State in the Free State that were contracted to either Blackhead
Consulting or (indistinct) Joint Venture.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Yes, the paragraphs on page 20,

paragraphs 3 and 64 you have already alluded to that allegation to the
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Chair, you don’t need to deal with those allegations any more.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Now can you move on to deal with a

new topic in your statement, which is introduced from page 20 and
paragraph — with reference to paragraph 65, you are also referring to
...(intervention)

CHAIRPERSON: Maybe before that Mr Mokoena so in regard to the

Asbestos Eradication Project are you saying as a matter of fact that
actually no asbestos was removed from houses or are you saying they
may have removed it from some houses but certainly not as many as

they were meant to do in terms of 300 housing units?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Chairperson it is clear from the records that
we have presented that the intention was just to do the audit, and that
was it, that was done. The part of the eradication of this would have
been the other as | say the other project but in as far as this and in
terms of the instructions that were received from the Department it was
for the audit of the 300 000 houses at R850 per unit totalling
R255million for that alone and this is what was done and if you check
even in the report here that the period | thought that the evidence
leader would also just for the record the report itself that they
submitted and if you check the period that the contract was from the 1st
of December and it ended and the report, the final report was given in
February, now if you look at that only 255million was paid for a project
that took December, January and then February and everything was

there, so there was no eradication of this or removal of these asbestos
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housing meaning besides the fact that they made an appeal that this
would help in terms of the wellbeing of the people of the Free State but
the money is spent, the money is lost, and our own people in the Free
State who are still in this asbestos roofed houses are still experiencing
the same conditions even before the haste that this project was dealt
with in the first place.

That is why when | indicated there was no urgency they should
have gone through the processes and invited other people to
participate in this.

CHAIRPERSON: But let me just understand | may have misunderstood

at the beginning, | thought that the 255million in terms of the letter of
appointment at page 94 | thought that the R255million would have
included the removal of the actual asbestos roofs and | guess you can’t
remove without putting in something else, and putting whatever was
acceptable, but maybe to think that all of that could have been done on
the basis of R255million is not realistic for 300 000 houses, but are you
saying that as you understand the project the instruction to this joint
venture was simply to do the audit, identify which houses had asbestos
roofs, you mentioned the assessment as well, are you saying that your
understanding is that the R255million did not go beyond them doing
that?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Chairperson that’s why | thought it would be

wise if we go to the ...(intervention)

CHAIRPERSON: To the report.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: To the report and just allow the Chairperson
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to get the glimpse of that report. In fact ...(intervention)

CHAIRPERSON: Yes we could go there but what you can tell me is

your own understanding.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Nothing of that sort. My understanding is

the report in fact in terms of the letter you know to the Department it
was for the audit as well as for the eradication and the removal of the
rubble to a safer place.

CHAIRPERSON: Oh, okay.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: And what also the — what the instruction was

also clearly indicated that it was for the audit of the asbestos house.

CHAIRPERSON: Okay just to make sure that we have the same

understanding, your understanding if | understand you correctly now
your understanding might be the same as mine then, is the position that
as you understand the letter of instruction to perform, the letter at page
94 from the head of department, is your understanding that it was
instructing them to do the audits, make the assessment, remove the
asbestos, take it to a particular site and replace, make a replacement
on the roofs, was that your understanding?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Initially that is what was supposed to be but

if you check the letter it talks of assessing, auditing and - what did
they use, the word, if we can go to there.

CHAIRPERSON: | think it's page 94 if my recollection is correct.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Are you looking for the report or the

letter?

CHAIRPERSON: The letter.
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MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: The letter.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: It’'s page 94.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: The letter Chairperson of the instruction is

audit, assess, and GPS all pre-94 housing units in the province and it
says at a rate of 850, so that itself the instruction in this case
excludes, there is no instruction to remove, it is only to audit, to assess
and GPS all these. At that rate that is given there 850 and that is what
the report then does.

CHAIRPERSON: Also says that.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes.

CHAIRPERSON: But | did ask earlier on what GPS means and | think

you gave me an explanation but | can’t remember what - is that
something that they were supposed to do as well, in addition to
auditing and assessing or ...

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: They needed a company that would use

whatever instruments ...(intervention)

CHAIRPERSON: GPS?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Just to deal with the identification of w here

the property is and then have photos of the property itself, unit by unit,
only those that will have asbestos, so they will be able to assess if they
were to remove the roofing will that not affect the foundation and many
other things.

CHAIRPERSON: So the reference to GPS is just for the pictures of the

houses?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Just for all that, that’s it.
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CHAIRPERSON: Ja, okay. Thank you. So the whole R255million was

effective for identifying the houses that had asbestos roofs and making
an assessment, in terms of the letter of appointment.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: In terms of the letter of appointment.

CHAIRPERSON: Okay, alright. Yes?

ADV SMANGA SETHENE: Chairperson you would recall that Mr

Dukwana did take Mr Mokoena to page 96.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

ADV SMANGA SETHENE: No, 97, sorry.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

ADV SMANGA SETHENE: And asked Mr Dukwana to read paragraph

two which is working relationship.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

ADV SMANGA SETHENE: That is the document that relates, it's an

SLA agreement.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

ADV SMANGA SETHENE: And if the Chairperson have regard to that

it says it says the Department appoints the service provider to
assess/audit houses ...(intervention)

CHAIRPERSON: I'm sorry, I'm at 97.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: At the bottom Chair.

ADV SMANGA SETHENE: At the bottom Chair.

CHAIRPERSON: Oh close to?

ADV SMANGA SETHENE: Correct, yes and | think that’'s what Mr

Dukwana read into the record when he was being led by Mr Mokoena,
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so it answers the Chair’s question. And that is why Chair has
characterised the whole contract as nonsensical, the letter of
appointment says something, the SLA agreement says something and
they relate to the same project.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

ADV SMANGA SETHENE: Thank you Chair.

CHAIRPERSON: Okay Mr Dukwana you will confirm it looks like in

terms of the 2017 agreement what they were supposed to do included
disposal of asbestos to a certain site, to an approved designated
disposal site but from what you have said that was not included in the
letter of appointment. Is that correct? | haven’t gone back to the
letter of appointment but | understood you to be saying that?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes as | say this is something, that's why |

was saying it contradicts if it was done done by the lawyers they would
have seen this, this one even on page 97 it says something, it includes
there handling and disposal of asbestos sheets and the only way you
can do that is by removing them, and then to the designated disposal
site, but if you read the instruction that was given in this case it was
only to assess and then to audit and GPS at that rate that was given,
so there was no rate given for the removal and for other things in that
letter.

CHAIRPERSON: Well I have just gone back to page 94, it appears that

the only paragraph in page 94 where one can find what the HOD was
saying this joint — this company should do appears in paragraph one.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes.
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CHAIRPERSON: And it says audit, assess and GPS all pre-1994

government housing units in the Province at a rate of R850 VAT
exclusive per unit up to a maximum of 300 000 units [R255million VAT
exclusive] hereinafter referred to blah-blah-blah, will be payable for all
audited units and it should be noted that all asbestos units are
expected to be audited in the Province.

So if you say the reference to GPS doesn’t involve removing it
would appear that it doesn’t say anything about, the letter doesn’t say
anything about removing.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes it doesn’t say.

CHAIRPERSON: Okay.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Yes.

ADV SMANGA SETHENE: And the emphasis there Chair it is always

throughout that paragraph it is audit, audit, audit.

CHAIRPERSON: I'm sorry?

ADV SMANGA SETHENE: I'm saying that the emphasis in that

paragraph it is audit, nothing else.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes, yes, okay thank you.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: And | just want to emphasize that it says

here the number one in page 94 when it reads everything there the
units and the amount of money that will be paid as a total project cost,
it says will be payable for all audited units.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: You understand.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.
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MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: This means even if that unit that audit is not

an asbestos it does not have an asbestos roof, you will be paid just by
merely mentioning that this house and all those things, so that is where
| was saying Chairperson it does not make sense for you needed to,
that’s why | was saying you could have done the assessment yourself
and once you've got the report you would know exactly how many of
these houses that have asbestos roof and then you would then say go
and remove them and do one, two, three, so that would be a better way
of doing things, but for them to say for you to do the assessment and
also to do the auditing and GPS you do all the houses that is why
where we say it is actually a scheme in this case, you siphoning the
money, you use this, the 300 000, if you go to the report you will see
that the houses that were said to be having asbestos roofs do not come
close to 300 000, but this one says will be payable for all audited units
and then it goes on to say and it should be noted that all asbestos units
are expected to be audited in the province.

Now that is where | get some difficulties, you say all audited
units and then you say asbestos units are expected to be audited in the
Province. My understanding is ...(intervention)

CHAIRPERSON: So you read that to include auditing units that might

not have asbestos roofs, that’s how you read it?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: | read it to say the first one, the first

instruction is you do audit all the houses, the 300 000, but you must
make sure that all units that have asbestos in the Free State are

audited.

Page 148 of 278



10

20

NMSC-234

28 AUGUST 2019 — DAY 151

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Maybe let me help you and the Chair

and refer you to page 43.

CHAIRPERSON: 237

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: 43 Chair.

CHAIRPERSON: 43.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: And simply read under that heading that

says the field findings.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: The field findings Chairperson out of a total

of all the Free State townships assessed via site visits the following
were discovered. The actual number of residential units that contained
asbestos could only be quantified after the physical audit has been
done, however the audited encountered number of residential units
containing asbestos is 36 303 stands and the stands walked physically
and assessed is seen at more or less or plus minus 300 000.

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: So that is the point that you are making

that the only ones that were assessed were 36 000 yet you will be
entitled to be paid the entire amount of 300 000 units.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: What it means if you were to do the

calculations you will then say for the asbestos and everything you
would then say 36, the GPS would say 36 303 multiplied by 850 and
that is what you will pay but ...(intervention)

CHAIRPERSON: And it would be much less.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: It would be much less but you pay for the

R300 000 that were physically assessed, walked in and assessed so

you still pay the 850.
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CHAIRPERSON: But the question then is or before | ask that, is this

page 43 part of the report that — of the company.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: The report starts on page 39 Chair.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes, but this is part of the report?

ADV PHILLIP MOKOENA SC: Yes that's part of the report.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Yes.

CHAIRPERSON: Now what would have been the justification for the

HOD to instruct that they should audit even houses that did not have
asbestos roofs, because you can see whether the roof is asbestos
without even going into the house. Are you able to throw light on that?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: That's what | indicated and that is the

reason why | referred to this as a heist.

CHAIRPERSON: As a heist.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: That the - there was a number specified

from the beginning, that is 300 000, and there is a figure per unit which
is 850 and there is a total budget that is there t hat is for this project
255million, so working it out there you just work the total amount and
work everything and say go down so you work all this and you make
sure that you get the money, all of it, and you can justify that | went to
the house and the house does not have an asbestos and | went to these
only 36 out of 300 000 in the whole of the Free State.

CHAIRPERSON: Well | have a suspicion that your counsel has quickly

calculated what it would have been, 850 for 36 000 houses if anybody
has | would like to know the figure. Oh he hasn’t.

ADV SMANGA SETHENE: No Chairperson the only thing that |
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thought the Chairperson needed an answer to is what is a GPS.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes.

ADV SMANGA SETHENE: If you go to page 55 it answers the

Chairperson.

CHAIRPERSON: Yes. Oh geographical information system.

ADV SMANGA SETHENE: Yes. No, no Chair you go down there.

CHAIRPERSON: I'm sorry, did | look at the wrong one.

ADV SMANGA SETHENE: Other electronic special database it will

say the GPS position of the house can be met at the added advantage
that each of the above can later be revised by GPS and navigation, so

the way they were talking about that information that they will get.

CHAIRPERSON: Okay, okay. But so 36 000 housing units at R850 per
unit will be far less than the ...(intervention)

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: The 225million.

CHAIRPERSON: It's about R5million.

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: No | am saying it will be far ...(intervention)

CHAIRPERSON: Far less ...(intervention)

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Than R250million.

CHAIRPERSON: But as far as you know Mr Dukwana because

obviously you have spoken to people and you have looked at
documents is there anything that you have come across that says what
the justification was why housing units that did not have asbestos had
to be visited?

MR MXOLISI DUKWANA: Every time you engage on this the only

conclusion that one comes to is that it was only motivated by greed
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and make sure that you get as much money from the whole project and
you could see also by the requests that were coming that these people
would not mind if in any project Chairperson you need to have a bit of
quantities and make sure, especially this, you would know that this is
how much t his project would cost if you had to do that, but for a
person starting anywhere you start with say there’s R50million that we
put aside for cost for business and then if you go again at the end
you've got R77million that in the papers that Ms Cholota also placed in
this case also indicate that the R77million the last payment was for — it
was a profit for them because they did not have any overheads
etcetera, so meaning the 77million was to be shared. If you go there
you will see the report indicates that upon discovering that 77million
was paid they had a meeting and in that meeting they then took the
16million, the 17million and shared it equally and the money that was
left because it was said they were over the report in the report in their
papers that they submitted to court he argues that the late Mr
Mpambani indicated that the Public Protector had actually found out
that they were overpaid by R77million, but then he realised that it was,
that it was sixty — he said it was 60million and then we had to share the
70million out of the 77million. Then he goes to Court to demand that
half of the 60million is due to him and that must be paid, so that is why
in the papers he demands 30million of the 77million because they
would have shared the money, so what I'm trying to point out is you
have 50million cost to business, you have 77million it works out to

127million. Of that 255million worth of project that goes as a profit that
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BEFORE THE JUDICIAL ENQUIRY INTO ALLEGATIONS OF STATE CAPTURE,
CORRUPTION AND FRAUD IN THE PUBLIC SECTOR INCLUDING ORGANS OF

STATE

SWORN STATEMENT

I, the undersigned,

NOMALANGA MOROADI SELINA CHOLOTA

do hereby make oath and state that:

1 | am an adult female, and the former Personal Assistant (hereinafter referred to
as “PA”)" to the former Premier of the Free State Province, Mr. Elias Sekgobelo
“‘Ace” Magashule (“Mr. Magashule”). Mr. Magashule is the current Secretary-

General of the African National Congress (“ANC”).

2 During my tenure as the Premier's PA, | was at all times situated at the Premier’s

Office at the Lebogang Building, Bloemfontein.

3 | depose to this affidavit having been subpoenaed via summons to appear at the
Judicial Commission of Inquiry into Allegations of State Capture, Corruption and

Fraud in the Public Sector including Organs of State (“the Commission”),

' The official term for the position is Appointment Secretary
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established in terms of Proclamation 3 of 2018, published in the Government

Gazette 41403 of 25 January 2018.

The summons issued by the Commission dated 26 November 2019 requested
that | appear before the Commission personally for the purpose of answering
questions under oath or affirmation concerning my employment in the Office of

the Premier of the Free State Province during 2015 and 2016.

Unless the contrary is indicated by the context, the facts and allegations

contained in this sworn affidavit are all within my personal knowledge.

To the best of my knowledge and belief, the facts and allegations contained in

this sworn affidavit are true and correct in all respects.

Where | make statements that relate to legal matters and/or submissions of law,

| do so on the advice of my legal representatives. | accept that advice.

| have read the excerpts of the founding affidavit deposed to by Mr. Mxolisis
Dukoana (“Mr. Dukoana”) as they relate to and/or implicate me and have be
appraised of the contents of his testimony before the Judicial Enquiry into
Allegations of State Capture, corruption and fraud (‘the Commission”) and

respond thereto as contained herein.

Prior to responding to the allegations contained in Mr. Dukoana’s affidavit and

subsequent testimony before this Commission on 28 August 2019:

9.1 | will first set out my professional background and qualifications;
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9.2 Secondly, | deal with my duties and job responsibilities in the Free State
Premier’s Office as well as my duties and responsibilities in the offices of
public officials | was employed prior to my appointment to the Office of the

Premier, Free State;

9.3 Third, | deal with the allegations as they appear in the respective
paragraphs of Mr. Dukoana’s affidavit and address the content of the

annexures attached to his affidavit;

9.4 Finally, | deal with the wildly speculative testimony of Mr. Dukoana in so

far as it deal with issues under my control at the Office of the Premier.

10 The scope of this affidavit, and by extension, my testimony, will deal with the

allegations in so far as they are relevant to me.

11 In this affidavit, | shall therefore respond only to the facts, emails, invoices, proofs
of payment and other documents as they relate specifically to me in. My failure
to deal with any allegation in the founding affidavit by Mr. Dukoana is not to be

construed as an admission thereof.

12 | turn now to deal with each of the above in turn.

EMPLOYMENT BACKGROUND

13 In 2004, | commenced studies towards a National Higher Certificate, commonly
known as an N.Dip in Accounting at the Central University of Technology in

Bloemfontein, Free State.
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Due to financial constraints, | was forced to drop out of my studies before moving

on to the B. Tech degree in Cost Accounting.

As a result of not being able to afford my studies, | sought employment and
worked at various law firms in and around the Bloemfontein area during 2007

and 2008.

In 2009, | gained my first entry into working for public officials when | was
employed at the Department of Police, Roads and Transport in the office of the
then-MEC Mr. Thabo Manyoni (“Mr. Manyoni”). | was employed as a receptionist

in the Department until 2011.

In 2011. Mr. Manyoni was elected as the Mayor of the Mangaung Metropolitan
Municipality. | left my post as a receptionist in the Department of Police, Roads
and Transport and joined the aforesaid Metropolitan Municipality as a

receptionist.

In mid-2012, | started once again longing to complete a B. Tech degree and
started regularly approaching the Office of the Premier for information as to how
| could apply for and receive funding. Approaching the Office of the Premier for
financial assistance and/or bursary information is a long-standing practice by

many students in the Free State who are in desperate financial need.

I was not successful in gaining funding for furthering my studies, as a result |
decided to rather drop off my Curriculum Vitae with the Premier’s then-Personal

Assistant (“PA”), one Ms. Maria Matsobane (“Ms Matsobane”) who had been Mr.
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Magashule’s PA even before he became Premier during his years as the MEC

of Sports, Arts and Recreation.

Ms. Matsobane retired from her position as the Premier's PA and to my great
surprise and relief, | was appointed as her replacement in the position of the

Personal Assistant to the Premier of the Province of the Free State.

| commenced employment on 1 August 2013 and remained in the position until

my departure on 30 June 2019 to pursue further study.

Mr. Magashule vacated his position as Premier at the end of March 2018 to take

up the position as Secretary-General of the ANC.

Mr. Magashule was replaced as Premier by Mrs Sisi Ntombela, for whom | also
served as Personal Assistant until my departure from the Office of the Premier

on 30 June 2019.

Thus, all in all, | was employed as a Personal Assistant in the Office of the
Premier for a total of six (6) years and served as such to two incumbent Premiers
of the Province of the Free State, namely Ntate Ace Magashule and Mme Sisi

Ntombela.
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| gained invaluable experience during my time employed in the public offices of

the MEC, Transport, Mangaung Metropolitan Municipality and Office of the

Premier, respectively.

My duties and job responsibilities at the Office of the Premier involved, but were

not limited to:

26.1

26.2

26.3

26.4

26.5

26.6

26.7

26.8

26.9

26.10 Maintaining procedures and administrative systems.

Acting as the first point of contact for the Premier;

Dealing with correspondence to and from
correspondence included phone calls,

communication/correspondence;

Typing, compiling and preparing reports,

correspondence on behalf of the Premier;

Managing of the Premier’s diary;

Organising of meetings and appointments;

the Premier,

emails,

presentations

Reminding the Premier of important tasks and deadlines;

Managing databases and filing systems;

Liaising with staff, various departments and the public;

Collating and filing office expenses;

which

direct

and



NMSC-244

27 Further to the above, my job required constant communication and liaison with

28

29

the ten (10) departments that feel under the Premier’s authority as the Head of

the free State Provincial Government, namely the deparments of:

27.1 Agriculture and Rural Development;

27.2 Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs;

27.3 Health;

27.4 Police, Roads and Transport;

27.5 Provincial Treasury;

27.6 Public Works and Infrastructure;

27.7 Social Development;

27.8 Sport, Arts, Culture and Recreation;

27.9 Human Settlements; and

27.10 Education

Booking and arrangement of travel, transport and accommodation was largely

the job responsibility of the assistant appointment secretary in the Office of the

Premier, although | would from time to time also arrange same.

In short, as is the well established role of many Personal Assistants the world

over, | was tasked with carrying out administrative work on behalf of the Premier.
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THE FREE STATE DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SETTLEMENT

30 At this juncture, | pause to note that Mr. Dukoana’s founding affidavit and
subsequent affidavit attempted to imply that | was involved in liaison in relation

to what he refers to as the Asbestos Eradication Audit. | was not.

31 As will be shown below, not only was | not involved in that project/tender, there
is no correspondence or liaison by me on behalf of the Office of the Premier in
the annexures to the affidavit that supports Mr. Dukoana’s allegations to that

effect.

32 | submit that the many attempts by Mr. Dukoana in both his affidavit and
testimony to draw inferences of link between myself and the abovementioned

project is wildly speculative and desperately contrived.

33 In what follows below, | deal specifically with my liaison with one of the
Departments referred to at paragraph 27 above, namely, the Free State
Department of Education. | do on the basis that the various email
correspondence attached as annexures to Mr. Dukoana’s affidavit and
canvassed with him during his 28 August 2019 testimony before this

Commission, relate specifically to my liaison with this Department.
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THE FREE STATE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION AND RELATED

CORRESPONDENCE

The Bursary Scheme vs Financial Assistance

34 At the onset, | must draw a differentiation between the Bursary Scheme run by
and disseminated by the Free State Department of Education (“Department of
Education”) and financial assistance disseminated to students in need by the

Office of the Premier.

35 The Department of Education has a Bursary/Scholarship scheme which provides
for bursaries to well performing and deserving students in need that are based
in the Free State or that seek to undertake study in institutions based in the Free

State.

36 The Bursary Scheme is managed via a database created by the Free State
Training and Development Institute, which institute was is a specifically created
unit tasked with monitoring applications, awarding bursaries to qualifying

students and creating a database for unemployed graduates.

37 Though this is an initiative of the Department of Education, many students would
still approach the Premier’s Office either for more information on bursaries or for
assistance when the Department of Education had reached to limit of students it

could afford to award bursaries to.
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| am advised that it is as a result of the above limit and the resultant enquiries by
well deserving student in desperate need for financial assistance, that the
Premier, Mr. Magashule elected to start assisting needy students who had good
academic results with aid in the form of financial assistance or provision of

resources such as laptops etc.

This was done by fundraising from various businesses, businessmen and women

alike that resided in or did business in the Free State province.

| was the person that was tasked with liaising with different businesses and
businesspersons in relation to this fundraising and assisting needy students. My
most common correspondence would be providing the business with the relevant
account numbers of the different educational institutions and/or requesting
proofs of payment from the businesses in order to forward same to the

universities’ financial departments or the student.

During my six years at the Office of the Premier, over and above referring
students for assistance from the Department of Education’s Bursary Scheme,
the Premier’s Office itself provided financial assistance to students from tertiary

students all over the country including but not limited to:

41.1 The University of the Free State(“UFS”);

41.2 The Central University of Technology (“CUT");

41.3 University of Kwazulu-Natal (“UKZN”);

41.4 Durban University of Technology (“DUT”);

10
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41.5 Monash University (“MONASH”);

41.6 University of Cape Town (‘UCT");

41.7 University of South Africa (“UNISA”);

41.8 Vaal University of Technology (“Vaal”);

41.9 MANCOSA, a distance learning educational institution;

41.10 North-West University (“NWU”)

Provision of financial assistance for student registered at UNISA was specifically
important as those students did not qualify to receive assistance from the Bursary

Scheme.

In the email at “NMSC-027” dated 10 April 2015, | provide the account numbers
for CUT, UFS and NWU in which | request that the reference numbers be the

respective student numbers of the students receiving financial aid.

The proof of payment at “NMSC-043" reflects that payment was made for the
studies of a student at MONASH university and makes use of the student’s

student number and last name as reference.

The manner in which financial assistance was often disseminated was either
through direct in person requests from students (see “NMSC-051" and “NMSC-
051.1”), requests by students via email or referral of the students by either the
Vice Rectors or the Student Representative Council (“SRC”) of the respective

institution.

11
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Students studying at international institutions abroad

46 Fundraising for financial assistance for students studying abroad was also done
by the Premier’s office. This fundraising was done locally and internationally, and
this is one of the responsibilities that fell under the control of Ms. Ipeleng Morake
(“Ms Morake”), who was the person on the Office of the Premier responsible for
Intergovernmental Relations and anything that had to do with international

students.

47 As is well known, there are many students that are sponsored by the Ministry of
Health to study medicine in Cuba. The Premier was invested in assisting these
students as well and once facilitated the purchase of two hundred (200) laptops

for students in Cuba.

48 The invoice appearing at “NMSC-049” relates to the abovementioned 200 Intel
laptops which were requested a aid to students in Cuba from Mr. Mpambani in

the email dated 06 May 2015 at “NMSC-029”.

49 The SRC President referred to therein was a South African medical student who
had requested the funds to arrange and celebrate Africa Day in Cuba with fellow

South African students.

12
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50 Having provided the necessary context above, | turn now to deal with Mr.

Dukoana’s paragraphs ad seriatim.?

AD SERIATIM RESPONSES TO THE ALLEGATIONS IN DUKOANA'’S AFFIDAVIT

AD PARAGRAPHS 1 -4

51 Although | have no knowledge of the contents of these paragraphs, | note same.

AD PARAGRAPHS 37 - 43

52 | have no knowledge of the Asbestos Eradication Audit, nor of any award of a

tender to that effect by the Free State Department of Human Settlements.

53 | have no knowledge of compliance or lack thereof with specific sections of the

Constitution.

54  As outlined above, my duties and responsibilities were such that as a Personal
Assistant, the awarding of tenders in other departments fell outside my control

and scope of duties.

55 | am not aware of a Personal Assistant to a Premier in the public service that is
tasked with control over or that would possess intimate knowledge of specific

information in relation to a government tender.

2 Certain paragraphs of the Founding Affidavit were redacted. The paragraphs provided to
me as attached in the summons are the following: paragraphs 1 -4, paragraphs 37 — 58 and
paragraph 119.

13
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AD PARAGRAPH 44

56 The communication referred to in this paragraph between myself and Mr.
Ignatius Mpambani was strictly as it related to financial assistance for students
in need that had not been able to receive assistance from the Department of

Education’s bursary scheme.

57 | am not, and have never been, in a position where | would know what
implications any person’s business could or could not sustain, nor do | know

anything in relation to the so-called well-being of any person’s business.

58 | note that Mr. Dukoan’s liberal use of the term “constant communication” to be
misleading as it relates to five emails that all related to the provision of financial

assistance to students.

59 These emails were also sent to other businesses and business persons that
operated in the Free State. The inclusion of these emails only by Mr. Dukoana is
unfortunate and a clear attempt to create an impression about me that is unfair

and misleading.

AD PARAGRAPH 45

60 Mr. Dukoana makes reference to the fact that | used the official email in my

correspondence with businessman Mr Mpambani.

14
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61 Indeed, the emails were in the scope of my employment as a personal assistant
to the Premier of the Free State and in relation to a financial assistance scheme

spearheaded by the Premier’s Office.

62 There is nothing untoward about my sue of the official email in the carrying out
of my day to day duties and in sending and receiving correspondence for the

attention of the Premier.

63 Once again, the implication by Mr. Dukoana that the communication was
between myself and Mr. Mpambani in my personal capacity seeks to create a
false narrative that there was something untoward about the communication.

That is regrettable on his part.

64 The monies discussed in these emails between Mr. Mpambani and myself all
went to aiding students, wither in the form of financial assistance or in the form

of purchasing resources such as laptops.

65 The same communication took place with other business persons who were in a

position to contribute to the financial assistance of students in need.

AD PARAGRAPH 46

66 | am advised by my legal representatives that the inference drawn by Mr.

Dukoana in this paragraph is illogical.

15
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67 | am further advised that the inference is far-fetched and want of supporting facts

and evidence.

68 | have already explained the financial assistance scheme in the paragraphs
above, and have also explained what Ms Morake’s role was in relation to

international students.

AD PARAGRAPH 47

69 | have no comment of the opinion and allegation expressed by Mr. Dukoana in

this paragraph.

AD PARAGRAPH 48 - 49

70 | have explained in great detail above the reason behind the financial assistance

from the Premier’s office.

71 | have also explained the role of Ms. Morake in relation to international students

and intergovernmental relations.

72 Having also outlined and explained the various ways in which students or parties
on their behalf approached the Office of the Premier, | did not, and still do not,
understand there to be anything untoward about the request made by Ms. Refiloe

Mokoena for financial assistance of her daughter.

AD PARAGRAPH 50
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73  Any communication on my part with Mr. Mpambani was in done in my capacity
as the Personal Assistant to the Premier of the Free State and in relation to the

financial assistance of students in need.

74 | specifically detest the wild allegation made by Mr. Dukoana that the the so-
called asbestos audit heist was executed through the Premier’s office by myself

employed by government at the behest of Mr. Magashule.

AD PARAGRAPH 51 - 58

75 | have noted the contents of these paragraphs and have nothing to state in
relation to the allegations contained therein as they are irrelevant to me, save to
note that | have been subpoenaed by this Commission as suggested by Mr.

Dukoana.

AD PARAGRAPH 119

76 | have no knowledge of the allegations made by Mr. Dukoana in this paragraph.

CONCLUSION

77 | reiterate that at all times, | performed my duties as the personal assistant to

both Premiers to the best of my abilities.

78 | categorically deny that any of the communication that went out from the emails

of the Office of the Premier under my control that are subject to the the
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allegations by Mr. Dukoana were in pursuit of anything other than the furtherance
of the Premier’s aim to assist as many students as he could help with financial

assistance.

In his testimony, Mr. Dukoana’s wildly speculative allegations where | am
concerned are made all the clearer by his failure to understand my role as a
Personal Assistant and the distinction between the Department of Education’s
bursary scheme and the financial assistance to students in need by the Office of

the Premier.

To my knowledge, none of those persons assisted were related to myself or any
person in the Office of the Premier, despite the implication by Mr. Dukoana to

that effect in his testimony.

There are countless graduates from various institutions who would not have
completed their studies were it not for the intervention by way of financial

assistance by the Office of the Premier of the Free State.

| trust that my statement has proven to be of assistance to the Commission in
gaining clarity as to my duties and role in my former position as the Personal
Assistance to the Premier, and the purpose for the correspondence in the emails,

proof of payment and invoices attached to Mr. Dukoana’s affidavit.

Finally, | reiterate that any failure by me to deal with any of Mr. Dukoana’s

allegations should not be construed as my admission thereof. When
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consideration is had to the contents of my affidavit, it is clear that | indeed deny

such allegations.

NOMALANGA MOROADI SELINA CHOLOTA

| CERTIFY that this Affidavit was SIGNED and SWORN to before me at

on this the 5™ day of DECEMBER 2019, by the Deponent having

acknowledged that he/she knew and understood the contents of this Affidavit, had no
objection to taking this oath, considered this oath to be binding on his conscience and
who attached the following words:

“l swear that the contents of this affidavit are true, so help me God”.

COMMISSIONER OF OATHS
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